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CORPORATE PROFILE

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as
the “Group”) is the largest manufacturer and exporter of longitudinal
welded steel pipes and is engaged in property development and
investment in the People’s Republic of China [the "PRC"). The Company
has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”] (Stock Code: 1938] since February
2010. The Group's steel pipes are mainly used for energy transmission
including oil and gas transmission pipelines, deep sea pipelines, city
gas networks, and petrochemicals, mining, infrastructure construction,
offshore engineering, steel structures and water utilities industries.

The Group's production bases and offices are located in Panyu, Zhuhai,
Lianyungang, Nanjing, Ningbo of the PRC, Singapore, and Hong Kong,
with 5 longitudinal submerged arc-welded ("LSAW"), 4 spiral submerged
arc-welded ("SSAW”) and other production lines with a combined annual
production capacity of 2,930,000 tonnes as at 31 December 2018.

The Group is an industry pioneer, particularly strong in research and
development, holding 102 patents (including 31 invention patents) and
11 international certificates and having a long standing international and
nationwide track record. Furthermore, the Group is the first and only
steel pipe manufacturer in the PRC to manufacture and successfully
develop deep sea welded steel pipes for the use at a water depth of
3,500m and a qualified supplier of Petrobras and Petronas. Our Joint
Venture in Saudi Arabia is also the qualified supplier of Saudi Aramco.
The Group is the only welded steel pipe manufacturer in the PRC that
has received five national honours and awards, including “Gold Cup
Prize for Actual Quality of Metallurgical Products”, “Superior Quality
Award for Actual Quality of Metallurgical Products”, “National Key
New Products”, “National-recognised Enterprise Technology Centre”
and “High and New Technology Enterprise”, and host a "Academician
Workstation”™ and is the main drafter of the national standard for
longitudinal welded steel pipes in the PRC.
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FRHEES

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
would like to present to you the audited consolidated annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018. In
the difficult and challenging year of 2018, the Group recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB1,620 million (2017: RMB873
million), increased by approximately 85.6% compared with that of
2017. Loss for the year was approximately RMB499 million (2017:
loss of RMB874 million). Loss per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company was approximately RMBO0.49 (2017:
loss per share of RMBO0.86). The Board did not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The oil and gas industry is set to trend upward steadily after about
three years of “Cold Winter” with low price and low return since
the slump in oil price. As the operation conditions for the steel pipe
industry was extremely difficult due to a volatile market for oil price
in 2018, the results of the Group was also unsatisfactory, which
was attributable to the fact that major oil and gas projects were
still launched at a slow pace in both domestic and international
markets, and the demand for steel pipes fell below market
expectation in the last year. Despite a slight increase in domestic
and international sales, the Group’s operation was extremely
difficult based on its current scale. During the year, we delivered a
total of 348,000 tons of steel pipes and received orders for a total
of 360,000 tons of steel pipes, including projects of the three large
oil companies, the project of Shenzhen-Zhongshan Bridge* (/&
3B38 ) and other national key projects.

CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Fortunately, with substantial advance on the reform of gas
pipe network and further progress made in interconnection at
the beginning of 2019, the demand for steel pipes has been
recovering. The whole oilfield services industry is rebooting
with a mass of new projects launched in the first quarter.
In domestic market, we have secured orders, including
Ordos-Anping-Cangzhou Project* (3% 838 B ) from China
Petroleum, Qingdao-Nanjing Natural Gas Pipeline Project * (&
BHREBTEEA) and Zhongke Natural Gas Supply Project*
(FFRIMEREBEIBEE), to supply steel pipes of LSAW; and we
have also been awarded the steel pipes procurement work for
the construction of 30km high-pressure natural gas pipeline
network of Foshan, a part of the natural gas pipeline network of
Guangdong province; the project of the branch pipe networks
of Shaoguan-Guangzhou, a part of the arterial natural gas pipe
network of Northern Guangdong; and the project of the branch
pipe networks of Yangjiang-Jiangmen, a part of the arterial natural
gas pipe network of Western Guangdong. In overseas market, the
Group has obtained projects from oil and gas companies based in
East Asia to supply steel pipes of LSAW.

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification
purposes only
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The Group has successfully relocated its production facilities
from Panyu to Lianyungang and Zhuhai, which will become the
Group’s key production bases in China in the future. Currently,
the production bases in both Lianyungang and Zhuhai have
obtained relevant qualification, certification and awards for the
manufacturing of various types of steel pipes. The Zhuhai base
and Lianyungang base have respectively been rewarded national
and provincial titles, such as “Guangdong Engineering Technology
Research Center for Marine Engineering Pipe Material and
Equipment*” (EREFF TIEEM R EG IREEMHARF L),
“National Standard: LSAW for High-temperature and High-pressure
Pipelines*” (B RIFLE(ZRSBEEEREZENREHE) ),
“Guangdong Engineering Technology Research Center for Marine
Engineering Pipe Material and Equipment*” (BER & /EFTI2%E
MREFEIRFMHFFIP L), “Guangdong Enterprise Technical
Center of Provincial Level* (ERE AR EEREMA L) and
“Guangdong Postdoctoral Innovation and Practice Base*” (JE®R &
B+ 1% Al5 E B E ) and they will be focused on securing orders
of marine engineering equipment and oil and gas national projects
by leveraging the Group’s geographical advantages in southern
part and northern part of China.

In 2018, a new milestone has been achieved by the Group in the
course of its overseas expansion. The production plant under
the joint venture located in Saudi Arabia has been duly put
into commercial operation and acquired relevant international
certificates required for tender of petroleum and natural gas, i.e.
ISO 9001 and API certification. Moreover, in early 2019, it reached
an impressive outlook by receiving new orders in aggregate of
approximately 35,000 tonnes from Saudi Aramco, the largest oil
company of the world. The plant has one LSAW production line
with a capacity of 300,000 tonnes, capable of meeting the demand
from the Middle East. We believe that following our establishment
of a new plant in the Middle East, business relationships with
major oil and gas industry players in that region and our footprints
in overseas markets, our brand of PCK will be more extensively
recognised in the region and we can capture more business
opportunities.

CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The plan of disposal of the land held by Panyu Chu Kong Steel
Pipe Co., Ltd. was announced by the Group in late February.
The land, located in Qinghe Road, Shiji Town, Panyu District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, was originally
used for the production plant in Panyu. Covering an area of
approximately 287,000 square meters, it accounted for roughly
three fourths of the total land area of the Panyu factory site. The
proceeds from foresaid disposal will be used to enhance the
financial strength of the Group and reduce its debts and interest
expenditures, which will be beneficial to the long-term development
of the steel pipe business of the Group.

As an ongoing project of the Group, Golden Dragon City Fortune
Plaza (“GDC") also contributed stable revenue to the Group of
approximately RMB549 million for the year. GDC is a large-scale
integrated commercial complex, occupying roughly a fourth of
the total land area of the Panyu factory site. Phase one has been
partially delivered by the end of the year. Phase one covers a
permitted construction area (including underground construction
area) of approximately 135,000 square meters. On the other
hand, phase two covers an area of approximately 191,000 square
meters, and certain units of which have been presold. The total
permitted construction area of GDC (including underground
construction area) is approximately 550,000 square meters. We
believe that GDC will become one of our stable income sources
in the long run, providing solid financial support for the steel pipe
business and offer stable cash flow to help improve our financial
position.

Leveraging on our brand of PCK, outstanding performance and
track record, we have been participating in a number of overseas
large-scale projects that require steel pipes in high-quality
standards. In 2018, the overseas orders we delivered included
the gas pipeline project of Petrofac, orders from Saipem, the
gas pipeline project in West Africa, etc. Recently, the Group also
participated in tenders of several large-scale in domestic and
overseas projects to further explore new markets, including oil and
gas projects in other emerging markets of the globe. In general,
there has been a boost in demand for steel pipe in the market,
which resulted in a significant increase in tenders in progress by
the Group as compared with last year.
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PROSPECT AND GOING FORWARD

In 13th Five-Year Plan for Natural Gas Development, the PRC
government has made it clear that the “13th Five-Year” will be an
important era for the development of natural gas network of the
nation, and the state will coordinate the supply of overseas and
domestic gas resources and the gas demand of different regions
for their economic development and will support the investment
and construction activities in respect of natural gas pipelines by
all participants. In the strategic pathway in Northwest China, the
construction focus will be put on the Pipeline Il (middle section),
Pipeline 1V, Pipeline V of West-East Gas Pipeline Project and
to improve the D Line of Central Asia-China Gas Pipeline. The
focus in the strategic pathway in Northeast China will be the
Sino-Russian East-Route Natural Gas Pipeline. The focus in the
strategic pathway in Southwest China will be the branch pipelines
of China-Myanmar Natural Gas Pipeline which are to supply gas
to Yunnan, Guizhou, Guangxi, Sichuan, etc. The construction of
LNG terminals and ancillary pipeline network will be accelerated
to facilitate the import of gas by sea. In addition, the government
has also put forward a plan of constructing trunk line network,
including Sichuan-East Gas Pipeline Il, Ordos-Anping-Cangzhou
Pipeline, Qingdao-Nanjing Pipeline and national trunk pipelines
which supply gas to cities along the midstream of Yangtze River.
Regional pipeline networks and inter-connected networks include
Zhongwei-Jingbian, Puyang-Baoding, Dongxianpo-Yanshan,
Wugqging-Tongzhou, Haikou-Xuwen, Jianping-Chifeng,
Hangjinqgi-Yinchuan, Chongqging-Guizhou-Guangxi,
Weiyuan-Rongchang-Nanchuan-Fuling pipelines the construction
of which have been completed. More resources will be invested in
the construction of intra-provincial branch gas pipelines to extend
market coverage.

10 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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In the future, we will develop more customers under “The Belt and
Road Initiative” and more international oil company customers.
In light of the positive effects brought by the government’s policy
of promoting the use of natural gas to the domestic market, we
expect the demand for steel pipes may rebound. In fact, the
“13th Five-Year Plan” for oil and gas pipeline networks has been
launched, in which it is expected that by 2020, the crude oil
pipelines, refined oil pipelines and natural gas pipelines would
reach 32,000 km, 33,000 km and 104,000 km, respectively, and
by 2025, the national oil and gas pipeline network would reach
240,000 km with further expanded coverage, optimized structure
and significantly improved capacity of reserve and transmission.
And there are 6 crude oil pipelines and 8 new refined oil pipelines
to be constructed under the plan. Therefore, there would be
another golden era for the development of oil and gas pipelines
during the “13th Five-Year Plan”.

Taking becoming a global leading steel pipe manufacturer as
our long-term strategic target, the Group will seize the current
opportunities of oil and gas development projects to expand our
customer base and market share through biding for global oil and
gas projects and will also continue to leverage its strengths in the
steel pipe industry to obtain more orders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all our staff members
for performing their tasks diligently in such a challenging year. |
am also grateful to our shareholders for their continuous support
to the Group during a consolidation stage where it is accumulating
strength for a prosperous future. The Board is full of confidence
in the management team and its ability. As we grow a stronger
foundation, our future will be even brighter.

Chen Chang
Chairman

Panyu, Guangdong Province, China
29 March 2019
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

1996

EREBEHER
(BREEEEER)
Guangdong Province
Outstanding New Product*
(The Economic Commission

of Guangdong Province*)
GPEC

1997

REERBYEESRE
(FEIASTE)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products*

(Ministry of Metallurgical
Industries of the PRC*)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only.

2002 551

)
EREEEER
(ERIBETREER)
Guangdong Province
Famous Trademark*
(Guangdong Province
Bureau for Administration of
Industry and Commerce*)




20

(Renewed in
2010/20

Bureau of

d Technical Supervision*)

(ERECEB S RERCHKA
HiLBEEESR)

Best Original Product of
Innovative Record for
Guangdong Enterprise in
2007*

(Association of Enterprise

in Guangdong Province

& The Innovative

Record of Guangdong
Enterprise Approval
Commission*)

2009

RRERESER
—ZERETERRE
(BEREABEREREABERER )
Guangdong Province Patent
Excellence Award* (Three-
roller forming technology and
equipment)

(Guangdong Provincial Bureau of
Personnel & Intellectual Property Office
of Guangdong Province*)

2008 (Renewed in

2011/2014 48 )

RS M
(BEREPHBEMNE - FRE B - &
REBZBBR  EREWHRER )
Guangdong High and New Technology
Enterprise*

(Department of Science and Technology of

Province*, Province
Department of Finance*, Guangdong
Provincial Office of the State Administration
of Taxation*, and Guangdong Provincial
Local Taxation Bureau*)

201 0 (Renewed in 2013

2013 )
B R A SE &
BEuETRASE
( B RBHL BN E R 8 K A& T
HBIRP)
Key High and New Technology
Enterprise of China Torch Item*
(Torch High-tech Industry Development
Centre of Science and Technology
Department of the PRC*)

RINERE
AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

(FERABE)
International Exhibition of
Inventions Golden Awards*
(Three-roller forming

tachnol

*]

gy and i )
(China Inventions Association*)

2009 55+

o)
[ERE A IE R
( BERAEPHBEMTE )
High-tech Product of
Guangdong Province*
(Department of Science and
Technology of Guangdong
Province*)

2010

RAELFERT
(ARBERHEE - B - MBER -
BERAE  EXBBAR)
National-recognised Enterprise
Technology Centre*

(National Development and Reform

(] ission*, Science and Tech y

Department*, Finance Department*,
General Administration of Customs*,
State Administration of Taxation*)
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

E+NEZERS

RESRR LREHEBRXAE
mERE

(TERBAHE)

1st Runner-up of The 19th
National Invention Exhibition*

Dual-drive push-press type steel
pipe expanding device*
(Invention Association of China*)

ERENBLIT— S8
(BEREARBA)
First Prize for Sci-tech of

Guangdong Province*
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

EREBZAIHER

(BERENBLITE EREREAXEZEE
ERECBENEEEEE - RGBS -
FEREMBERR - EREAEBRWEER )

Indigenous Innovation Product of
Guangdong Province*

d

Province*,

Finance Dep Province*,

Property Department of

of y P Province*)




vard of The Guangzhou
Government*
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

EREBFAERR
(EREAREA)

Government Quality Award of

Guangdong Province*
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

2014

BEERR (HAEIURE)
GEL L R

Prime Quality Award - LSAW
(China Iron & Steel Association*)

RINERE
AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

2014

TEHACEREYER
BEEER
(TERSBTEGS)
Superior Quality Award
for Actual Quality of China

Metallurgical Product
(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2014
EREEAEETHAIRE
AR

(BEREEAHE)

Model Experimenting Enterprise
for Credit Management of
Guangdong Province

(Guangdong Credit Association)

2016

ERENBRI— L
(RRRARESRE)
(EREARBA)

First Prize of Sci-Tech
Achievement

(Deep Sea Pipe for Natural Gas)
(The People’s Government of Guangdong
Province)

2016

EEETMNSRINES %
(EEBHARBUT)

Science Technological Progress
Award of Lianyungang City

(The People’s Government of
Lianyungang City)



QUALITY CERTIFICATIONS

AEECESZHEKREERE -

The Group was received numerous international quality certifications.

BRAE
Saudi Arabia

1996 fisisais & 1996 Srmmsaiaons ) 2016 2016

1S09001 API API 1S09001
(BBRERER) (ZERHBE) (EERMBE) (TUV NORD CERT GmbH)
(Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency) (American Petroleum Institute) (American Petroleum Institute)

2002 55755015201 =) 2006 5 Y 2011 575505 &) 20115755015 a0y

BV DNV ASME CNAS

(CEEIREARAL ) ( FPEAARAL ) (B IR ) (PEEETIEERRATEES)

(Bureau Veritas) (Det Norske Veritas) (American Society of (China National Accreditation SerAvice of
Mechanical Engineers) Conformity Assessment)

2014 2016 2016 2016 1999 o3
ABS CAcQC CASC CIATA CE
( EEMARL ) (PEIT R BAREMN (PEITERBRARLN (PEIEBBERN (BB AR )
HeE) HeE) HeE) (Lloyd's Register of Shipping)
(China Industry (China Industry (China Industry
Anticorroion Anticorroion Anticorroion
echnology Association) Technology Association) Technology Association)
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TRACK RECORD

W Tk /3 g
XK EE

The Group has a long track record of involvement in onshore and REBHEABEACBARBEEIER (FEREBE) %%
offshore projects domestically and internationally. k&

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE

ER#ARNREFLEHBRARE
Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE BE (0) F4
Gas Transmission Project, SouthAsia 19,151 2018
MRERIAR
Hainan Island-Loop Pipleline Network Wenchang-Qionghai-Sanya Gas 12,882 2018

Transportation Project,China
FESEEAREEMNNE-BE-=THAEBEBIIIR

Hainan Island-Loop Pipleline Network Project Section B, CNOOC, China 8,869 2018
hELHEERRAERAFEHEAREEHEBIFR

Reclamation Works in Tung Chung East, Hong Kong 19,660 2018
BEBFREBEIIR

Phase I, E-An-Cang Gas Pipeline Project, Sinopec, China 49,504 2018
RAERARD RAS - RHREE—H

KaiTak Infrastructure Project, Hong Kong 9,203 2018
BEMEIRIER

Shandong-Henan Oil Pipeline Project, Sinopec, China 7,662 2018
hEACEBRRMEBIRR

West of KaiTak Construction Project, Hong Kong 15,639 2018
HEREEIEAR

Danyang City Gas Pipeline Project, China 3,162 2018
REMAETAAREBIER

Zhuhai Waterwork Pinggang-Guangchang Project, Zhuhai, China 4,630 2018
REIBREKE T iE - EEIEE

Qianjiang-Shaoguan Gas Transmission Project, Sinopec, China 10,000 2018
hEAL-E I -REBRIAR

MDA-MBH-MDK Project, Husky, Singapore 606 2017
MEAEMIEEMEEIRR

Hassi-messaoud CIS Transformation Project, Algeria 3,178 2017
Fi] 8 1% Fl 22 Hassi-messaoud CIS 23& 18 B

Shenzhen Exhibition Center Project, China 4,032 2017
BRI g R0 IE A

Oil Pipeline Project, TOTAL Automation Company, Middle East 90 2017
EEREPEARNPREMEELIR

High Pressure Gas Pipeline from Xiamen-Tonganmen Station to Huadian 630 2016-2017

Distributed Energy Station,the 11l Branch of West-to-east Natural Gas Transmission
Projects, China

PARRB=REFIRZPIMEEEDHARRURARSEERIIE

—E RS WIERXRRASERERLT 17



TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (continued)
ERENEEXs L EEH&E (@&

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE HE (W) F 4
Hukou-Jinshawan-Pengze Branch, Jiangxi Gas Pipeline Network Project, China 410 2016-2017
FEIAARARER —BIENLD S E-—ZEIR

Foundation and Associated Works for Expansion of Hospital, Hong Kong 3,413 2016-2017
BAABREEIENMEREEIRE

Hong Kong Kai Tak Development-Infrastructure, Hong Kong 595 2016-2017
EEMEEREREMRBEIRE

REPSOL Tarragona Spain 100 2016-2017
B EEE & RIER

Tuberia Recubierta-Gasoducto Mamonal Paiva., Promigas S.A. E.S.P, U.S.A 6,623 2016-2017
5 B %1 %0 9, B 7R B

Realisation Project for Pumping Station SP1-HEH/R-OB1, Sonatrach SPA. Algeria 1,253 2016-2017
R R A R B R A M A RIZRIAIA B

Water Diversion Pipeline for Small Hydropower Stations, Madagascar 305 2016-2017
55 32 AN HT N RN B OK BBk 5] Tk B 7K B 38

Order of Bend Pipes, Beijing, China 248 2016-2017
TEIEREEHERE

Anhui Natural Gas — Ningguo-Huangshan Branch, Jixi-Huangshan Section, 5,100 2016

Jiangbei Industrial Concentrated Area Project, China
TRZHERARER -SLXHR EE-BLR TLHEXEETERIIE

Petroleum Nasional Bhd — RAPID Project, Malaysia 1,080 2016
5 K 78 5 B R A 0H A 7 RAPID RO (b T18 B

Corpac Ore Slurry Project, USA 1,176 2016
X[ Corpac i ATRFIER

GC-31 Process Piping Project, Middle East 1,790 2016
FRGC-3IMBEBIER

Sugian City Gas Pipe line Project, China 1,030 2016
TEEETRREEIE

Gas Project in Gaoyou Economic Development Zone 413 2015-2016
mESBEERERRZARNALIE

PetroChina Power Plant and Qilfield Project, Middle East 1,455 2016
REAHTEERAAFRERIEL KRAEA

L&T GC30 Project, Middle East 1,036 2016
R L&T GC30E B

Heavy Oil Development Program, Middle East 1,970 2016
REREMMEIEE — IR

Abu Dhabi Gas Project 352 2016

ffn L BSLAEL B BIE B
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TRACK RECORD
EBEE

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (continued)
ERENEEXs L EEH&E (@&

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE HE () F 5
Canada Oil Sands Project 2,690 2015
MERMYPIEE

Offshore Riser Pipe Project 104 2015
EBRBRKEIER

Zhuhai City West Water Plant-Quanwu Water Plant Expansion Project, China 1,366 2015
RERETARKR - HKREELEEEE TR

Dubai Oil Project, Petro Energy Dorsa 783 2015
RERMAFEERARARIEA

Phase Il, Crude Oil Pipeline Project, Sinopec 3,353 2015
PO BRERBER_BATR

High-pressure Gas Transmission Pipeline Project, Chengdu City Gas Co, China 6,230 2015
REIKEHATRAREREERA AN SRR RARSERFHAEE LR

USA Project 3,696 2015
EBIE R

L&T GC30 Project, Middle East 2,148 2015
R EL&T GC301E H

Tangyan-Gu'an Complex Modificate Pipeline Project, Sinopec 1,562 2015
RALEEERE T G E (LB E TR

Tianwan nuclear power project of 4# unit high pressure steam and low pressure 149 2015
steam pipeline project

BRBAWMBREREERAAEREHBMHMBESER I REREREEHEA

Sub-transmission Station in Gujiao — Taiyuan Section, Taiyuan Gas Pipeline Project 1,949 2015
RE-ARBREEIRARDH I - KRR

ZCINA Algeria Project 30,490 2015
PR R A ZCINA S RE B T 72

Project, Middle East 121 2015
TRED-RBERFRLEEEESBEANELRETR

Oman Project 500 2015
P & h B 3 B R E R 218 B

Yuncheng-Hejin Gas Pipeline Project, Shanxi Natural Gas, China 2,072 2015
REILFARARTE-ERBREBETLRR

Sour Gas Pipeline Project, Middle East 1,000 2015
R R M R E AR

Reggane Nord Development Project, Sonatrach, Algeria 576 2015
MARMEEFZ AR AR HEREIER

Scenic Hill-HKBCF-Airport Line Project, China 2,929 2015

FERETREZ(FE)ARARABSL-BFEODF - HBERAR

R N\FFERE
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TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (continued)
ERENEEXs L EEH&E (@&

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE HE () F 5
Luomahu-No.2 Waterworks Construction Water Pipeline Project, China 5,584 2015
A B AR N T K S R AR N T BR FS M KO R B — KRR B B

Taizhou Gas Pipeline Project,China Chemical Engineering Construction Co 2,883 2015
FECETIRETNERARQARAAMAREE IR

Macao Taipa MGM Hotel Cooling water Project 323 2015
SR 211 8 /2 RK LI

PetroChina, Mozambique Oil Project 381 2015
FRBEELRYBRRERAX G MEEE

Oiltanking Beaumont New Finger Pier Marine Construction Project, Texas, USA 2,377 2015
% B 12 1| Oiltanking Beaumont #7245 58,5 /¥ i 2 1H B

Gas Project, Middle East 1,977 2015
RERARARIER

Hangzhou Natural Gas Project, China 2,370 2015
BN RARIER

Reggane Nord Development Project, Algeria 7,103 2014-2015
PR R DR HHEEAEIES

Gasoducto Andino del Sur Project, Peru 57,700 2015
WEBRIEAR

Shenhua Coal Carbon Indirect Liquefaction Project, China 3,848 2015
hEMEEHBERCIER

Gas/Oil Pipeline Project, Canada 3,198 2014
MEXEmiERIER

Phase II, Weizhou Oilfield Jacket Project, Shenzhen Chiwan, China 2,151 2014
REDRYIFREEM A RS EREEIAR

High-rise Building Project, Foshan, China 1,565 2014
REE LSRR A

Gas Gathering Project, Chengdu, China 200 2014
Hh B A AR SR BB S e AR

Dongshan Double Gas Pipeline Project, Shanxi, China 5,305 2014
RELFERILESRRRE B

Jiajie Power Plant Gas Pipeline Project, China 4,072 2014
hEEEEmEREBIE

Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, Guangdong-Scenic Hill Project, Hong 560 2014
Kong

ERERNEREBRRRBEESARZTESILER

Yibal 3RD Stage Depletion Compression Project, Oman 512 2014

W2 XAMEREEMRER £ =5
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TRACK RECORD
EBFE

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (continued)
EXABYEEFLLEBRE &)

Projects Quantity (MT) Year

HE HE () F 5

Gas Pipeline Project, Pakistan 844 2014

EEHE & RER

Sek Areas Flowlines Project, Sweden 2,715 2014
M A ERAEF TR

Southeast Asia Pipeline Project, Southeast Asia 2,600 2014

REE-REREEHEE

Gas/Qil Pipeline Project, Canada 7,355 2014

PIEWN::E e

CNRL Slurry Pipeline Project, Canada 7,616 2014-2015

MEXCNRLY #8318 B

SSUT Gas Project, PTT, Thailand 1,488 2014

FEEREEIEAE

Indorama Eleme Fertilizer & Chemical Limited, Nigeria 1,670 2014

2= XM Z5 Indorama st ZAERHE THR A 7

Changging Oil Field Project, SINOPEC, China 268 2014

REFAERERBIER

Gas Pipeline Project, Shaanxi, China 6,537 2014

Fh [ R 7 ) R TR

Uzbekistan Gas Project, Lukoil 20,521 2014

ERAMRRSZARAEHRER

Tuen Mun-Chek Lap Kok Link-southern Connection Viaduct Section Project, Hong 2,000 2014

Kong

EEEM-FEA-—EESRRKERER

“Hope” Flume Dam Project, Ecuador 31,949 2014

ENZ@[#L]E/-HIER

USA Project 4,788 2014

EEIEAE

Water Project for Erdos Deep Coal factory, China 10,680 2014

R B SRER % BT ORI TR 8518 B R SMavKIE B

Highway Road High-pressure Gas Transmission Pipeline, Chengdu, China 1,677 2014

FEKE SR A S R REE

Southern Section of Jingzhou-Gongan-Shishou Natural Gas Pipeline Project, 1,652 2014

Hubei, China

REDRIEEFIIMN - R - AERAREEREER

Phase Il, Uzbekistan Project, Uzbekistan 26,076 2014

B Rw e —EE

Yong-Tai-Wen Natural Gas Pipeline Project, Zhejiang, China 27,997 2014

FEIIBAREERARBREEIR

R N\FFERE
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TRACK RECORD
EREE

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (continued)
EXABYEEFLEBHE &)

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE HE () F 5
Changzhou Wujin Gas Storage Project, Suzhou, China 6,035 2013-2014
F B AR M N A R R IE B

Middle East Projects, Beijing, China 2,450 2013-2014
REdE R R IE

Hangzhou Natural Gas Project, China 4,500 2013-2014
AN R AR IE B

Yizheng — Changling Crude Oil Pipeline, Yizheng — Jiujiang section, SINOPEC, 6,013 2013-2014
China

mEAHEIRHARA BRENDAFBRIE-RERMERELE-NIER

LNG Pipeline Project, Phase Il, SINOPEC, China 8,348 2013-2014
hERACERBREBIIZEE — 8t

LNG Pipeline Project, Phase Il, Guangxi Natural Gas Pipeline Project, China 1,078 2013-2014
TEEAAAREEEEEABAEEIIESE it

ADCO, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 2,135 2013-2014
FlH R & e R B L LB B

Suzhou Baorun Gas Project, China 6,033 2013-2014
R ER N E R R B

Jiangyin City Heat Supply Network Southeast Pipeline Project, China 5,200 2013
REDT R = 248 (REAR) T2

Gathering Pipeline, CNPC, China 3,300 2013
hEPHEEYERBAELTEREREAR

X90M Small Batch Trial Project, CNPC, China 400 2013
AR AR D IEE X9OM /N B HRIER

Siping — Baishan Gas Pipeline Project, CNPC, China 12,600 2013
hEPAHEEARET-BIUARAREELR

Sichuan — East Gas Pipeline, Jiangsu Yutai Section, Jiangsu Natural Gas Project, 4,200 2013
China

hET#HERARBBIIRREXAERNEEILR

Zhoushan Fishing Island Oil Depot Project, CNPC, China 10,600 2013
FEABRAREERE=TIED RAAWIIN ShHE T

Shanxi Zhongli Flange Project, China 500 2013
AR PR AR A R IR B

Jincheng — Houma pipeline project, Qinshui — Duanshi section, Shanxi Qinshui 2,800 2013

Guoxin Coalbed Gas Project, China

RELFOKEEBRGEATAEEEN —ERERERKLE K -—HEER

The Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, Hong Kong 3,600 2013
BEBEBHRRKNIBIER
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TRACK RECORD
EBFE

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (continued)
EXABYEEFLLEBRE &)

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE HE () F 5
Provincial Gas Transmission Pipeline Project to Nakhon Ratchasima, PTT, Thailand 28,825 2013
#EIRAE

Shell, Canada 1,000 2013
BIEIEWNCg=

Indonesia Project, Indonesia 380 2013
e e (Efe)

Chemical Industry Project, China 4,800 2013
RELTIER

Uzbekistan Gas Project, Uzbekistan 16,100 2012
55w Ara &R IE B

TieLing — JinXi Crude Oil Double Pipeline Project, CNPC, China 13,600 2012-2013
RERAHEE - RERAEEERTRE

West-to-East Phase Il Ji An — Fu Zhou Section, CNPC, China 13,400 2012-2013
FEPAEBEAARB=GEEIRT XY —BMNE

Zhejiang Gas Project, China 27,000 2012-2013
AL ® R 1B B

Syncrude, Canada 4,225 2012
hnZ K Syncrude i) A 718 B

Canada Shell Oil Sand Project, Canada 11,028 2012
ME RN mIEE

West-East Gas Pipeline Project (Nanning — Baise Section), Phase Il CNPC, China 13,273 2012
FEABRARRNERAGDARRBETE_FHA R (BE—BRER)

Shenwei Coal Slurry Pipeline Project, Shaanxi Coal Industry Co., Ltd., China 71,729 2012
RERFEARERDAERAGSBEEBRIEIER

Huainan — Shanghai Ultra High Voltage Power Grids, State Grid Corporation of 42,610 2012
China (SGCC), China

REERE - FERBREMER PEBRRKEHAR

Guangdong Natural Gas Pipe Network, CNOOC, China 48,274 2010-2011
REFEHERERANREH

Gas Pipeline Project, Southeast Asia 49,928 2010-2011
REDHRAERER

Syncrude, Canada 24,352 2010-2011
hi& K Syncrude ¥ A RIEE

Shell Nigeria 9,304 2011
HEFERED

Jingbian — XiAn Gas Pipeline Project, Phase Ill, CNPC, China 4,575 2011

TEPOH (BEEALTRRER=R)

R N\FFERE
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TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (continued)
ERENEEXs L EEH&E (@&

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE HE () F 5
Turkmengas, Tukemenistan 12,048 2011
+E 2 HE KRR A A Turkmengas 18 B

Halfaya Project, CNPC, China 3,237 2011
Bt A h R AR IR B

West-East Gas Pipeline Project, Phase Il, CNPC, Hong Kong 55,946 2011
FEDORMARRE _REEXG

Crude Oil Pipeline SINOPEC, China 10,523 2010-2011
mEPAOCRREBELIRE

Inner Mongolia Gas, China 14,412 2010-2011
PREARLTEREETLR

Columbia Gas Pipeline Project, Ecopetrol, Columbia 144,669 2010-2011
etz T EERAAAFF ML ERETRIRE

Shell Canada, Canada 27,000 2008-2011
& RRE

China-Russia Oil Pipeline Project Phase II, CNPC, China 12,182 2010
B AR R R R m — BT R

Guangdong Gas, China 55,000 2010
TREEREARAAREM —HIRE

East Siberia — Pacific Ocean, Russia 10,078 2010
BRI ENE - KFFRTE

Ampliacion Red Principal de Distribucion de Gas en Lima y Callao Project, Peru 11,350 2010
WEHRIER

Kinteroni MIPAYA Pipeline Project, Repsol, Peru 17,831 2010
WE R IE B

Syncrude, Canada 13,968 2010
& X Syncrude BT A 7] E B

West — East Gas Pipeline Project, Phase Il, CNPC, China 47,282 2010
Hh B AR A T SR R AR

Guangdong Natural Gas Pipe Network, CNOOC, China 61,855 2009-2010
PEFEHERERAREEERAA

GTCL, Bangladesh 35,000 2009
AMBEBERRARA A

Shell Canada, Canada 20,000 2009
MERZZEMERIER

Kazakhstan-China Pipeline, CNPC, China 77,400 2009

FEP AT RERAR
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TRACK RECORD
EBEE

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (continued)
ERENEEXs L EEH&E (@&

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE HE () F 5
ESPERANZA Project, CNPC, Chile 36,000 2008
BR A RIEEE

Yulin-Jinan Gas Pipeline, SINOPEC, China 14,000 2008
o B o e e — R RUE AR

Southwest Oil and Gas Pipeline, CNPC, China 40,398 2007-2008
o B o 5 ek 7 SR F B RUE AR

Kurdistan Gas Pipeline Network, The Middle East 23,000 2007
TREREMEARRARERIRE

NGC, Nigeria 16,000 2007
JE B FGE R ARE &%

Sichuan-East Gas Pipeline Project, SINOPEC, China 200,000 2007
FEFAEIIREREXRER

GNL Quintero Project, Chile 11,000 2007
BHEWEER

Shagyrly-Shomyshty Gas Pipeline, Kazakhstan 11,000 2006
15 B 75 87 18 Shagyrly-Shomyshty &) 5, & 4

Sonatrach, Algeria 7,500 2006
B 68 % I S A 0 A A

Changbei Gas Field Project, Shell, China 3,600 2005
hERERILREER

Guangzhou Gas Company, China 14,270 2005
FEEMTERAF

Pipe and Piling, Canada 2,250 2005
MEKREERE

Western Crude Oil and Product Oil Pipeline, CNPC, China 33,000 2004-2005
REIR AR RAKmEBILIZER

Guangdong Dapeng LNG Company, CNOOC & BP, China 14,523 2004
hE AR RBP BERAM KL RARERA R

GTCL, Bangladesh 7,400 2004
FINAL R RER R

NOCO, The Middle East 4,000 2002
IR A MDA

—E RS WIEMARARAEERERLT 25



TRACK RECORD
EREE

SELECTED OFFSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE

EREINEEBKEE H&
Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE HE (W) F 4
Gaolan Extension,Yacheng 13-1 Pipeline Project,CNOOC, China 7,887 2018
FERERENIS-1EES R FIER
Aviation Fuel Pipeline Divesion Work, Hong Kong 2,107 2017
EERSMEMEHEEER
ScottishPower Offshore Windmill Jacket,the UK 22,134 2017

REHREE LRESEERBEER

Amrun Offshore Piling Project, Australia 3,429 2016-2017
SBAFZE Amrun )8 F B E BB
Gazprom EPC Gas Pipeline Project 9,424 2015
MEMRARER LR
Yacheng Oil Pipeline Maintenance Project, CNOOC 180 2015
M EREE #IETIE
Dubai Petroleum Pipeline installation 3,448 2015
MFOHREHE TR
Waidiao Island-Cezi Island-Zhenhai, Sinopec Offshore Project 30 2015
hAEIMIE-TFE-HEEEEEEFHIRE
Dubai pipeline installation works, Dubai 7,092 2014-2015
BMFEBLRHEIR
Gas Pipeline Project Panama 2,332 2014-2015
BB RXARBEEBLIE
Zhuhai Guishan Offshore Windmill Jacket Project, China 2,405 2014
REREEILE FREEERIER
Huangyan and The Surrounding Gas Rolling Development Project, Phase I, North 11,620 2013-2014

of Huangyan Oil and Gas Field Group, CNOOC, China
mEPEER (PR ERAFEEREASIABRSHEER FitEmafBE — 5

F ¥ 8 B

Zhanjiang South Sea Oil Offshore Construction Project, China 800 2013
th BE T B A g iR IR B

Yong-Tai-Wen Gas Project, Longwan Branch Pipeline, Zhejiang Natural Gas 850 2013

Project, China
PR TIARAREEREYRIREERABARRBREE LR

Shell, Nigeria 1,800 2013
Hhfe AT EIER
Mexico Pemex Platform Project, Mexico 4,640 2012-2013
ERFEFEFLAE
South China Sea Deep Water Gas Development PMT, CNOOC, China 66,238 2011

RE TSR KRARMEERR
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TRACK RECORD
EBEE

SELECTED OFFSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (continued)
EABENEESEKEEB B (@

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE HE () F 5
Liwan Deep Water Gas Development Project, Saipem/Husky/CNOOC, China 51,000 2011
# B Saipem,Husky /# 8 M % & R/ RX AR EIEE

West-East Gas Pipeline Project, Phase Il, Hong Kong Branch, CNPC, China 14,665 2011
B AR T RRE RIS AR BEEXR

Offshore & Onshore Pipeline Project-Feed, Total, Southeast Asia 15,500 2009
REBRERE FHRER

Manifa Field Causeway Project, Saudi Arabia 10,113 2007
D mAEEER

Malaysia Angsi-TCOT Crude Oil Offshore Pipeline Project, PETRONAS, Malaysia 43,000 2007
F5 2K 79 55 PETRONAS f5 2K 78 35 /8 [ 40 O B 47 18 B

Ledong Gas Fields Engineering PMT, CNOOC, China 27,000 2007
hE e hER R AERIER

Jamnagar Refinery Complex/Bechtel, India 36,000 2006
E /2 foh A B

Panyu/Huizhou Natural Gas Development Project, CNOOC, China 58,881 2005
HERERESR BN RKARMEER

CNOOC & Shell Petro Chemicals Company Ltd., China 12,149 2004
mEPEREAREIAERDR

Chunxiao Gas Complex Development Project, CNOOC, China 68,645 2003

R EERARMEIEAR
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TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR SSAW PIPE

IZHe R IR EE B ek
Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE BE (0) F4
Shenzhen-Zhongshan Bridge Project, China 13,766 2018
hEDRFEEEE
Yancheng City New Water Source & Diversion Project, China 3,800 2017
Hh B BE A T T KR b R B K LA — 1R ERIA B
Bengal Water Transport Project, Bangladesh 3,816 2017-2018
FNH %7K I B
Guangzhou Nansha International Passenger Liner Wharf Project, China 12,821 2017
Hh B N e 0 [ R o A SR A2
Zhanjiang Donghaidao — Leizhou High-speed Bridge Project, Guangdong Changda 10,884 2016-2017

Highway Engineering Co., Ltd., China
HRERERALCBRIBRARARDRIRESE -—SMNERSIBER

Honghe Bridge Steel Pipe Project, Guangdong Changda Highway Engineering Co., 6,269 2016-2017
Ltd., China

FEERARARKIRARQAABAESIFHAEGER

Lianyungang City Drinking Water Project, China 984 2015-2016
PR ERE TR KEKIRE

The CWB No. 8 Road Connecting Tunnel Project, Hong Kong 386 2015
ERERREFEBE)\FEERRBFETLR

The CWB No. 8 Road Connecting Tunnel Project, Hong Kong 2,226 2015
EERREFHEBE \FEERRBELR

Zhuhai City West Water Plant-Quanwu Water Plant Expansion Project, China 2,610 2015
REIZKEMARKE - ZHKBEREEEETR

Luomahu-No. 2 Waterworks Construction Water Pipeline Project, Xuzhou, China 9,074 2015
H B A4 )N T 5% S OM 2KOR 3 K2 5B KRR R TR

Scenic Hill-HKBCF-Airport Line Project, Hong Kong 1,441 2015
EREBERIL-BBOFR-HISERER

Crew Construction Project, Phase |, Southwest Hainan Power Plant, China 2,270 2015
hEEE M ER B ERIER

The Nigerian National Petroleum OB3 Project, Nigeria 6,000 2015
JE B FZEBIK A M OB3HEH

Water Diversion Project, Nanning, China 2,065 2014
B R EH KR

Piling Foundation Pipe Project, Humen Bridge II, Guangdong, China 5,161 2014
PEEREEMA-_BBEERNEG IR

Gaolangang Area Container Terminal Project, Phase II, China 4,200 2014
FEEHESEERATHE _HIR

Crew Construction Project, Phase |, Southwest Hainan Power Plant, China 8,994 2014
hEEE A ER - AEKERIER

Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, Guangdong-Scenic Hill Project, Hong 3,000 2014
Kong

ERBARBEBAERKERNBEED AREBRILER
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TRACK RECORD
EBEE

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR SSAW PIPE (continued)

BheR R E IR B i ()
Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE HE () F 5
Pakistan Gas Pipeline Project, Pakistan 7,537 2014
EEHE#HRIEAR
Los Ramones Gas Pipeline Project, Mexico 49,587 2014-2015
£ 75 5F Los Ramones ) & 18 B
Chemical Project, Jiangsu, China 2,071 2014
BT &L TIER
Yancheng Water Project, Jiangsu, China 5,896 2014
Hh BT AR BE e sk T2
Water Irrigation Project, Venezuela 565 2014
ZAmALKGERIE B
Tuen Mun-Chek Lap Kok Link-southern Connection Viaduct Section Project, Hong 7,950 2014
Kong
EEEM-FEA - EESRKERER
Zhuhai Port Temporary Construction Bridge Project for Hong Kong — Zhuhai — 9,115 2014
Macau Bridge Project, China
FREETORARIE B 28 O R iR e LER T
Al Hallaniyat Island Project, Oman 330 2014
Fi] £ Al Hallaniyat Island I B
Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, China 360 2014
hEE KR ABIER
Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, China 8,556 2013-2014
hEE KR ABIER
Lianyungang City Drinking Water Project, Jiangsu, China 3,700 2013-2014
BT A 8 T A K Bk TR
Tuen Mun-Chek Lap Kok Link-southern Connection Viaduct Section Project, Hong 313 2013-2014
Kong
BEEEM-FEA-EHESRAKERER
Cross Sea Bridge Project, Lianyungang City, China 1,700 2013
REEEATEEABIER
Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, Hong Kong 838 2013
BEBBRRKRIGIER
City Heat Supply Network Southeast Pipeline Project, China 7,300 2013
HB R R VA (SR AR ) TH2
NNPC, Nigeria 9,940 2013
JE BRI BRI R A M AR #HRIEE
Jiangsu Water Network Project, China 8,000 2013
FR BT &R 4R BT KRR B B SMAC £ K B 4
Hainan LNG Station Transmission Pipeline Project, CNOOC, China 3,000 2012-2013

mEREAm CERRIERARRBREETIR)

R N\FFERE
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TRACK RECORD
EREE

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR ERW PIPE

EREEEBHE
Projects Quantity (Km) Year
HHE HE(AE) F4
Gas Pipeline Project, Australia 70 2017
BANMGRAEBIIZ
Middle East Oil Orders 18.62 2017
H R S om AT &
Insulation Pipe Project in Hong Kong 0.54 2016-2017
AARBEIER
Phase Ill, Gas Pipeline for GMP New 12SPP Project, PTT & GULF, Thailand 10.7 2016-2017
HZEBERAHRAR&TEEHGMP #12SPP I HiTH B R AR EE
RAPID Petronas Project, Petronas, Singapore 21.4 2016-2017
BRI A MR RN h, R IE B
NGP Gas Transmission Project, Jemena, Australia 626 2016-2017
SRR F) 28 Jemena A A]NGP # 18 B
Marmul Rationalization Project, PDO, Oman 11.83 2016
M & AmEHEA SEBBYTRAE X
Liuzhou City Natural Gas Project, Guangxi, China 13.7 2016
REETEIIN TR ARIAR
Beiliu City Natural Gas Project, Guangxi, China 47.46 2016
REEFEIL R T RARIER
Yicheng City Change Line Project, Weijing Pipeline, Sinopec, China 18 2015
RAREBAGERTHRREEREERHEIIE
Sinopec Gas Pipeline reinstallation project, Qilu Branch 3.5 2015
FARLEEBRSRAAARERES LR ERIEEA
Phase |, Xiangyuan Gas Pipeline Project, Shanxi, China 44.9 2015
FELARER (RAR)SBERAFBEZFAARMNA —HIRE
Phase |, Changzhi-Tunliu Section, Shanxi Coal Bed Gas Pipeline Project, China 66.5 2015

TREESZKEIRER (RAR)EWARARUARERGEATNAEARAE -—E
BRRAARINA—HIRE

Betara Complex Development 479 Project, Petrochina International Jabung Ltd., 16.14 2015
Indonesia

f A HIE JE 7H ok Betara 4R & F 2547978 B

Badra-Zubaidah, EPC Gas Export Plpellne Project, Gazprom 105.14 2015
MBEMRAR —WHEEPCHARAREB LR

Madura BD Field Development, Husky-CNOOC Madura Limited, Indonesia 53.6 2015
AT E - FEA AR A RIEES AL BD M AME R

Macao Taipa MGM Hotel Cooling water Project, China 6.58 2015
R BER P 2 1 25 = MO JE 8 2 Bk TH2

Sour Oil/Gas Pipeline Project, Daleel Petroleum L.L.C., Oman 10 2015
MeEMNABRARNBEHMREER

Scenic Hill-HKBCF-Airport Line Project, Hong Kong 11.4 2015

BEERIU-BEORE-—HI5EREAR
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TRACK RECORD
EBFE

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR ERW PIPE (continued)
EMEEEEE B (@)

Projects Quantity (Km) Year
EHE HE(QE) F4
Kuwait Oil Pipeline Project 9.5 2015
RHEL A 28 3th [ 8 i B AR T 12

Pstream Project, Australia 49 2015
RAMERIE B

Gasoducto Andino del Sur Project, Peru 84 2015
WA B IE B

Phase Il, Stage Product Oil Pipeline, The Pearl River Delta, SINOPEC, China 30 2014
PREAEEBRAREES AR A_HXmABERE 4

Jiangxi Gas Network Project, Phase |, Qingyun-Wannian, Shanggao-Yifeng Branch, 26 2014
China

FEIAEARAREN —HPIEEE-BF Lt HEXR

The Expansion Project of Macau University of Science and Technology, Macau 27 2014
EFIRIR K EERE TR

Catchment System Of Sea Water And lodon Plant, Chile 23 2014
BRRFEEREKEBIRZ

Flow line Pipes, PDO, Oman 200 2014
M & & EIE A

QNP Lateral Pipeline Project, Australia 19 2014
SR FIZEQNPIEH

Eastern Goldfields Pipeline Project, APA, Australia 298 2014
SBAFIGEAPATE R

Aviation Oil Pipeline Project, BP, Australia 4 2014
B A A AR M A 22 mIE B

Central Wan Chai bypass No. 8 Connection Line Tunnel Project, Hong Kong 8 2014
EEBBERREFEE RERGRREEIR

JQ AEP/ODPL1 Project, Shell, China 32 2014
AR A BT )| gk &R 2 FKIE B

Scenic Hill-HKBCF-Airport Line Project, Hong Kong 7 2014
BEEBRIL-BEOF - HRISERIER

Mexico Project, Mexico 123 2014
EHEEA

Longquan — Taiyuan Section of Lanxian — Taiyuan Gas Pipeline Project, Shanxi, 45 2014
China

PEILARG - ARBIAEEIRER - KRR

Nakhon Sawan Project, CNPC, Thailand 36 2014
PHEBYMERBEARZEBESEIER

Natural Gas Pipeline Project, Phase I, CNOOC, China 28 2014
FRKETAAREBIE—HIER

OGDCL, Pakistan 15 2014

S =9:iip:2 =T apii N

R N\FFERE
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TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR ERW PIPE (continued)

EERERB B (#)
Projects Quantity (Km) Year
b= HE(QE) F4
Santos, Australia 212 2013-2014
BMAMEIER
Pipeline Crossing Project, Sinopec, China 4.1 2013
mEP O EEF IR
Southern China Project, SINOPEC, China 25 2013
mER A EREA
Hainan Natural Gas Project, CNOOC, China 2.9 2013
mEAHEERARIAR
Jian Rong Foundation Project, Hong Kong 3.6 2013
ABEEMEIRE
Guangxi PetroChina Kunlun Natural Gas Project, CNPC, China 52 2013
REFRAHERTAHERAARIER
Chongging Gas Project, China 102 2013
Bl EE MR RIE R
Jiangxi Oil Pipeline Project, Phase Il, SINOPEC, China 10 2013
FEACHEERARERSAGIIAKMAEE _HITIRZER
Mexican Project, Mexico 155 2013
EEFHEMIBA (FAF)
Hongkong Tunnel project, Hong Kong 3,445 (MT) (W) 2013
EEBETR(EHS)
OGDCL, Oil/Gas Pipeline, Pakistan 378 2012-2013
EEHAEEREE
Flow line Pipes, PDO, Oman 550 2012-2013
] £ £ B8 B
Kuwait Sour Crude Oil Pipeline, Kuwait 232 2012-2013
R B 1 SR B X B8
Jiangxi Product Oil Pipeline Project, Phase IlI, SINOPEC, China 270 2012
RERAMIEKMEEE TR
OGDCL, Pakistan 145 2012
EEHAIER
Huainan-Shanghai Ultra High Voltage Power Grids, State Grid Corporation of China 24,763 (MT) (&) 2012

(SGCC), China
FEEM-EESSREREE FREBEREN

Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited, Pakistan 143 2009
EEHBRXAREERA

ONGC, India 300 2009
EIERARRA]

Electricity Network, China 960 2009
PEBEKEHER
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TRACK RECORD
EBEE

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR ERW PIPE (continued)

EREEHEEHE W
Projects Quantity (Km) Year
b= HE(QE) F 5
Flowline Pipes, PDO, Oman 1,602 2008
fii=18 B
Gasoducto Gibraltar Project, Columbia 151 2008
= fm th o 5 1A B
Esperanza Project, Chile 150 2008
B A RmEIE R
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited, Pakistan 250 2008
EEAERAREBRAA
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited, Pakistan 170 2007
EEIARAREERA
Shengli Oil Field, SINOPEC, China 255 2007
RER AN HAIER
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited, Pakistan 195 2006
EREIERXAREEB AR
Copergas, GDK, Brazil 126 2005
EAEXARRIA]
Henan Product Oil Pipeline, SINOPEC, China 191 2005
B R A (LT B R an o B AR
Pearl River Delta Product Oil Pipeline, SINOPEC, China 1,200 2004-2005
PR AR AKX G HE R
Southwest Oil Pipeline, SINOPEC, China 379 2003-2004
PR AR mMELR (K2 —EH)
Jingzhou-Jingmen Product Oil Pipeline, SINOPEC, China 153 2002
B AR A {5 N — 5 P RK fm Ol B AR
Lan-Cheng-Yu Oil Pipeline Project, CNPC, China 220 2001
R A O M E B T2
National Oil Company Limited, The Middle East 130 2000
R ARAQF
Texas Oil Field, USA 153 1998
EEEIMNh E
Changging Oil Field, CNPC, China 290 1996
B A R B E
Kelamayi Oil Field, CNPC, China 150 1996
Fp B AR A S 5 R 3 4O A

R N\FFERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group mainly (i) manufactures and sells longitudinal welded
steel pipes, as well as providing manufacturing service for
processing raw materials into steel pipes; and (ii) engages in
property development and investment.

Our welded steel pipe products can be broadly categorised into
LSAW steel pipes, SSAW steel pipes and ERW steel pipes. We
are the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturer and exporter in the
PRC, and are capable of producing LSAW steel pipes that meet
the X100 standard. We are also accredited with 11 international
quality certifications such as Det Norske Veritas (“DNV”) and
American Petroleum Institute (“API”). In addition, we are the first
and the sole PRC manufacturer that has successfully produced
and developed deep sea welded pipes for use at 3,500m under
water. Our products are widely applicable to major oil and gas
pipeline projects (both onshore and offshore) and infrastructure
projects domestically and internationally.

Our Group is capable of manufacturing subsea pipes and drilling
platforms for offshore projects, and is being classified as a
member of the Offshore Engineering Equipment Industry* (/& 7¥
TREFGRESE) . We have benefited from and supported by the
PRC'’s strategic policies and received supports from policy banks
and insurance institutions in the PRC. We have maintained good
relationships with and have obtained medium-term loans from the
Export-Import Bank of China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWED AT

Panyu Land Development

In 2013, the Group has converted a piece of land in Panyu
into commercial use. The total land area of such piece of land
is 125,000m? which accounted for 25% of the total area of the
parcels of land owned by the Group in Panyu (the “Panyu Land”).
The total construction area of the Panyu Land is 550,000m2. The
Panyu Land will be divided into three phases for development.

Project name:

HE AW

Address: Qinghe Road, Shiji Town, Panyu District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong, PRC
Mol - B R A BN TR B R A B EE K

Usage: large scale of integrated commercial complex of offices,
shops, serviced apartments and villas

A 2T e B REXABNHNENKRILGESHEER

Total permitted construction area (including underground
construction area)
RFFREEEE (BED TRE@E)

The Group had pre-sold the first phase and second phase of GDC
and the total contracted sales were approximately RMB1,662.3
million as at 31 December 2018. Sale of properties for the Group
in 2018 was around RMB549.3 million.

GDC is part of the Group’s strategy to widen its income sources.
The Directors believe that GDC will maximise the potential
economic return of the Panyu Land to the Group. Furthermore,
upon the completion of GDC, stable rental income and the
proceeds from the sale of properties will support the further
development of the Group’s steel pipe business. The steel pipe
business will remain as the Group’s core business.

R N\FFERE

ERELTHEBR
FEBR_ZE— =85S BLHERIHERM-
2T H M B A S B125,000F 5 oK - (h AR EEREF B
AR ([FE L) BEBENTS 2 — FE 1T
)48 B SEE 15 /550,000 F oK - HB TR H /=
R

Golden Dragon City Fortune Plaza* (“GDC”)

CEBMERES ([&FEH])
Phase | 135,000m?2
E£—H 135,000 77 2K
Phase Il 191,000m?
FEH 191,000 75 2K
Phase Il 224,000m?
E=H 224,0007F 752K

AEBEEESERNE—BMRE_H-R_Z—N
FT_A=ZT—"RH BENHEEENARARE
1,662,300,000JC * AEBMA T — N FHEWEDHA
R #549,300,0007T °

SRAASNEEBFERNRAFRRORE —F D EFH
E oAU EEE D HHASEENEELEDRE
HEZRR -BEF TREERE BEHSRARDE
HERABIHASEHEEBNE - SER-ME
EBHBEBESAEEOZOLES-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD

On 12 February 2018, the Group entered into an agreement
(“Agreement”) with, amongst other, Guangdong Yuecai Trust Co.
Limited* (ER Z8 B R 2 7) (“Guangdong Yuecai”) and
Guangzhou Asset Management Company Limited* (BN & E &
AR QA ) (“Guangzhou Asset Management”) in relation to the
cooperation to facilitate the change of use of land (the “Land”)
held by Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., Ltd (BEBH/IMEA
[RA 7)) (“PCKSP”). Such Land is next to GDC with an area of
approximately 287,000 square meters. Pursuant to the Agreement,
PCKSP shall apply to the relevant government authorities for the
change of use of the Land from “industrial” to “commercial and
residential”. Therefore, the Group has relocated the production
lines in Panyu to the Lianyungang and Zhuhai production sites.
The Lianyungang and Zhuhai production bases will be the major
production bases of the Group in the PRC, as both production
bases are in proximity to the self-operated ports where the Group
can minimise its transportation cost.

Order Status

In 2018, the Group received new orders of approximately 360,000
tonnes and approximately 87% were received from domestic
customers. The Group has received some sizeable orders like
orders from China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation ( 7 B f 1t
TN AR AT ) (“Sinopec”), Shenzhen-Zhongshan Bridge (/&
#38 ) and construction projects in Hong Kong. The Group delivered
approximately 348,000 tonnes of welded steel pipes during 2018.

LSAW Steel Pipes

The Group is the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturer and
exporter in the PRC. LSAW steel pipe was the largest source of
revenue of the Group and accounted for approximately 73.5%
of our total steel pipe revenue for the year ended 31 December
2018. For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from the
sales and manufacturing service of LSAW steel pipes amounted
to approximately RMB591.3 million and RMB195.7 million,
respectively, representing an increase of approximately 15.4% and
an increase of 314.9%, respectively, as compared to that for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The increase in sales of LSAW
steel pipes was mainly due to the increase in domestic orders.
Major oil and gas projects in the PRC have been recovered.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWED AT

SSAW Steel Pipes

Our SSAW steel pipes produced in our plant in Lianyungang use
the pre-welding and precision welding SSAW technique, which
is the most advanced standard among all SSAW technologies.
Revenue from the sales and manufacturing service of SSAW steel
pipes amounted to approximately RMB120.8 million and RMB72.8
million respectively. The total revenue from SSAW steel pipes
accounted for approximately 18.1% of the total steel pipe revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

ERW Steel Pipes

Competition in the market of ERW steel pipes has been very
keen due to its relatively low technical and standardised entry
requirements. For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue
from the sales and manufacturing service of ERW steel pipes
amounted to approximately RMB30.6 million and RMBO0.9 million,
respectively. The total revenue from ERW steel pipes accounted
for approximately 2.9% of the total steel pipe revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

Revenue of the Group mainly comprises (i) steel pipe sales, and (ii)
property sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, our revenue was
approximately RMB1,620.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB747.2 million or 85.6% as compared with that of
2017. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase in
domestic orders received by the Group and recognition of property
sales. Major oil and gas projects in the PRC have been recovered.
The Group recognised most of property sales of Phase | of GDC in
2018.

R N\FFERE

BHEE R E

RPN EEEREEENBREBNEEFBERSE
W2 SRR B BT B - s B R B P A 2 HE R AR
EIERRILENRE-BREENEENHERR
BRI 2 B85 WA A R%120,800,000T & A R
#72,800,0007 BRI IR E MR A B EZ-Z
—NF+ZA=+T—BLEFELHHERALL.1% -

EREE

BIHEEREFHEEMEE REZELHAPTRE A
BMERFLRURN -BE_Z— \F+=_A=1+—
HIEFEE SHEENIHEHEREERBTVAD LN R
A R %30,600,0007T &2 A K #900,0007T c & & =&
—NFT+A=+—HLEFE REESHEEH L
BEUWAMERUALI2.9% ©

5 % 1= R
WA REF
AEMPATEREOAEHER)WENE-

RBE-_Z—N\E+_A=+—RALEFEF KEHK
A4 A AR #1,620,500,0007T 8 =T — = F 1 04
AR #747,200,0007T 5(85.6% ° L AN E K
REBEENGIMBERNGTEENEERYEHE
THREEFBERBEEEKER - AEBR T
—N\FHERRIDSEM BN MEHEE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

TREIATEHMEEB D MORA-EF - HEE

The following table sets forth the revenue, gross profit, sales

volume and average gross profit per tonne by business segments K GWEFHER
for each of the periods indicated:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
WA WA A
AR¥TFT Bl ARHFT B
Revenue L'ON
Steel pipe sales HE & 1,071,126 66.1 873,293 100.0
Property sales MEHE 549,330 33.9 - -
1,620,456 100.0 873,293 100.0
Steel pipes sales MEHNe
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Revenue Revenue
L ON WA
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
15K A 1B HA
AREFr BAH ARETFT Bk
Sales of steel pipes HERE
LSAW steel pipes HgEEE 591,276 55.2 512,343 58.6
SSAW steel pipes BhEREE 120,779 11.3 37,370 43
ERW steel pipes BHEE 30,576 2.8 129,924 14.9
Subtotal NE 742,631 69.3 679,637 77.8
Manufacturing services BIER®
LSAW steel pipes HERIEE 195,682 18.3 47,165 5.4
SSAW steel pipes BRI R E 72,786 6.8 24,190 2.8
ERW steel pipes EREE 897 0.1 1,286 0.1
Subtotal et 269,365 25.2 72,641 8.3
Others Hith 59,130 5.5 121,015 13.9
Grand total ®wEt 1,071,126 100.0 873,293 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED AT

2018 2017
—E-N\§ —E—+F
Gross Sales Average Gross Sales Average
profit volume  gross profit profit volume  gross profit
E| HEE FHER EM HER FHEM
RMB’000 tonnes  RMB/tonne RMB'000 tonnes RMB/tonne
AREFT B ARE W AREKTFT B ARE
Sales of steel pipes HERE
LSAW steel pipes HEBEE 74,169 105,418 704 41,574 101,401 410
SSAW steel pipes IR RS 3,739 24,941 150 2,584 8,235 314
ERW steel pipes BEEEE 1,242 6,679 186 371 25,232 15
Subtotal NE 79,150 137,038 44,529 134,868
Manufacturing services BIE IR
LSAW steel pipes BEHEEBEEE 84,905 119,981 708 17,893 31,143 575
SSAW Steel pipes BHER RS 27,458 90,526 303 276 47,601 6
ERW steel pipes ERREE 178 828 215 5 707 7
Subtotal NEE 112,541 211,335 18,174 79,451
Others Hith 1,191  NAFTER NATEA (4592) NATEE  NATER
Grand total st 192,882 348,373 58,111 214,319
The revenue generated from the sales of steel pipes accounted RZE—N\F REHEHEHWAL (LA S B L6

for approximately 69.3% of our total steel pipe revenue in 2018 BUAB69.3% MR T —LFAET7T8% R ZE

as compared with approximately 77.8% in 2017. Steel pipe
manufacturing services accounted for approximately 25.2% of our
total steel pipe revenue in 2018 as compared with approximately
8.3% in 2017. The revenue classified as “Others” mainly
represented the trading of steel plates, sales of steel fittings,
trading of equipment and sales of scrap materials which accounted
for approximately 5.5% of our total steel pipe revenue in 2018 as
compared with approximately 13.9% in 2017.

Gross profit of steel pipe sales for 2018 was approximately
RMB192.9 million as compared with approximately RMB58.1
million in 2017, representing an increase of approximately
231.9% or RMB134.8 million. Gross profit margin for 2018 was
approximately 18.0% which was higher than that of last year as the
Group has delivered some sizeable orders to Sinopec which were
mainly manufacturing services with high profit margin.

Our domestic sales accounted for approximately 75.1% of our total

steel pipe revenue in 2018, as compared to approximately 53.6%
in 2017.

R N\FFERE

— 5 B RIS AR S 4015 2N 5k [ 4 8 5 Ut A 25.2%
MRZE—tFRHh83% A [HAM] 2K A
FE2REEMR HEMNEEH EERBRIEEE
BB A S AREE T — \FAMHE W A55%:
MR =ZE—tFA41513.9% °

—E2E-N\ENHEHEENL R AKK192,900,000
BT —tFH ARS58,100,0007T 1 10 4
231.9% = A R #134,800,0007C  — & — )\ F E | =
#WHR18.0% HEEFHILEMER RAAELAEEE R
PARERXNETFARBRTE ZETEE2RESHE
R BIE R o

RZZE-—NF AEBENBRAHEERGRMET WAL
75.1% M — T —+F B #){553.6% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD

SALES BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS - STEEL

RUBEE S NEE-HEHE

PIPE SALES
2018 2017
—E-N\EF Tt
Revenue Revenue

['ON ON
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
1A YA A8 YL A
AR¥F7 B AR T B 7L
Overseas sales BHNEE 266,534 24.9 405,560 46.4
Domestic sales k= 804,592 75.1 467,733 53.6
Total steel pipe sales B 85 B AR st 1,071,126 100.0 873,293 100
Property sales MEHE 2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F AR Fr
Revenue WA 549,330 -
Cost of sales SH P AR (479,797) -
Gross profit EH 69,533 -

The Group recognized the sales of the first phase of GDC of

around RMB549.3 million in 2018 (2017: nil).

Cost of sales primarily represents the costs we incurred directly
for the Group’s property development activities. The principal
component of cost of sales is cost of properties sold, which

AEER-_FT-N\FHEATER —HODERHEEOA

R #549,300,0007C ( Z & —tF  £) o

includes the direct costs of construction and the costs of obtaining

land use rights.

Gross profit was around RMB69.5 million or 12.7% in 2018.

All sales of properties were domestic sales.

HERRNEIZERMALAEE 2 DERB I EERE
R - SHER AN T ZAME DO RO EWERA
B EREREENA RIS T 1 E B -

RZZE—N\F EFAEHARME69,500,0007T =k

12.7% °

FIEMERHEEDRAE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWED AT

CHANGE IN FAIR VALUES OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTY

The Group has adopted the accounting policy of measuring
investment property by using fair values. Accordingly, gains or
losses arising from the changes in the fair values of investment
property are reflected as profit or loss for the reporting period. The
Group has transferred part of the investment property — phase
| and phase Il of properties under development in prior years.
The Group has engaged RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent
valuer, to value the investment property. According to the valuation
report as at 31 December 2018 issued by RHL Appraisal Limited,
the market value of the investment property — phase Ill as at 31
December 2018 was RMB1.16 billion. Gain of RMB21.8 million was
resulted from the fair values of the investment property in 2018
(2017: nil).

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains in 2018 mainly represented bank interest
income and subsidy income from government. Other income and
gains decreased by approximately 42.0% or RMB59.0 million
from approximately RMB140.6 million in 2017 to approximately
RMB81.6 million in 2018. Decrease in other income and gains was
mainly due to a forfeiture of customer deposit in 2017 but nil in
2018.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
40.6% or RMB43.6 million from approximately RMB107.3 million in
2017 to approximately RMB63.7 million in 2018. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in overseas sales.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 8.1% or
RMB38.6 million from approximately RMB475.6 million in 2017
to approximately RMB437.0 million in 2018. The decrease
in administrative expenses was mainly due to decrease in
research and development expenses and bank charges during
the year. Included in the administrative expenses, there was
one-off expenses of around RMB41 million in relation to asset
reorganisation (as disclosed in the Company’'s announcement
dated 12 February 2018). If excluded such one-off expenses,
administrative expenses were further reduced.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs for 2018 was approximately RMB374.5 million
which were lower than that of 2017 which was approximately
RMB426.3 million. The effective interest rate in 2018 was
approximately 6.0% (2017: 7.3%). Decrease in finance costs was
due to decrease in average interest rate.

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

The Group recorded no impairment on property, plant and
equipment for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB18.0
million).

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses increased by approximately 625.8% or
RMB80.6 million from approximately RMB12.9 million in 2017
to approximately RMB93.4 million in 2018. The increase was
mainly due to loss of disposal of subsidiaries, property, plant
and equipment and compensation incurred in relation to asset
reorganization (as detailed in the Company’s announcement dated
12 February 2018) during the year.

EXCHANGE GAIN/(LOSS), NET

The Group recorded exchange gain of approximately RMB16.2
million in 2018 as compared to exchange loss of approximately
RMB44.1 million in 2017. The exchange gain was mainly due to
depreciation of HKD against RMB which resulted in an exchange
gain on RMB liability.

INCOME TAX CREDIT
Income tax credit increased from RMB14.6 million in 2017 to
RMB113.4 million in 2018.

Deferred tax credit was recorded in 2018 as the Group expects
there will be gain on disposal of land in Panyu. For more
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
12 February 2018 and 27 February 2019.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the reasons discussed above, the Group recorded a
loss of approximately RMB498.9 million in 2018 (2017: RMB873.8
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED AT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES RBESRUBER
The following table sets out certain information regarding the TERENEBAASEBE T —LtF R —\F
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows for the years ended TZA=T+T-BIEFENGEReRERNE T ER:

31 December 2017 and 2018:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—RHLEE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AE#FT
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHMERENEFE 43,614 557,662
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BEZESME/(FR)ASREFHE
activities 8,075 (211,064)
Net cash flows used in financing activities B E EEFFTRAR SR E/F5E (51,783) (911,558)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IR& NIBEEEWR L FHE (94) (564,960)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHFSREREFH
The Group’s net cash inflows from operating activities decreased AEENKEEEHMERERAFER_ZT—tF
from approximately RMB557.7 million in 2017 to approximately 4N R ¥557,700,000C  BE - NFHOARE
RMB43.6 million in 2018. The decreased net cash inflows from 43,600,0007C - L EEEHAEREMAFHERL T E
operating activities were primarily due to the combined effect HREAUNTEEME: (\hKEaEE: (VFE B
of (i) loss before taxation; (ii) decrease in inventories, pledged AP ERITF R E A FE S FIE R ERT B AR+ K (i)
bank deposit, and other payables and accruals; and (iii) increase B HRWERF FENRIE A Bl HIEREMmEE -
in trade receivables, prepayments, other receivables and other ERNEERESENERERIEG M.
assets, contract liabilities and trade payables.
NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING RETEHMEB (FRREREFE
ACTIVITIES
The Group’s net cash flows used in investing activities of AEENKREEHFRAEREFEH_ZT—LFL
approximately RMB211.1 million in 2017 changed to net cash flows AR #211,100,000t B2 = — \NFHREEFH AT
from investing activities of approximately RMB8.1 million in 2018. BIR M= IFELHARS,100,0007T < R € i 2558
The change in net cash flows were mainly due to the combined BPEHETZANGEUNTHEMNE: )V FREHEME
effect of (i) disposal of property, plant and equipment and land, and E R Rt MM A R()FRNEES
receipt of government grant; and (ii) purchase of property, plant Y RE KRR

and equipment during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash flows used in financing activities decreased
from approximately RMB911.6 million in 2017 to approximately
RMB51.8 million in 2018. The net cash outflows were mainly
resulted from the combined effect of (i) the borrowing of new
interest-bearing loans and other borrowings and amounts due
to a director of approximately RMB3,659.2 million and (ii) the
repayment of bank loans, other borrowings and finance lease
rental payment and its associated interest and payment of interest
of approximately RMB3,711.0 million.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operating
transactions are settled in Renminbi except for export sales and
overseas borrowings which are mostly denominated in US dollar.
Most of its assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi.
Although the Group may be exposed to foreign currency exchange
risks, the Board does not expect that future currency fluctuations
would materially impact the Group’s operations. The Group did not
adopt formal hedging policies nor instruments of foreign currency
for managing the exchange risk exposure during the year ended
31 December 2018.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group invested
approximately RMB22.5 million for the upgrading of property, plant
and equipment. These capital expenditures were fully financed by
internal resources and bank borrowings.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group guaranteed RMB128.2 million
(2017: RMB174.1 million) to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties for mortgage facilities.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group guaranteed RMB538.9 million
(2017: RMB217.8 million) to joint venture for banking facilities in
Saudi Arabia of which RMB333.5 million (2017: RMB200.5 million)
was utilized by the joint venture.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWED AT

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged certain property, plant and equipment, land
use rights, time deposits, certain properties under development
and completed properties held for sale with an aggregate net
book value of approximately RMB833.4 million (2017: RMB1,477.5
million), RMB618.6 million (2017: RMB1,003.4 million), RMB426.6
million (2017: RMB413.7 million), RMB1,105.9 million (2017:
RMB1,355.9 million) and RMB373.9 million (2017: nil) respectively
as at 31 December 2018 to secure bank loans granted to the
Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated based on the sum of bank
loans, other borrowings and short term notes divided by total
assets. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 were approximately 62.5% and 57.3%, respectively.

On 27 April 2017, the Company entered into a note purchase
agreement (the “Note Purchase Agreement”) with an investment
fund, pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue, and
the investment fund agreed to purchase from the Company,
HK$155,000,000 8% notes due in April 2020 (the “Notes”).
Pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, specific performance
obligations (the “Specific Performance Obligations”) are imposed
on Mr. Chen Chang, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
during the term of the Note Purchase Agreement including (i)
Mr. Chen Chang, directly or indirectly, holds or owns more than
50% of the voting rights of the Company; or (ii) the controlling
shareholder of the Company has management control of the
Company. Any breach of the Specific Performance Obligations may
constitute a breach under the Note Purchase Agreement, pursuant
to which the investment fund is entitled to redeem the Notes
immediately upon the occurrence of the breach in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Notes.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB6,255.1 million, of which approximately 68%
(2017: 35%) were long term borrowings and approximately 32%
(2017: 65%) were short term borrowings. Included in the total
borrowings, (i) there was a bank loan of RMB490 million that was
overseas loan under domestic guarantee ( R{R%MNE ) which was
secured by bank deposit in PRC; (ii) there was a shareholder’s
loan of RMB1.68 billion which was paid by Guangdong YueCai
(as disclosed in the announcement dated 12 February 2018).
Such shareholder’s loan will be set-off against the consideration
under a disposal agreement (as disclosed in the announcement
dated 27 February 2019); (iii) loan of RMB1.47 billion in relation
to the property development business. Net borrowings under steel
pipe business was around RMB2,616.9 million. The Group had
to finance its working capital of steel pipe business by short term
borrowings as around 90% of the cost of sales was incurred on
the procurement of steel plates and steel coils. Once the Group
received sales proceeds from its customers, it would then repay
the short term borrowings. Taking into account the Group’s cash in
hand and the available banking facilities of RMB86.4 million, the
Group had sufficient liquidity and was in a strong financial position
to repay its short term borrowings.

As at 31 December 2018, the current liabilities of the Group
exceeded its current assets by approximately RMB39.7 million.
Phase Il of GDC has been pre-sold in order to increase the
cashflow of the Group. The Group has sufficient cashflow to meet
its short term obligations.

As at 31 December 2018, approximately 46% (2017: 61%) of the
total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi, which carried
interest rates linked to the benchmark lending rate published by
the People’s Bank of China; approximately 41% (2017: 15%) of the
total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi which carried fixed
interest rate; approximately 0% (2017: 0%) of the total borrowings
were denominated in US dollar and HK dollar with interest rates
linked to the London interbank offered rates for US dollar loans
and Hong Kong interbank offered rates for HK dollar loans; and
approximately 13% (2017: 24%) of the total borrowings were
denominated in US dollar which carried fixed interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 12 February 2018, the Group has entered into the Agreement
with Guangdong Yuecai and Guangzhou Asset Management
(collectively the “Investor”) in relation to the cooperation to facilitate
the change of use of Land held by PCKSP from “industrial” to
“residential and commercial” and the disposal of (actual and
deemed) an aggregate of 59% of the equity interest in PCKSP to
the Investor. Chu Kong Steel Pipe Group Co. Ltd (“CKSPG") and
the PCKSP shall complete an asset reorganisation, after which,
the only asset held by the PCKSP shall be the Land. Pursuant
to the Agreement, the Investor shall, by stages, (i) inject capital
into PCKSP and acquire 19% of the equity interest in the PCKSP
for RMB240 million; (ii) implement the asset reorganisation; (iii)
apply for the change of use of the Land; and (iv) acquire 40% of
the equity interest in PCKSP from the CKSPG for a consideration
equivalent to 40% of the fair value of the Land (after the change of
use of the Land).

The very substantial disposal in relation to disposal of 59% equity
interest of PCKSP has been approved by the shareholders of the
Company in extraordinary general meeting held on 19 April 2018.

The capital injection under the Agreement has been completed on
12 October 2018. Guangdong Yuecai has made capital injection
into PCKSP in the amount of RMB240 million and acquired 19% of
the registered capital of PCKSP (on enlarged basis). Following the
completion of the capital injection, PCKSP is now held as to 20%
by Guangdong Yuecai and 80% by CKSPG.

Except the above, the Group had no other material acquisitions or
disposals during the year.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 27 February 2019, the Group has entered into the disposal
agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”) with Guangzhou
Xingchen Consultation Company Limited (EMERZ A B R
A A)) (“Xingchen”), Guangdong Yuecai and Guangzhou Asset
Management in relation to (i) the nomination of Xingchen by the
Guangzhou Asset Management under the terms of the Agreement
as its nominee to acquire 40% equity interest of PCKSP; and
(i) the disposal of the remaining 40% equity interest of PCKSP
to Xingchen, for a total consideration of RMB2,448 million with
a possible payment of the premium of RMB272 million. The
transactions contemplated under the Disposal Agreement will be
subject to the approval of shareholders in extraordinary general
meeting to be held on 16 April 2019. In the event the Disposal
Agreement lapses, the Agreement will remain effective. Details of
the above were disclosed in the Company’s announcement and
circular dated 27 February 2019 and 26 March 2019 respectively.

Apart from the above, there were no significant events subsequent
to 31 December 2018 which would materially affect the Group’s
operating and financial performance as of the date of this report.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

For the year ended 31 December 2018, staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries and other benefits)
were approximately RMB155.4 million (2017: RMB178.0 million).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. The emoluments of the
Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
are decided by the Board, having regard to he Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
Competitive remuneration package is offered to retain elite
employees. Our package includes salaries, medical insurance,
discretionary bonuses, on-job training, other benefits as well as
mandatory provident funds schemes for employees in Hong Kong
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in
the PRC. Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme and
share award scheme, options to subscribe respectively for shares
in the Company or share awards of the Company may be granted
to eligible employees. No share option or share award was granted
under the share option scheme or share award scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 1,110 full time
employees (2017: 1,600 employees). The following set forth the
total number of our staff by functions:

RZE—NF+_A=+—H AE£EEHXE1L11082
BEE (ZZ—+tF:1,60081EE) - T XHIILB A
2lHME TEE:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

Management B 149 170
Production and logistics FERYR 508 721
Sales and marketing HERMIGHERE 31 38
Finance B 7% 31 34
Quality control B2 47 66
R&D g 12 67
Procurement i 12 22
General administration and others —RATER R E A 320 482
Total CE 1,110 1,600

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

In 13th Five-Year Plan for Natural Gas Development, the PRC
government has made it clear that the “13th Five-Year” will be an
important era for the development of natural gas network of the
nation, and the state will coordinate the supply of overseas and
domestic gas resources and the gas demand of different regions
for their economic development and will support the investment
and construction activities in respect of natural gas pipelines
by all participants. In the strategic pathway in Northwest China,
the construction focus will be put on the Pipeline Il (middle
section), Pipeline IV, Pipeline V of West-East Gas Pipeline Project
and to improve the D Line of Central Asia-China Gas Pipeline.
The focus in the strategic pathway in Northeast China will be
Sino-Russian East-Route Natural Gas Pipeline. The focus in the
strategic pathway in Southwest China will be the branch pipelines
of China-Myanmar Natural Gas Pipeline which are to supply gas
to Yunnan, Guizhou, Guangxi, Sichuan, etc. The construction of
LNG terminals and ancillary pipeline network will be accelerated
to facilitate the import of gas by sea. In addition, the government
has also put forward a plan of constructing trunk line network,
including Sichuan-East Gas Pipeline I, Ordos-Anping-Cangzhou
Pipeline, Qingdao-Nanjing Pipeline and national trunk pipelines
which supply gas to cities along the midstream of Yangtze River.
Regional pipeline networks and inter-connected networks include
Zhongwei-Jingbian, Puyang-Baoding, Dongxianpo-Yanshan,
Wugqging-Tongzhou, Haikou-Xuwen, Jianping-Chifeng,
Hangjinqgi-Yinchuan, Chongqging-Guizhou-Guangxi,
Weiyuan-Rongchang-Nanchuan-Fuling pipelines the construction
of which have been completed. More resources will be invested in
the construction of intra-provincial branch gas pipelines to extend
market coverage.
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In the future, we will develop more customers under “The Belt and
Road Initiative” and more international oil company customers.
In light of the positive effects brought by the government’s policy
of promoting the use of natural gas to the domestic market,
we expect the demand for steel pipes will rebound. In fact, the
“13th Five-Year Plan” for oil and gas pipeline networks has been
launched, in which it is expected that by 2020, the crude oil
pipelines, refined oil pipelines and natural gas pipelines would
reach 32,000 km, 33,000 km and 104,000 km, respectively, and
by 2025, the national oil and gas pipeline network would reach
240,000 km with further expanded coverage, optimized structure
and significantly improved capacity of reserve and transmission.
And there are 6 crude oil pipelines and 8 new refined oil pipelines
to be constructed under the plan. Therefore, there would be
another golden era for the development of oil and gas pipelines
during the “13th Five-Year Plan”.

Taking becoming a global leading steel pipe manufacturer as
our long-term strategic target, the Group will seize the current
opportunities of oil and gas development projects to expand our
customer base and market share through biding for global oil and
gas projects and will also continue to leverage its strengths in the
steel pipe industry to obtain more orders.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Chang (R &)

Mr CHEN Chang (Ff &), aged 73, is the chief executive
officer and the chairman of the Board and also a member of
the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr Chen is the father of Ms Chen Zhao Nian and
Ms Chen Zhao Hua (both being the executive Directors). Being
the founder of the Group, Mr Chen is primarily responsible for
the overall management and strategic planning and business
development of the Group. Mr Chen has over 50 years of
experience in areas related to woodwork, machine tool equipment
and lift/escalator equipment and has accumulated abundant
experience and knowledge in the mechanical and electrical
industry. Mr Chen graduated from the graduate school of Sun Yat-
Sen University* (Ff 111X 2) in Guangdong Province in October
1995 majoring in decision management.

Mr Chen has been appointed by several steel pipe related
associations and organisations for various positions, including:

. Member of the Fourth Session of Welded Steel Pipe Academic
Committee of the Steel Rolling Branch Association of the
Chinese Society for Metals* ( Bl & & £ & & il 5 & 5 /1 5 /2
EMESRMEEEEE) (2001)

. Vice president of the China Township Enterprises Association*
(R E4EPZEHEalER) (2004, 2008)

. Vice chairman of the 4th and 5th sessions of the board of
directors of the China Steel Construction Society and the
Steel Pipe Branch Association* (R Ef&AHHBEME S S H
NERERFEFRAEEELEIEER) (2004, 2008)

D Vice chairman of the 4th, 5th and 6th consecutive council
of the Cold-formed Steel Sub-committee of the China Steel
Structure Association* (R Bl & E g 2 S E S E M-
T ANEEESRIEZER) (2004, 2005 and 2010)

. Vice president of the Metallurgical Chamber of Commerce of
the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce* (FF # 2
IEBeI M ER) (2006)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Mr Chen has received various awards, honours qualifications, fROCEERLZERBREEER B1F

including:

«  Honoured by the Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Energy - BBESHIRBEABBRLCEERMLER HEKX
of the Republic of Korea for his contributions to Korean BEREImEERSERE (ZZEZTWFE)

economic development through trade revitalisation (2004)

«  Excellent Entrepreneur in Chinese Private Technology e HEZHAIFEBMSSTATRESEENED
Enterprises awarded by the All-China Federation of Industry & XX (ZZEZTHEHF)

Commerce* (FE2FHTHEBR AT ATEHESRERED
%) (2004)

«  Awarded the First Prize of Science and Technology Awards by s BMNMARBNIARZSRME-SHREE (=
the Guangzhou Municipality People’s Government* (& /I A TELF)
EBFTRRIE RN &% — %815 E) (2007)

«  Awarded as authority expert of welded pipe industry by the s FRHEBRERERBETAEETERRER (=
Chinese International Authority Expert's Association* ( # TELF)
BERIRBETRREEITERRNER) (2007)

e The invention of “three-roller forming technology and s FH-BWAATELEZETEESEBEERERE
equipment” was awarded the gold prize in the Sixth Session ERrXEcRRERREASTERERE MHE
of International Exhibition of Inventions and outstanding award EERTREFE(ZZEZENF)
by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Personnel and the
Guangdong Province Intellectual Property Department* ( % A5
TEAMTERSBEVEENERERARES L RESHER
BEREAFTERERENREERT AEFE) (2008)

«  Outstanding Individual in Earthquake Relief in Guangzhou* o BENTHmERKEEBAA(ZZTENG)
(BMmin B k& EA) (2008)

+  The Fourth Invention and Entrepreneur Award by the China o HFHEMEHEENEERAERE] (ZETH
Steel Association* (B 8§t & 5 /0 j5« SRR AIZE 48") (2009) F)

»  Guangzhou Model Labour* ( &/ 1% B)1E &) (2009) s ENWEHEH (ZZTZTNF)

+  First Prize of Science and Technology Award in Guangdong o EHBBEEIERMERIEMRMATMELES
Province ( &R & Bl 2 iy # — % %) for the research and BERAMBRMBE-—FR(ZT—FF)

development of LSAW manufacturing process and technology
and its series of products (2010)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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T \FFERE

Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur* (EMMEHFLER)
(2011)

Nationwide Outstanding Entrepreneur* (2 HEHF P ER)
(2012)

Guangzhou Outstanding Contribution Award for Science and
Technology* ( EM B2 iy ze 1 5 Bl 58) (2012)

Outstanding Industrial Province of Science and Technology in
the PRC’s iron and steel industry* (R EA# T2 EFRE T
¥%)(2012)

Guangzhou Figure of Focus* (FE Yt # A ¥) (2012)

The Outstanding Entrepreneur for the Competition of the Top
10 Guangzhou Construction Project in 2012* (2012F [ E R

ETEIRSHHRERBEEFR) (2013)

Outstanding Contribution Award for Innovation in Guangzhou*

(BN R 81 B B2 58 B 81 22) (2013)

Top 10 Guangdong Economic Influential Individuals in 2013*

(2013FER T REEREAY)

Nationwide “May 1st” Labour Award* (B h — & 888 E)
(2014)

Gold Prize of the 8th International Invention Exhibition* (£ /)\
[E Bl 22 BH & & 1% ) (2014)

14th World Outstanding Chinese Award* ( 5+ [0 gt 5 £
## A 82) (2015)

National Model Worker* ( 2 B & 8)#£ & ) (2015)

Guangzhou Entrepreneurial Entrepreneur for 30 years* ( &/
BIZE30F N B F K ) (2016)

Gold Prize of the 19th International Invention Exhibition* ( 5

THEREREER ) (2016)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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¢ Yu Shan Outstanding Contribution Award* ( & |1 & # & Bt #2)
(2016)

« 2016 Guangzhou Industry Leader* (2016 E EMN M EXEE
AT (2017)

. The Most Socially Responsible Entrepreneur in Guangzhou*
(BMZRAMEEERBER) (2017)

«  Top Ten Economic Persons in Guangzhou* ( & /I 4 X 48 % &l
Z A1) (2018)

As at the date of this annual report, Mr Chen is the sole director
and sole shareholder of Bournam Profits Limited, which is
interested in 701,911,000 shares of the Company. Together with
Mr Chen’s personal interest of 4,350,000 shares of the Company,
Mr Chen has a total interest of 706,261,000 shares of the
Company.

Ms Chen Zhao Nian (BRJK &)

Ms CHEN Zzhao Nian (FRJK% ), aged 42, is an executive
Director. She is the daughter of Mr Chen Chang (being chairman
of the Board and an executive Director) and also the sister
of Ms Chen Zhao Hua (being executive Director). Ms Chen is
primarily responsible for the daily management and operations
of the Group. Ms Chen joined the Group in October 2002 as vice
general manager after her graduation. Ms Chen obtained her
bachelor's degree in arts from the University of Central Lancashire
in the United Kingdom in June 2000 and her master’'s degree
in accounting from Leeds Metropolitan University in the United
Kingdom in October 2002. Ms. Chen has taken up the following
public duties and has received the following awards:

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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public duties: YN

+  Member of the Standing Committee of 16th Session of NPC in o BMNTEBERFTAAEARFZ (ZZ——F)
Panyu, Guangzhou* (EMMHEBERE T+ SEAKXTZE) (2011)

+  Executive member of the Guangzhou Glory Society* (& /I o BMNmAXEZEXRESRESE(ZE—Z-F)
REBERESESE) (2012)

¢ Vice chairwoman of the Federation of Industry & Commerce e BENTESRIMEHAgNBIERE(ZZ—=
in Panyu District of Guangzhou* (EMNTHREE THEHLE S )
BEIE ) (2012)

¢ President of the Youth Association of Panyu Merchants and . HECBEAEEFEWEeR(ZE—ZF)
Entrepreneurs in Panyu District* (FEEEBHAETFHT
£) (2012)

«  Member of the 12th Executive Committee for Guangzhou e ENMmEBERE+_ERTZEE®ZE(ZE—=
Women* (EM mis 2 £+ _EHRITEEEEE) (2012) F)

+ Chairlady of the Guangzhou Association of Women s EMTERECEZmEeR(ZZE—=%)
Entrepreneurs* (BN M Z S ERIBEEK) (2013)

+  Representative of Guangzhou in the 11th All-China Women s HEZEBIBEAEETEEREMNREX(Z
Federation Conference* (P E2HBEAH AL+ ECERE T — =)
M) (2013)

+  Committee member of the Guangzhou Committee of the 12th s HEARKGHESHRET_EENTZESZE
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (F B A B(ZZ—mF)
REAHEEZE T _EERNTEZEEEE) (2014)

+  Guangzhou Deputy Director of the Federation of Young s BMNTINBSEFAERZEETRIEZA(Z
Entrepreneurs Committee* (EM M IHBESFLEREZE R —mE)

BElIE) (2014)

. Committee member of the 12th Guangdong Provincial . =
Women’s Federation, the Executive Committee* ( & 8 & 7 B F
B+ -_ERZEEBEEE) (2014)

«  Vice President of Guangdong Province Private Enterprises s BEREREBECGEREFEEFRESIASER(ZE

Investment Development Association* ( ER & K& ¥ 18 & 5 —h5F)
ER#EealgR) (2015)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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. Vice President of Guangdong Province Association of Women
Entrepreneurs* (ERE XX KB G EIE &) (2015)

. Executive Vice President of Guangdong Province Association
of Public Affairs* (BEREHEARREFEBEETR) (2015)

*  Vice President of Guangzhou Taxpayers Association* (&N
M AMERIER) (2015)

. Representative of the 15th People’s Congress of Guangzhou

City (ENMWmE+REARKEAZNRER) (2016)

«  President of Guangdong Women and Children’s Fund* (&=
ARAZREESEHEER) (2017)

. Member of the 12th Executive Committee for National
Women’s Federation* (2EEHE+ —_EHTEZE82%8)
(2018)

awards:
. the 8th Civilised Family with Five Distinctive Merits by the All-
China Women’s Federation* (FFE 2R A€ E \ERL

MR EE) (2012)

. Female Pace Setter with Great Contribution (National Level)*

(ZEMEZENZEL) (2013)

. Most Charismatic Woman in 60 years of Guangzhou Loving
Hearts* (28 & J604F fx B 7 20 1% ) (2013)

«  Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur Honors* ( E M & F 1

¥%) (2013)

. Guangdong Outstanding Women Entrepreneur Honours* ( &

REEBHTLER") (2013)

«  March 8th Flag Bearer” of Guangzhou* (BT = \4AIEF")
(2010-2013)

«  Outstanding Women Entrepreneur* (£t Al 2 Z 14 ) (2014)

. Guangdong Province Top Ten Outstanding Scholarly Home*

(BERETAEFERZK") (2014)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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«  Ten Outstanding Young Entrepreneur* (t1{EEFEFL¥XK)
(2015)

«  Guangdong Top Ten “ Charity Contribution Award™ ( &% + 1
“EEFRIE") (2015)

. Top 10 Guangdong Business New Individuals in 2015* (2015
BRE AT RFHEAY) (2016)

«  Diamond Award of Charity Figures* (20164 S22 AR
#2) (2016)

«  Guangzhou New Generation Outstanding Entrepreneur* ( & /!
FEREBSRER) (2016)

«  Outstanding CEO (20164 £ #: i CEO ) (2016)

« the 1st National Civilized Family* (£ —E2 B X AR E)
(2016)

«  Award of 2nd Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur* ( % — f& & i &
PEKHKE) (2017)

. 2017 District “Industry Talent Urgently Needed Shortage”*
(2017FE R [EEZFTERAL | %) (2017)

o Panyu District Integrity Family Award* (&8 & B2 R fE12)
(2018)

. Top 10 Guangzhou Most Beautiful Philanthropist Families*

(2018 F EREM M + RAEEZEZSKE) (2018)

Ms Chen Zhao Hua (BR k)

Ms CHEN Zhao Hua (FRJKEE) | aged 40, is an executive Director.
She is the daughter of Mr Chen Chang (being the Chairman of the
Company and executive Director) and also the sister of Ms Chen
Zhao Nian (being executive Director). Ms Chen is primarily
responsible for handling domestic and overseas marketing
activities, sales and business relationships with customers as well
as sales agents. Ms Chen joined the Group in December 2002
after her graduation. Ms Chen obtained a bachelor's degree in
international business from the University of Lancashire, the United
Kingdom in June 2001, a master’'s degree in international business
Law from the University of Nottingham, the United Kingdom in
December 2002 and a master’'s degree in business administration
of senior management from University of Tsinghua, Beijing, the
PRC in June 2016. Ms Chen is the executive vice president of
the Guangdong International Overseas Chinese Chamber of

Commerce.
* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Ping (BR )

Mr CHEN Ping (BR¥ ) , aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 January 2010. Mr Chen is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr Chen graduated from the Jinan University, the PRC in 1984
majoring in finance and later obtained a doctoral degree in finance
in Nankai University, the PRC in December 1990. Mr Chen has
lectured at the Lingnan College, Sun Yat-Sen University for
more than 28 years in Guangdong Province, the PRC, teaching
international finance. He is currently the head of Marine Economic
Research Centre of Sun Yat-Sen University (/8 ¥ & 5 35 &
[£x) . Mr Chen also assumed various posts in societies and clubs
concerning economics and finance, such as a council member
at International Finance Society of China* (B HE & @MEgE),
International Finance Society* (B} € g2 € ) and China Society
of World Economics* (R Bt R4 EZ &) . Mr Chen is also
engaged in academic researches with focuses on finance theories
and policies, global economics and so forth, and has published a
number of essays and publications. As an experienced professor,
Mr Chen has won various awards for the lecture materials used
and also for the essays published. In 1997, Mr Chen’s teaching
materials entitled International finance* ( (B £ &) ) was
awarded National Educational Achievement Award — Second
Class* (BIR#ZZEE Z—F %) by the Committee of Education of the
PRC. In May 2002, Mr Chen'’s paper entitled Study on the effect of
merger and acquisition of listed companies on wealth* ( ( ETH 2R
FAFROTEEN D E R EM ) ) was selected for the Best Paper
Award of the 9th Global Finance Association Annual Conference
by the 9th GFA Annual Conference Program Committee. In 2005,
Mr Chen’s teaching and research achievements entitled
Exploration and practice of educational internationalisation* ( (%
ERELNFEREERE) ) was awarded Guangdong Province
Educational Achievement Award — First Class* (EEREHEK R
—%4%) . In 2006, Mr Chen was selected as talented person for
Ministry of Education New Century Outstanding Person Support
Scheme* (M B B # 42 E F A4 X #F&TE) . In 2007, Mr Chen
received Bao Steel Outstanding Teacher Award* ( & $f - JE JE &
F#AE14E) . Mr Chen was an independent director of Guangzhou
Zhujiang Brewery Group Co., Ltd.* (BEMEKTEABRMDERAA]) ,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with effect from
10 October 2016. Mr Chen was an independent director of Rising
Nonferrous Metals Share Co., Lid* (ERBESBRHER AT,
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and resigned
from such post with effect from 13 April 2015. Mr Chen was an
independent director of Guangdong By-health Biotechnology Co.,
Lid* (BRSEBREMRIERMHERAF), a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and resigned from such post with
effect from 25 September 2014.

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Mr See Tak Wah (HEfE %)

Mr SEE Tak Wah (jEf2 %), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 January 2010. Mr See is
also the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr See
graduated from the Management School of Waikato University in
New Zealand with first class honours in Bachelor of Management
Studies. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Australia and New Zealand, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr See has over 33 years of
experience in financial and general management as he previously
worked as the regional business controller of Nokia Mobile Phones
Asia Pacific, the managing director of Nokia Mobile Phones Hong
Kong, the chief operating officer of First Mobile Group Holdings
Limited and held key management positions in the North Asia
offices of Philips and Siemens. Mr See currently runs his own
strategic consultancy business. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Tesson Holdings Limited, which is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1201). In
addition, he was an independent non-executive director of Sun
East Technology (Holdings) Limited, which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 0365), and resigned
from such post with effect from 27 September 2016.

Mr Tian Xiao Ren ( HEZ))

Mr TIAN Xiao Ren (B %)), aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 August 2014. Mr Tian
is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr Tian graduated from Zhejiang Radio and
Television University in the PRC in 1985 and studied the Master
of Business Administration Degree at Hangzhou University in the
PRC from 1995 to 1998. He was appointed as vice chairman of
Bank of China Group Investment Company Limited from 2006 to
2013. Prior to 2006, Mr Tian was the president of Bank of China
of Guangdong Province and Jiangxi Province, the PRC and the
Vice-President of Bank of China of Zhejiang Province, the PRC for
26 years. He has over 31 years of experience in the banking and
financial field. Mr Tian is now a senior economist in the PRC and is
entitled to the special subsidy awarded by the state council of the
People’s Republic of China in recognition of his contribution to the
economy of China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Liu Yonghe ( BI5k )

Ms LIU Yonghe (#I3k#j) , aged 50, joined PCKSP in June 1994
and had worked as accounting staff and financial manager. Ms Liu
has acquired profound experience in financial management,
accounting and auditing during her employment with PCKSP for
over 23 years. Ms Liu is now the vice general manager and a
director of PCKSP responsible for cash flow and working capital
control. She completed her professional accounting education at
Lanzhou University of Finance and Economics, the PRC in 1990
with a bachelor's degree in economics and obtained professional
qualification as assistant accountant in 1991. Ms Liu has over 26
years of experience in the accounting and finance industry. She
was awarded the “March 8th Flag Bearer” in 1999 and 2002, and
the post she held was awarded as the Women’s Exemplary Post
by the Guangzhou Women’s Union in March 2005. In October
2009, Ms Liu obtained a master’'s degree in the Executive Master
of Business Administration (EMBA) programme at the Asia
International Open University (Macau).

Ms Wong Pui Shan ( Z %)

Ms WONG Pui Shan ( E¥iH}) , aged 42, joined the Group in April
2011 as the chief financial officer and company secretary of the
Company. She is responsible for corporate finance management
and company secretarial work of the Group. Ms Wong received her
Master of Science in Finance from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Bachelor of Arts Degree (Hons) in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Prior to joining the
Company, she had served international audit firms for four years
and listed companies as financial controller and company secretary
for more than 16 years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Wong Pui Shan ( Z 3 H})

Ms WONG is the company secretary of the Company. Ms Wong
is working for the Company on a full time basis. Details of her
biography are set out above in this section.
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The Directors hereby present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company include
manufacture and sales of welded steel pipes. The Group is also
engaged in the property development and investment.

Details of the company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2018 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 106 to 262.

The Directors did not recommend payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements, is set out on pages 263 to 264. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

At 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for

distribution to the Shareholders in accordance with the Articles of
Association were nil.
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The reserves of the Group available for distribution depend on
the dividend distributable by the Company’s subsidiaries. For
dividend purpose, the amount which the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC can legally distribute by way of dividend is determined
by reference to their distributable profits as reflected in the PRC
statutory financial statements which are prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the PRC. These
distributable profits differ from those that are reflected in the
Group’s financial statements prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”").

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, sales to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 35% of the total revenue
of the Group, and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 9%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 32% of the total cost of sales of the Group, and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to 11%. None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Chang (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian

Ms. Chen Zhao Hua

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Ping

Mr. See Tak Wah

Mr. Tian Xiao Ren

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from Mr. Chen Ping,
Mr. See Tak Wah and Mr. Tian Xiao Ren, and as at the date of this
report, the Company considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 51 to 60 of this annual report.

In accordance with article 105(A) of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Chen Chang and Mr. Chen Ping will retire and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has renewed the service contract
with the Company for a term of three years on 1 February 2019.
Each of our independent non-executive Directors (except Mr. Tian
Xiao Ren (“Mr. Tian”)) has renewed the letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of two years commencing from 1
February 2018 and is subject to termination by either party giving
not less than one month’s written notice. Mr. Tian has renewed
the letter of appointment with the Company for a term of two years
commencing from 1 August 2018 and is subject to termination by
either party giving not less than one month’s written notice. The
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee have
reviewed the terms of service contracts and letters of appointment
of all Directors.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference
to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares or
underlying shares or, as the case may be, the percentage in the
equity interest and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571) (the’SFO”")), which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they have taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by
the Company referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors (the
“Model Code”) of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as
follows:

Shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEpns 514
Chen Chang Interest of controlled corporation (note 1)
4= —RREH ARz EwE (L)
Personal interest
18 A HE =
Note:

1. These shares are held by Bournam Profits Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen
Chang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Chang is deemed to be
interested in the 701,911,000 shares held by Bournam Profits Limited.

2. Bournam has pledged 525,742,000 shares of the Company,
representing 52.0% of total number of issued shares of the Company,
in favour of independent parties.
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Shares of Associated Corporation

Mr. Chen Chang beneficially owns the entire issued share capital
of Bournam Profits Limited, which is the beneficial owner of about
69.85% of the issued shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN MATERIAL
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement or material contracts, to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director is or was materially interested, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates,
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23 January 2010, pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed
by the then sole shareholder of the Company, the Company
adopted its share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme” or
the “Scheme”). The details of the Scheme are disclosed below
pursuant to the requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme: the purpose of the
Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group.
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Participants of the Share Option Scheme include:

(a) any employee (whether full time or part time, including
any executive Director but excluding any non-executive
Director) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any
equity entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any members of
the Group holds an equity interest;

(b) any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement and
growth of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme: the total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and other share
option scheme of the Group (if any) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the day on which
trading of the shares commence on the Main Board (i.e. not
exceeding 100,000,000 shares). Up to the date of this annual
report, no options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme and thus the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme remained 100,000,000
shares, representing about 9.89% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of the annual report.
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4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme: for any 12-month period, shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being.

5. Period within which the securities must be taken up under
an option: an option may be accepted by a participant within
21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on a day after the date upon
which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end
in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant
of the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

6. The minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised: unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of options to a
grantee, there is no such minimum period.

7. The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option: a nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

8. Basis for determining the exercise price: such price will be a
price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

9. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme: the Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on
23 January 2010, being the date on which the Share Option
Scheme was adopted.

From the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to

31 December 2018, no share option has been granted or agreed to
be granted to any person under the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME IR 17 2R B =t &)

On 22 March 2012, the Board approved the adoption of the share RITE——F=ZfF-+_-_H EEFeHEFNRHDE
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”). EhEt & (TR D BEmEt &) -

1. Purpose of the Share Award Scheme: the purpose of the 1. BRHOERBFHIZEN:-KROHOEZBFTEHZEN 2

Share Award Scheme is to recognise the contributions by and
to give incentives to certain eligible persons in order to retain
them for the continuing operation, growth and development
of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

2. Operation of the Share Award Scheme: the Share Award 2.

Scheme shall be administered by the Board in accordance
with the rules of the Share Award Scheme. The trustee
shall hold the shares and the income derived therefrom in
accordance with the terms of the trust deed.

The Board may select any grantee for participation in the
Share Award Scheme as a selected grantee (the “Selected
Grantee”) and determine the number of awarded shares and
inform the trustee and the Selected Grantee(s) accordingly.

The Board shall either before or after identification of the
Selected Grantee(s) (i) cause the Company to directly instruct
a licensed securities dealer to purchase the awarded shares
and settle payment for the awarded shares and deliver the
awarded shares to the trustee subsequently; or (ii) cause
to be paid to the trustee (either by way of contribution or
loan from the Company’s funds) (a) the sum of purchasing
the shares and the related purchase expenses or (b) the
nominal or such other amount required for the subscription
of the awarded shares by the trustee as soon as practicable
to purchase the awarded shares required (the “Reference
Amount”).

Within 30 business days on which the trading of the shares
has not been suspended (or such longer period as the Trustee
and the Board may agree from time to time) after receiving
the reference amount, the Board shall instruct the trustee
to apply the same towards the subscription of shares at the
benchmarked price as stipulated in the Listing Rules from
time to time or the purchase of the awarded shares from the
market during a specific period and at a specific price range
as instructed by the Company.

68 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

REETAEBATEEHZERMYEH SR TR
B BRUGEBREEERAEB ZHELE 18
ERBERMN LW ABEAT MAE — P H
PAREEER-

iy RE)FHE 2B R REAEBHESES
RERD EZRAE ZRAUNEE -ZEABREE
ARBGRFFERD RBHELEZRA -

EFEeUHEEMARARLRERARA (&
BEABRAD B2 RBERN RS RORER
BROEE  YHEAEITEARLEEARA -

EEGRYERLERTEARAZASKZ%E ()R
EARRBERBREEELRZ I EEAZBRS -
Wt BER D & & ERERMH TR
AR REEATITERTERUBARLQFE
RBFFEXRER AR MZFAAZ (@) A
& RAAEEE R 2 M3k (b) Xt ARE 12
BROAECHES M UWEBAMER
Bkt ([2Z48]) -

REBSZEeBRBENIELEEE 2 =+EZ
FARIAABEETSARTFHE 2 BRYME
N EFERETIXTIADARZESE UK
ERRAUARTAZEEBEBRRBERD R
EHMBARARRBE R ZEEERBE KH5
A RE A

Annual Report 2018



REPORT OF DIRECTORS

EEEHREE

Awarded shares and related income held by the trustee
upon the trust and which are referable to a Selected Grantee
shall vest to that Selected Grantee on the vesting date.
The Board may also, in its absolute discretion, determine
the performance, operating and financial targets and other
criteria, if any, to be satisfied by the Selected Grantee before
the awarded shares can vest.

The trustee shall not be obliged to exercise any voting rights
and powers in respect of any shares held under the trust
(including but not limited to the awarded shares, the returned
shares, any bonus shares and scrip shares) until such shares
have been transferred to the relevant Selected Grantee.

Participants of the Share Award Scheme: any employee or
director (including, without limitation, any executive, non-
executive or independent non-executive directors) of any
member of the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

Share Award Scheme limit: the Board shall not make any
further award of awarded shares which will result in the
number of shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Scheme representing more than ten per cent. of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the first date
of each financial year during the term of the Share Award
Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Award Scheme: the maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to an award or awards to a Selected Grantee who
is an independent non-executive Director of the Company
at any one time shall not in aggregate exceed 0.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the first date of
the relevant financial year of the Company and the aggregate
value of which shall not exceed HK$5,000,000 (based on the
closing price of the shares on the business day immediately
preceding the vesting date) as at the vesting date.

The maximum number of shares which may be subject to an
award or awards to any Selected Grantee at any one time
shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the first date of the relevant financial
year of the Company.

The duration of the Share Award Scheme: subject to any
early termination of the Share Award Scheme as may be
determined by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on 22
March 2012.
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From the date of adoption of the Share Award Scheme and up to
31 December 2018, no share has been awarded or granted to any
person under the Share Award Scheme.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme, at
no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements which would enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief
executive of the Company) have an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or have
otherwise been notified to the Company:

Shares of the Company

Name Capacity

wE/EB 514

Bournam Profits Limited Beneficial owner (note 1)

BEamEA A (LD

Hammer Capital Private
Investments Limited
(Hammer Capital)

EEELREEERERAT

(TBFER])

Beneficial owner (Note 3)
EmER A (HF3)

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 3)
SPEEE R (MEE3)

Cheung Siu Fai
SRR

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 3)
ZEEE g (EE3)

Tsang Ling Kay Rodney
B4R
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Note:

1. The entire share capital of Bournam is solely and beneficially owned
by Mr. Chen Chang. Mr. Chen is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the 701,911,000 shares held by Bournam.

2. Bournam has pledged 525,742,000 shares of the Company,
representing 52.0% of total number of issued shares of the Company,
in favour of independent parties.

3. On 18 October 2018, the Company issued unlisted warrants in the

aggregate amount of HK$313,320,000 to Hammer Capital, which
confer the holder the right to subscribe for up to 373,000,000 Shares.

On 22 June 2018, the Company entered into the loan amendment
deed with Hammer Capital for a further advance of HK$250 million to
the Company. In return for the further advance, the Company agreed
to issue the unlisted warrants to Hammer Capital. Each unlisted
warrant will give the holder the right to subscribe for an ordinary share
of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company. The warrants
confer upon the holder the right to subscribe for up to HK$313,320,000
for new shares at the initial subscription price of HK$0.84. Accordingly,
a maximum number of 373,000,000 warrant shares (the aggregate
nominal value of such shares being HK$37,300,000) can be issued
upon exercise in full of the subscription rights. The issue price of the
unlisted warrants was HK$0.168 per warrant. The proceeds from the
issue price of unlisted warrants was used to settle expenses incurred
in connection with the loan amendment deed. As at the date of this
annual report, no warrant has been exercised. In addition, Hammer
Capital also held security interest in 49,600,000 Shares. Each of
Mr. Cheung Siu Fai and Mr. Tsang Ling Kay Rodney had 50% control
of Hammer Capital and deemed to be interested in the Shares which
Hammer Capital was interested in by virtue of the SFO. Please refer
to the Company’s announcements dated 22 June 2018 and 25 June
2018 and the Company’s circular dated 17 September 2018 for further
details regarding the issue of unlisted warrants.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company,

nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the

Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 76 to 95.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Purchase of Spare Parts from Guangzhou City Pearl
River Machine Tool Works Co., Ltd* ( BN/ BRI KA
R2FE)

On 4 December 2012, the Group entered into the spare parts
purchase agreement with Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine
Tool Works Co., Ltd.* (BMMHK/IHEKEAER QR (*GZMT") for
a term of three years commenced on 1 January 2013 and ended
on 31 December 2015. On 4 December 2015, the parties entered
into a new spare parts purchase agreement to renew the terms
of the original spare parts purchase agreement for a further three
years. Pursuant to the spare parts purchase agreements, the
Group agreed to purchase spare parts of the machines used for
the manufacture and processing of steel pipes from GZMT, with
the annual cap for each of the three years ended 31 December
2015 being RMB28 million, RMB30 million and RMB32 million, and
the annual cap for each of the three years ending 31 December
2018 being RMB30 million, RMB32 million and RMB34 million
respectively (the “Proposed Annual Caps”). During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group did not purchase spare parts
from GZMT, which was within the annual cap. Such spare parts
purchase transactions were conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group and on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable to the Group than those available
to independent third parties and in accordance with the purchase
agreement. Details of the above transactions are set out in note 41
to the financial statements.

GZMT is a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of machine tools.
GZMT is ultimately, wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen
Chang, the controlling shareholder and chairman of the Company,
and is therefore an associate of Mr. Chen Chang and a connected
person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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As the Group is involved in the manufacture and sales of welded
steel pipes and the provision of related manufacturing services, it
purchases spare parts of the machines used for the manufacture
and processing of steel pipes. Such spare parts were and will
be used by the Group as components for (i) the repair and
maintenance of its machines and production lines; and (ii) the
installation of new production lines and new production facilities.
Some of the spare parts are general accessory items and some
of them are required to be tailor-made, thus ancillary processing
work on the spare parts is required. The design of the spare parts
is provided by the Group. During the considerably long period of
purchasing spare parts from GZMT, GZMT have been a reliable
source of supply, in terms of being capable of providing spare
parts with the required technical and quality standards that suit the
Group’s needs and for keeping confidentiality of the design for the
spare parts provided by the Group.

The purchases of spare parts set out above constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules,
as one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for the above
transactions are more than 0.1% but all are less than 5%, the
spare parts purchase transactions are only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements set out in Rules 14A.71 to
14A.72 of the Listing Rules but are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements and are subject to the annual
review requirement under Rules 14A.55 to 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. Announcements were published on 4 December 2012 and
4 December 2015 regarding the above transactions in accordance
with the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has complied
with the relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in so far as they are applicable.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out in note 41 to the financial
statements and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to
independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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The Directors had received a letter from Ernst & Young, the
auditors of the Company, confirming that the continuing connected
transactions (i) had been approved by the Board; (ii) were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company; (iii) had been
entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and (iv) had not exceeded the cap amount for
the financial year ended 31 December 2018 as set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 December 2015.

On 30 December 2016, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine Tool Works
Co., Ltd.* (BINM IR IR B R Q7)) (“GZMT”) for the purchase
of spare parts and production line (“Purchase Transaction”) from
the latter for the maintenance of machines, installation of rolling
line electrical drive system equipment and transformation of steel
transportation system of bimetal composite plate processing plant
in Lianyungang, the PRC. The consideration for the Purchase
Transaction is approximately RMB173.6 million. The purchase of
the spare parts and production line is mainly for the construction
of the bimetal composite plate processing plant in Lianyungang,
the PRC as per the Company’s announcement dated 18 November
2016 and the circular dated 9 January 2017. GZMT is ultimately,
wholly and beneficially, owned by Mr. Chen Chang, the controlling
shareholder and chairman of the Company, and is therefore an
associate of Mr. Chen Chang and a connected person of the
Company. The Purchase Transaction was duly passed by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting on 19 June 2017. As at 31 December 2018, the
amount due from a related party of approximately RMB118.9
million was the advance payment to GZMT for the Purchase
Transaction.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD HREHREE

Apart from above, there are no significant events subsequent bR EXPritEIN AREEBR - NF+_A=+—
to 31 December 2018 which would materially affect the Group's HETEEXNFERERGEVBREAHAEED
operating and financial performance as of the date of consolidated LERMBREAZHERNZE -

financial statements.

AUDITORS ¥ B M

The Company has appointed Ernst & Young as auditors of the RARARBEALKEHMEFAMEEAARBE=Z
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018. A resolution will —N\F+Z A=+ HLEFENZEM -EHEEFZ
be proposed for approval by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM FLRKEEHMEBARRBZERARER G IE
to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company. ERFEFAE LRGSR R E -

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD REEEE

Chen Chang 5

Chairman 2

Hong Kong BB

29 March 2019 —E-AF=ZR=TANH
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximising shareholders’ returns.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. The Board
considers that up to the date of this annual report, in the opinion
of the Board, saved as disclosed in section “Chairman and Chief
Executive” below, the Company has complied with the CG Code.
The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business
and to review its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure they comply with the evolving regulatory requirements
and to meet the rising expectations of the Shareholders and other
stakeholders.

The following summarises the Company’s corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(A) Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation
The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, internal control, risk management systems,
monitoring the performance of senior management and
determining the policy for corporate governance. The
management is responsible for daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Chairman. The Directors have
the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the
Company.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees including the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Further details
of these Committees are set out below in section B of this
corporate governance report.

The Company had arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and officers of the Company.
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Board Composition
The Board members during the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Chang Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer, Member of
the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee

Ms. Chen Zhao Nian

Ms. Chen Zhao Hua

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Ping Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Member of
the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Mr. See Tak Wah

Mr. Tian Xiao Ren

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Member of
the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors from different
business and professional fields. Mr. Chen Chang, Ms. Chen
Zhao Nian and Ms. Chen Zhao Hua are members of the same
family. Mr. Chen Chang is the father of both Ms. Chen Zhao
Nian and Ms. Chen Zhao Hua.

Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship among
members of the Board. The profiles of each Director and the
relationships among the Directors are set out in the “Profile
of Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective delivery of the Board functions. The
number of independent non-executive Directors constitutes
more than one-third of the Board. A list containing the names
of the Directors and their roles and functions is published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company at
www.pck.com.cn.
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The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

Upon reviewing the directorships and major commitments
of each Director, and the attendance rate of each Director
at the meetings of the Board and its committees, the Board
is satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time in
performing their responsibilities during 2018.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly for at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also
be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board
meeting is sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a
regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given
to the Directors for ad-hoc Board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communication.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information will be provided to all the
Directors at least 3 days before meetings. All the Directors
will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors
will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for Board meetings. The company secretary of the Company
is responsible for keeping the minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board committees. All minutes are open for
inspection by any Director at reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, six Board
meetings were held.
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The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest. According to current Board practices, any
material transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for
a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company is aware of the requirement under paragraph
A.2.1 of the CG Code that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not separately
have any officer with the title of “chief executive”. Mr. Chen
Chang, the Chairman and founder of the Group, is also
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board, ensuring that all material issues are decided by the
Board in a conducive manner. The Board will meet regularly
to consider major matters affecting the operations of the
Group. The Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Company. The roles of the respective
executive Directors and senior management, who are in
charge of different functions complement the role of the
chairman and chief executive. The Board is of the view that
this structure provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership, facilitates effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies, and
ensures the generation of shareholders’ benefits.

The Board shall nevertheless review the structure from time
to time to ensure appropriate move is being taken should
suitable circumstance arise.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Board is responsible for selection and approval of
candidates for appointment as Directors. The Company has
established a Nomination Committee on 22 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition including the board diversity policy, evaluating the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board and
making recommendations on the appointment of Directors.
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Each of the executive Directors has renewed his/her service
contract with the Company for a period of three years
commencing from 1 February 2019. All of their appointments
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors (except
Mr Tian) has been re-appointed for a term of two years
commencing from 1 February 2018, and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. Mr Tian Xiao Ren has
been re-appointed as independent non-executive Director for
a term of two years commencing from 1 August 2018, and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the re-appointments/
appointment of both executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors and recommended to the Board of
Directors for decision.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and any new Director appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr Chen
Chang and Mr. Chen Ping will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

80 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

HWITEFHCHEARREBEARBEN B
T-NF_A- AR RBM=F -RENZEH
ARBEANRIABERRARmE SR ERBET-

AF o

NN

BEBEUFATER (BRERINEEREFZ T
H-ZE-N\F-_A-BBRFAHEME LARE
ARREBERANRFESRRERETE Ak
AL EENZEABUIFNATEST H_F
—NENA-ARFAHEME XEAREBEARRT
MEERANREFERNEREE-

REZEGCRABTESREIIFNTEEN
BE/ZE IEREEFRENETIRUHERE
o

REAAFABERAN HMEEFHET=F
EVWRESRE-R BEZEUNEMGRRERY
EAHEEANEZEREBERRRE LHKE
EREFE-REAMERMA RELELERRF
FEBRARAEERRBFAG LRE LR
BERBEREBEL

Annual Report 2018



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DEEARE

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, if an
independent non-executive Director serves more than
nine years, his further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders.
As such, although each of Mr. Chen Ping and Mr. See Tak
Wah has served as an independent non-executive Director
for more than nine years, the Board consider that each of
Mr. Chen Ping and Mr. See Tak Wah is a person of integrity
and independent in judgement and character. They are
independent of management and free from any business or
other relationships or circumstances which could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.
The Board considers that each of Mr. Chen Ping and
Mr. See Tak Wah meets the independent guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and is of the view that
their independence is not affected by their tenure with the
Company. The Board believes that their valuable experience
in the Group’s business and their professional knowledge will
continue to generate significant contribution to the Board, the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code and in
accordance to the Company’s Articles of Association, a
separate resolution will be proposed for the re-election of
each of Mr. Chen Chang, Mr. Chen Ping and Mr. See Tak Wah
at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

Training Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

The Directors have endeavoured to keep abreast of the
changes in their responsibilities as a Director and of the
business activities and development of the Company.
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Each newly appointed Director receives formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’'s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. The
Directors have provided to the Company their records of
continuous professional development during the year ended
31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, all Directors
attended seminars and training courses in relation to
corporate governance, Listing Rules update or financial
markets update arranged by professional firms/institutions.
Records of continuing professional development have been
maintained by the company secretary. Besides, the company
secretary also conducted briefings on corporate governance,
directors’ duties and responsibilities and provided materials
for Listing Rules amendments to all Directors for their
reference.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all the
Directors has confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

When the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify
its Directors in advance.
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Non-Competition Undertakings

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed
the confirmations given by Mr Chen Chang and Bournam,
being controlling shareholders of the Company, in respect
of each of their compliance with the non-competition
undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 28 January 2010.

(B) Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”)
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr See Tak Wah and Mr Tian
Xiao Ren. Mr See Tak Wah is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
the internal control and risk management procedures and
systems of our Group. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and the condensed unaudited
consolidated interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2018, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and the Group.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
internal auditor or external auditors before submission to
the Board;

. To review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2018, of which two meetings with
external auditors’ presence, and all members of the Audit
Committee attended all meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report
of the internal auditor on the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems and processes, and the
re-appointment of the external auditors. No major issue on the
internal control system of the Group has been identified.

There were no material uncertainties or events or conditions
that might cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern at the end of 2018 and the date
of this report.

There was no disagreement between the Audit Committee
and the Directors in respect of matters about selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of an external auditor.

The Company had established a whistleblowing policy
and system for employees to raise concerns of possible
improprieties where all concerns are addressed to the Audit
Committee.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2018 and interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Company recognises the benefits of a board that
compose of a balance of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business
development of the Company. The Board has adopted a
board diversity policy in 2013. The Board has reviewed
its composition and considered a number of aspects,
including gender, age, educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service in
accordance with its board diversity policy. The Board consider
that the existing board composition is well diversified and
appropriate to the business development of the Company.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22
March 2012 in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Tian Xiao Ren and Mr Chen Chang.
Mr Chen Ping is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The majority of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are
to review and monitor the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
make recommendations to the Board on matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, and review the board
diversity policy and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy, and
the progress on achieving the objectives.

During the year and up to the date of the annual report,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed the composition
of the Board and made recommendations to the Board for
the re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
the chairman, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and reviewed the board diversity
policy determined the policy for nomination of directors,
nomination procedure process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and all members of the Committee
attended the meeting.
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According to the Nomination Policy adopted by the Company,
appointments of Board members will be made on a merit
basis and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria. The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability
of a candidate include:

. the candidate’s academic background and qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills and
knowledge which are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy);

. the candidate’s relevant experience in the industry;
. the candidate’s character and integrity;

. the candidate’s willingness and capacity to devote
adequate time in discharge of a director’s duties;

. whether the candidate can contribute to the Board a
diversity of perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

. (where the candidate is proposed to be appointed
as an independent non-executive Director) whether
the candidate is in compliance with the criteria of
independence under the Listing Rules; and

. any other factors as may be determined by the Board
from time to time.

In terms of nomination procedures, any Board member
may nominate or invite a candidate for appointment as a
Director to be considered by the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee will then evaluate the personal
profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria set out
above, undertake due diligence in respect of such candidate
and make recommendation for the Board’s consideration
and approval. For nomination of independent non-executive
Director, the Nomination Committee will also assess the
candidate’s independence in accordance with the CG Code
and the Listing Rules. For re-appointment of retiring Directors,
the Nomination Committee will review the candidate’s overall
contribution and performance (including the candidate’s
attendance at Board committee meetings, Board meetings
and general meetings, his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board), and make recommendations to
the Board and shareholders for re-election at general
meetings.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Tian Xiao Ren and Mr Chen Chang.
Mr Tian Xiao Ren is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The majority of them are independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of our Directors and senior management and determine
on behalf of the Board specific remuneration packages
and conditions of employment for our Directors and senior
management. Remuneration will be determined by reference
to the duties and level of responsibilities as well as market
practice and conditions. None of the Directors themselves
approve their own remuneration.

During the year and up to the date of the annual report,
the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy, assessed the performance of executive
Directors and reviewed the remuneration package of
the executive Directors and senior management and
recommended to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and senior management.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held and all members attended
the meeting.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company. Terms of reference
adopted by the Board include the duties of the Board on
corporate governance functions to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management
and to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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The attendance of individual members of the Board and other
Board Committees meetings for the financial year ended 31
December 2018 is set out in the table below:

AGM
BRRAFAE
Executive Directors WES
Mr Chen Chang RELE
(Chairman of the Board) EL3-£59, 11
Ms Chen Zhao Nian BkEZL n
Ms Chen Zhao Hua BokE L+ on
Independent Non-executive BUFATES
Directors
Mr Chen Ping BRELE n
Mr See Tak Wah MmRELE 11
Mr Tian Xiao Ren AEEEE n

Chairman of the Board had a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Executive Directors (save as the chairman himself) during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department of the Group, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
the Group. In the preparation of financial statements, IFRSs
have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies
and statutory requirements have been consistently complied
with. The Board aims to present a clear and balanced
assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual and
interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.
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Directors’ Responsibility on the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s
accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and suitable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
judgements and estimates made are prudent and reasonable;
and the financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 106 to
115 of this annual report.

Management had provided monthly updates to Directors for
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Directors to discharge their duties.

Independent Auditors

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration
paid or payable to the independent auditors, Ernst & Young,
for services rendered is broken down below:

Audit services ZH R T%
Others Hib

EFHYBEHREENL
EFRABEEREEHE_T-N\F+t_A=1t—HI
FREMBBREANGRRE UBRRZSVHREEER
D RN SR EH Y F IR A R sk IR R AR
BenE - ARRNKE NREBEABEBBEER
ENERGEARE -

EXEEEREEN BEREESEEK F
HEER AN ARG ARBBSELE
AERRUMBREK -

B RN 2 A SINES A B R T 7 L B T 3k AR R
BEFEMBRAENAFEREE106EE1158 [ 5
M RE]

ERBCMESRRUSARMEN AEARAZ
KRB RREATRERDER SRR
NEEREITHERE -

BYUZEAT
RBE_Z-N\FT_A=+—BILFE FHA
RERH O ok B 18 3 i BT 2 ok & 5T R B 7
FTH BN R A T -

2018
—E-N%
HKD’000
FHR

3,880
680

Total =

4,560
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(D) Internal Controls

(E)

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system of the Group. The
Company has an internal audit department to ensure effective
internal control system of the Group. The Group’s system
of internal control includes a defined management structure
with limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group
achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The
system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.

The Board has reviewed the internal audit report on
quarterly basis and assessed the effectiveness (according
to its magnitude and significance) of the Group’s internal
control system which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls as well
as risk management functions during the year ended 31
December 2018. No major issue was raised which may affect
shareholders.

The Company has internal procedures on reporting
and disseminating inside information and maintaining
confidentiality.

Company Secretary

The Board appoints its Company Secretary in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and in compliance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. Biographical
details of the current Company Secretary is set out in the
section headed “Directors and senior management” on page
51 to 60 of this annual report. The Company Secretary has
complied with the professional training requirement as set out
in the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2018.

(D) mEpEEE

(E)
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(F) Shareholders’ Rights (F) BRERRER

The Board welcomes shareholders to present their views
and shareholders may at any time submit their questions
and concerns about the Group. Enquiries may be put to the
Board by contacting the Company Secretary through our
shareholders’ email at ir@zhujiang.com.hk. Shareholder(s)
holding not less than one-tenth of Company’s paid-up capital
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
related requisition deposited at the Company’s registered
office and addressing to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
extraordinary general meeting will be held within 2 months
after the deposition of such requisition.

Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person
for election as a Director

Subject to the laws and the provisions of the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Company may from time to time
in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to
be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director. A shareholder may propose a person for election as
a Director by lodging the following documents to the Board
or Company Secretary at our Hong Kong office at Room
1, 15/F., Tower 3, China Hong Kong City, 33 Canton Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong: 1) a notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person (with full name and
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules) for election as a Director; and 2) a notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected as a Director.
Such notices shall be lodged at least 7 clear days before the
date of the general meeting and the period for lodgement of
such notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and shall be at least 7 clear days in length.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantial separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
Directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

R N\FFERE
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G) REEZBARERRNEBER

(G) Investor Relations and Communication With

Shareholders

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.pck.com.cn or http://pck.todayir.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted. A shareholder communication policy is in place to
ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to information of the Company. The policy is
available on the Company’s website.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its shareholders and in particular, through AGMs or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings
for and on their behalf. The chairman of the Board as well as
the chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee will make themselves available
at the AGM to meet with the shareholders.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on
Tuesday, 18 June 2019. The notice of AGM will be sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

The Company attended conferences, roadshows and media
interviews to keep the Shareholders and potential investors
informed of the latest development of the Group. The head
of investor relation will be the primary contact point for
communications with investors and analysts.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on
relevant information on the Group’s business in a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.
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Memorandum and Articles of Association

There was no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year. The latest version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
posted on the Company’s website.

2018 Annual General Meeting

The Board is committed to the constructive use of the AGM
as a forum to meet shareholders. The chairman of the Board
and the chairmans of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and the external
auditors attended the 2018 AGM.

At the 2018 AGM, the Company proposed separate
resolutions on the issues considered. Resolutions passed
at the 2018 AGM were as follows: (i) received the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 together with the reports of the Directors and
auditors of the Company; (ii) re-elected Ms Chen Zhao Nian
as executive Director and Mr Tian Xiao Ren as independent
non-executive Director and authorised the Board to fix the
Directors’ remuneration; (iii) reappointed Ernst & Young as
auditors of the Company and authorised the Directors to fix
its remuneration; (iv) approved a general mandate for the
Directors to allot and issue of new shares of an amount not
exceeding 20 per cent of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the 2018 AGM; (v) approved a
general mandate for the Directors to repurchase shares of an
amount not exceeding 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company'’s issued share capital as at the date
of the 2018 AGM; (vi) extended the general mandate granted
to the Directors of the Company to allot, issue, and deal with
additional shares in the share capital of the Company by an
amount not exceeding the amount of the shares repurchased
by the Company. All resolutions were passed by way of a poll
conducted by the Company’s registrar. The poll voting results
of the 2018 AGM were available on the Company’s website.
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(H)

0

The 2019 annual general meeting (Y2019 AGM”") of the
Company will be held at 7th Floor, W Hong Kong Hotel, 1
Austin Road West, Kowloon Station, Kowloon on Tuesday, 18
June 2019 at 10:30 a.m.

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2019 AGM and
exercise their rights to vote. Shareholders are invited to ask
questions relating to the business of the meeting. Details of
the resolutions to be considered in the 2019 AGM will be set
out in a circular to be sent out to the Shareholders together
with the 2018 annual report.

Others

Share Interests of Senior Management

As confirmed with the senior management of the Company,
they did not hold shares of the Company as at 31 December
2018.

Sufficiency of Public Float
The Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2018.

Dividend Policy
In order to enhance transparency of the Company and
facilitate the shareholders of the Company and investors to
make informed investment decisions relating to the Company,
the Board adopted a dividend policy on 28 March 2019
(“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether
to declare any dividend in the future and the amount of
dividend to be declared, the Company shall consider a

number of factors, including but not limited to:
. the Group’s actual and expected financial results;
. the general economic conditions and other internal or

external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Company;

(H)

M
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. the Company’s business operation strategy, including
expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

. the Company’s liquidity position;

. retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the
Company;

. the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends
imposed by the Company’s lenders and other institutions;
and

. any other factors that the Board considers to be
applicable from time to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration,
payment and amount of dividends will be subject to the
Board’s discretion. The Board will review the Dividend Policy
on a regular basis.
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The Group cares about the community and adheres to an
ingrained culture of fulfilling its social responsibilities by giving a
much-needed boost to the environment in Guangdong Province,
China and other regions in which it operates.

This session is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) of the Listing Rules. The Board is pleased to present our
performance and progress on the environmental and social aspects
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018.

This ESG session would separate into two subject areas-(A)
environmental and (B) social and each subject area included
relevant aspects as follow:

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A.1 Emissions
Carbon Dioxide Emissions
The Group has been focusing on minimizing emission of
pollutants and waste such as carbon dioxide and packaging
materials in order to efficiently consume resources and to
comply with relevant laws.

For the energy indirect emissions, the Greenhouse gases
(GHG) emissions associated with the electricity purchase in
PRC are provided by the relevant provider of electricity.

Emission factor

BERETF

Industry’s region
THEHE

Electricity supplied by China
hEHEENE

0.63 kg/unit (kWh)
0.63F 352, B (FEH)

The Group would consume electricity for lighting the
manufacturing bases powering the equipment and
machineries. Therefore, carbon dioxide or green gas would be
indirectly produced when the Group consumes electricity. The
Group has implemented the policies to reduce the emission of
the carbon dioxide as follow:

1) The design of new factory in Lianyungang and Zhuhai
is allowing more natural light and ventilation in order to
reduce use of electricity;
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2) The light and equipment would be turned off during
luncheon rest time.

Waste management
The Group remains focused on environmental protection
and complied with local legislation and standards for
environmental protection, e.g. Environmental Protection of
the People’s Republic of China Prevention (& B A R &0
BlIR1ER %), Control of Atmospheric Pollution {(FF#E AR
HMBE KRS ZP8%). Our production bases are featured
with high-end sewage treatment equipment. Sewage will be
treated before recycling and discharge.

A.2 Use of Resources
The major resources used by the Group relates to electricity,
water and petrol. The Group aims at and has been reducing
consumption of various resources. Resources consumption by
the Group during the year is listed in the table below:

Resources Consumption

BERHRE

Electricity consumption
Water consumption
FEK

Petrol

o

The Company will assess on staff to reduce the environment
impact from the major resources.

A.3 The Environmental and Natural Resources
The Group endeavors to calculate the amount of materials
needed for our production based on the principle of minimizing
surplus materials. In addition, the Group puts in place a scrap
metal recycling mechanism to sell the wasted steel produced
in our process of production to recycling companies.
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B. SOCIAL

B.1 Employment
The Group has committed in cultivating a good workplace
practice free from discrimination and providing equal
opportunities for all regardless of age, gender, race, colour,
sexual orientation, disability or marital status to increase
employee satisfaction.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 1,110 (2017:1,600)
employees.

B. #g

B.1 Ef&
AEEFNEEBERNREFIERE 8T
TRER R ER B EEM - BRxE
KR ESTERE  KMREEIREE-

R-E—NE+-A=+—H AEEHLBEET
1,110% (= ZF—+ 4 :1,6004) °

Department Profile

i mpAN i

General administration
and others

—ARITBURE A
29%

Management
B
13%

Procurement
e
1%
R&D Production and
B EE logistics
1% HE KRR
Quality control 46%
BEEH
4% Finance
815
3% Sales and marketing
THE KIS E
3%

The Group has also adopted principles in hiring new
employees regardless of colour, religion, gender, nationality,
race for selection, hiring, training, compensation and
promotion.

The Group has complied with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (3 A RHEFEIL &)%) , Labour Contract
Law of People’s Republic of China (FZEAR KB L EE [
%) and other relevant laws.
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Our employment contract specified the terms including
compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and
other benefits and welfare of our staff. The Group’s employee
handbook distributed to employees also includes information
of policies on compensation and dismissal, employment
benefits, rights on termination, business conduct and leave

benefits.

B.2 Health and Safety

The Group has complied with the laws and regulations
and adopted the Health Safety and Environmental (“HSE”)
management policy, in an effort to prevent pollution, to ensure
people’s health and safety, and to promote sustainable
development. Our target is to achieve zero accidents, zero
injuries and zero losses in order to meet the international HSE
management standard.

The Group’s employees reside in the neighbourhood areas.
Within our plant zone, there are gardening landscape, fish
ponds and recreational facilities, which offer a comfortable
environment and a sports ground for our employees.

Occupational Safety

We have adopted the HSE risk identification, risk assessment
and control procedures to manage our occupational safety
risk. The Group’s management is responsible for organising
periodic risk identification and evaluation exercises, and
is responsible for sorting, aggregation and distribution of
relevant information, which includes the identification of risk
factors for occupational safety and health, risk assessment on
operating conditions, possibility of accidents, the formulation
of operational control procedures, contingency plans, safety
level standards, as well as training and education issues.

The Group has kept records and documents relating to risk
management, including the “Control procedures of the new,
rebuilding and extension projects”, “Risk sources identification
and risk evaluation form” and “List of major risks” for staff
reference.

The Group always finds great importance in occupational
In 2018,
the Group hosted trainings and rehearsals in productions

safety and regularly provides training for staff.
bases for fire alert, so as to enhance safety awareness
and emergency response, and held hazards identification
programs and assemblies of risk management activities.
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B.3 Development and Training B.3 BREKIEI

Staff Development and Training

Through meetings, trainings and notifications on notice
board, the Group promotes its safety philosophy and amiable
working environment among various departments and teams.
We offer our employees access to learning and understanding
about the Group, so that each employee and contractors
of the Group or visitors can recognize their responsibilities
and obligations in the aspect of improving the environment
and enhancing occupational health and safety performance.
We make great efforts on improving the environment and
occupational safety.

Our adherence to the HSE management policy is a testimony
of the greatest commitment of the Group towards environment
and occupational health and safety. This policy is available
for review by employees at any time. In the year, the Group
further improved site management standards, achieved the
goal of dedicated management, and further promoted the 6S
management model in the Company. Project meetings were
kicked off in the production sites of Zhuhai and Lianyungang.

The Group endeavours to enhance the skills of each
employee in various aspects by providing staff trainings,
which include the “Weekly Star” and “Weekly Talk”. A wide
array of training courses is provided for employees to
strengthen their work-related knowledge and skills. Also, the
Group hosted an “advanced employee’s election”, whereby
each of the employees obtaining a certificate of honorary was
offered an outdoor training opportunity. To enable excellent
employees to take up management positions and to bolster
our team’s management capabilities, the Company also
organised the “team leader for production and management
training” courses during the year.

The Group has set up a labour union to further promote
spiritual positive energy with various social activities.
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B.4

To reinforce the employees’ sense of belongings to the Group,
a wide range of sport events are provided by the Group for its
employees every year, including basketball and table tennis
contests and a game of tug-of-war, etc. In addition, we have
provided activities that are of educational significance and
served to enhance the work performance of our employees,
including the “Business Oral English”, “Training and Assembly

for Fire”, “Sales Training”, “Joint Training and Team Building
Program for Financial Department”, and “Annual Sales
Meeting”, etc. The Zhuhai Company of the Group also
held the third quarter award ceremony of “Set an example
around you and consolidate the strength of the Company”.
The Company honored the advanced teams and individuals
emerging from various functions with great ceremony, and
called on all employees to learn from such advanced teams
and individuals. The Zhuhai Company also organized a warm

spring trip for the 8th March Women’s Day.

We encourage our employees to take an active part in local
community activities, including the “Green Enterprise Cup”
Table Tennis and Badminton Tournament of Panyu District
Youth Entrepreneur Association and the private enterprises
working concern group activities. Various events were held,
including the second “We Are Family-PCK” friendly wall
donation, the hike of female employees for the 8th March
International Women’s Day, the Lantern Festival Fair jointly
held by the Lianyungang base of Chu Kong Steel Pipe and
the Community Workstation of the Neighborhood Center of
Xuwei New Area, and the employee-oriented “1st May Caring
Show” organized by the Artistic Association of Zhuhai Trade
Union.

Labour Standards

The Group has complied with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (F#E A REFEI& &)%) , Labour Contract
Law of People’s Republic of China (¥ AR KMELESHE
[f)%) and other relevant laws. The Group has not employed
any staff aged under 16.

Staff Code

The staff code of the Group is prepared based on the PRC
labour law and is in line with the national standards of
the PRC. The Group has also been providing its staff with
guidance in accordance with the national legislation.
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B.5

B.6

Supply Chain Management

The Group has maintained proven track records of high
production efficiency and timely delivery. We have established
deep and cordial relationships with our suppliers. The
Group keeps a list of qualified suppliers, whose appraisal is
based on their track record of compliance with international
standards and the Group’s past cooperation relationship
with them. To improve logistics efficiency, the Company has
established a self-operated wharf in the Zhuhai production
base and formed a joint venture company to construct and
operate a port in Lianyungang production base for the delivery
of steel products and the receipt of raw materials.

Product Responsibility

Product quality

With its state-of-art technology, equipment, management and
well-established reputation, the Group is dedicated to the
provision of high-quality products and services that satisfy
customers’ needs. Our product quality has met a number
of international standards. We are also the only domestic
welded steel pipe manufacturer being granted five national
honors, namely the “Superior Quality Award for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical Products”, “Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical Products”, “High and New Technology
Enterprise”, “National Recognized Enterprise Technology
Center”, and National Key New Products and hosts a
“Academician Workstation”. We are the main drafter of the
national standard for longitudinal welded steel pipes in China.
Meanwhile, with the setting up of the “Post-doctoral Research
Station” and “Academician Workstation”, the Company
strives to further enhance its product quality and extends the
application of its products.

B.5 HEEERE

B.6
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The Group strictly upholds the 1SO9001 quality management AEEBREAITISO00IHEEEE R KA KL
system. With the use of advanced testing equipment, and the HERROR R BB AR RN EE R A8 R A R AR A 1E
conduct of on-line and off-line testing as well as mechanical BURAISREFR BERSEERmE ZXRE
and chemical properties testing, we inspect the products at REEEERENEMME B0 R EE KR
each production process stage in accordance with the best A AR B8 BB R IRORI - IR EE X IRORI R AR 7I<r‘t
product quality requirements through a myriad of tests, such BNERARERAI - ERERAIERE B
as steel ultrasonic testing, ultrasonic welding detection, weld HEGmEERENS T BREHERETS
X-ray inspection system, hydrostatic testing and flattening BEPWOER - QAR EIBSIEEABOAF L
test. Upon obtaining post-test data, we will make a rigorous EHREAEETERRRAIEE S (CNAS)RA -
analysis on product quality, so as to ensure that each product AEEBRAHFOEEEFEEEMHARE KR
meets customer requirements. We have built a testing BHEMHERE EEHNABOWTT)# G
center in compliance with the national standards, and the 7 2L (HIC) #08) » ;\L{K%Jﬁfﬁfﬂﬂﬁfﬂa” (SSC) #
center has been recognised by China National Accreditation A BB R im sk B (CTOD) 758 ~ A Hil 1L
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS). The Group’s ﬁﬁﬂ BETHEBENEBENSBEMESERRE -
testing center is equipped with a wide variety of laboratory BlET 2 £@B1S010012 : 20038 & & 2 2 X
equipment, including universal materials testing machine, low AAARTE BERNIBEE JREAEH[ELER
temperature impact material testing machine, drop weight BR-AEEMBRAFLERR (BRALE2E
tear test (DWTT) machine, hydrogen induced cracking (HIC) EtEERTE) (TUVEHERSBMHE
testing, sulfide stress corrosion cracking (SSC), crack tip SERAFE) EmBRHBEARE U IPCK]
opening displacement (CTOD) test, computer-controlled uuﬁ?&ﬂl‘%W%i?ﬁ@%%%ﬂ%fﬁ"

chemical composition vacuum direct reading spectrometer
and microscope. Achieving six standards, our measuring
chamber has passed through the 1SO10012: 2003 AAA
measurement management system certification. This proves
that our measuring instruments are of high qualification
and effectiveness. The Group’s testing centre has passed
the “National safety quality standardisation” and obtained
the “TUV SUD Metal Materials Laboratory Accreditation
Certificate”. Our products, an unfailing symbol of quality,
are blessed with unparalleled reputation in the international
market under the “PCK” brand.

B.7 Anti-corruption B.7 RES
The operation of various departments of the Group is in REE-HERREFEREEA RS MBFINEE
compliance with legal regulations and legislations. We Iﬁaxﬁéﬁi#lﬂ%%‘%E\IEU«/(KEE%HKFEJE:EE
have established a whistle blowing policy, which enables RER -

our employees to express their views to the management
anonymously.
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B.8 Community Investment B8 HtERE
Contribution to the Community [EIEE#t BB

The Group has been playing an active role in charitable
activities in Panyu, Guangdong Province, China and other
regions in which we operate. During the year, with the
organisation of a couple of educational, sports, cultural
and charitable activities, we promoted the exuberance
of Guangzhou City, thus enhancing foreign interest in
Guangzhou and fostering urban development. These activities
included:

. Sponsoring Panyu District “PCK Cup” 1st, 2nd and 3rd
Table Tennis Contest

. Sponsoring Zhujiang “PCK Cup” 1st and 2nd World Go
Team Championships

. Sponsoring “Golden Dragon City Cup” 1st and 2nd
Dragon Boats Championships

. Sponsoring the 9th Table Tennis Competition of “Mayor’s
Cup” of Guangzhou

. Exclusively supporting the 2nd National Calligraphy
Poster Exhibition and Invited Exhibition, to promote the
art of calligraphy and inherit national cultures.

In addition, the Group also participated in the assessment by
the government and other organisations. During the year, we
participated in:

. Supporting the events related to Chinese Bonsai Art
organized by the Flower Bonsai Society of China

. Supporting the events organized by Baiyue Art
Association of Panyu District
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. “Panyu District Mayor Quality Award Assessment
Management Approach” granted with the Quality Award
by the provincial government

. “Guangdong Enterprise with integrity”

The Group has also encouraged its employees to actively
participate in community activities in Guangdong Province,
including:

. Participating the seventh “Guangzhou’s Mayor Cup” for
table tennis tournament sponsored by Chu Kong Steel
Pipe Group

. Joining the photographic contest arranged by the district

. Participating the “Charity Hiking” activity arranged by the
City of Guangzhou

. Arranging a “Paternity Day” on the Nation’'s Day

. Arranging the “Mid-Autumn Celebration” activity

. Joining the “International Dragon Boat” competition
arranged by the City of Guangzhou

. Participating in the Charity Projects of Guangzhou
Association of Women Entrepreneurs

. Participating in the poverty alleviation activities organized
by Guangzhou Federation of Industry and Commerce,
Guangzhou Women'’s Federation, Guangzhou
Association Of Women Entrepreneurs and District
Federation of Industry and Commerce

. Participating in the poverty alleviation projects organized
by Guangdong Women And Children’s Foundation,
Guangzhou Women’s Federation and Guangzhou
Association Of Women Entrepreneurs

Charity Fund

In April 2013, the Group established a charitable fund, named
as the “Chu Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Ltd. — Blessing
Charity Fund”, aiming to improve the living environment of
single mothers and orphans and assisting single mothers for
seeking job.

R N\FFERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RS GRS

/l Ernst & Young

22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
&* Fax: +852 2868 4432

www.ey.com

To the shareholders of Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas
Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chu
Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
116 to 262, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of
RMB498,935,000 during the year ended 31 December 2018 and,
as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by RMB39,709,000. As stated in note 2.1, these events
or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2.1,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material
uncertainty related to going concern section, we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter

HREEREE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

YFE s RRERE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded property, plant
and equipment with a net book value of RMB2,805,810,000,
among which RMB2,095,574,000 represented property, plant
and equipment of the steel pipes segment. During the year, the
steel pipes segment recorded a loss of RMB450,924,000 which
indicated possible impairment for these non-current assets.
RZE-NF+ZA=+—HB  EBEXEHEEYE BERRE
BREF(E B AR %2,805,810,0007T  HF A R #2,095,574,000
TRMESMBME BEREKH -FA HEHDESEEA
R #450,924,0007T BRZEFNBEEA L HIRE

Management estimated the recoverable amounts of these
property, plant and equipment using the value in use model.
The estimated value in use was dependent on management’s
determination on the Group’s future events and its measures
to improve its efficiency of cash flow management,
macroeconomic assumptions about future demands of steel
pipe products, the discount rate and exchange rates as well
as the production levels and operating costs. These estimates
were particularly significant due to the uncertain economic
outlook, product price volatility, forecasted future production
and market demand. The outcome of impairment assessment
can vary significantly when different assumptions are applied.

EEERAEREERLMAFTZENE BERRENTTEES
oM ERABEERANEEERY E£ERREMHMRBZAR
TREBEBMEZIE R FHNEERARKRT R ZERERR
IR R RIERUREEKFREERNRZIRE - AREER =
EmEBERED FARREERTSHERKTHE ZETHLA
BERBENGZERTTEEREATRREMENBEEZR-

Relevant disclosures are included in note 3 “Significant
Accounting Judgements and Estimates” and note 13 “Property,
Plant and Equipment” to the financial statements.
EEBRESN M ERRMFIZ [EE ST A6 KA RHELS
Z [ mEIEE] -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBRNMEERARERSER

We performed the following procedures to address this
matter:

HATE BIT A AR 7 DA R L 1 78

. Reviewed management’s impairment assessment by
comparing the carrying values of the property, plant
and equipment and their value in use;

. BBUBYE BELAREBEZEREEREEREER #|
BIEIRfE WA AT

. Evaluated the assumptions and methodologies
(long-term growth rate, budgeted prices based on the
market trend and budgeted sales quantity based on the
existing production capacity) adopted by management,
and involved our valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the discount rate;

e HMAEEBERACBRJIRFEA(RBAEEER ERXTS
BABEF REBRREANRRBEERET ZAAHEE) -
NBHEEERBYESHERE X

. Evaluated the data used in the management's forecast
by reference to any committed future events and
business development plan which may impact the
projected cash flows;

- ZEARFERGBRORSNEMARRREGF RER
BRE THEEEENRMRA ZEE:

. Evaluated the projected cash flows with reference to
the sales orders on hand, industry trend, market index,
latest operating costs incurred;

. 2EREHETE TEBY TIHEH - FTEENS
EEXA FEEARESRE

. Performed sensitivity analysis to determine whether
a significant impact may arise from any uncertainties
arising from the management estimates; and

o ETEURED T DT E IR B L 5T AT E £ B (E ] T HE
FHEERARELEEATE &

. Assessed the adequacy of disclosures about
impairment in the consolidated financial statements.

« HMEGAMBHRRANBRRERE TR -
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Key audit matter

HREEREE

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5 WA Z B 1E

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had trade receivables of
RMB442,229,000. of which RMB16,883,000 was provided for
impairment.

RZZE-—N\F+_HA=+—H0 BEEEFZEIERKREFAR
#442,229,0007T - AR #16,883,0007T 2 & L R B # E o

During the year, the Group changed its accounting policy to
account for impairment provision of trade receivables following
the adoption of the new accounting standard which became
effective on 1 January 2018.

FR EEERKABZZ-N\F-A-BRERNFHEER
2 EEHHGSHTBRAEE SREERT O RERB AR

The calculation of the expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for
trade receivables, including the assessment of the historical
observed default rates and forecast economic conditions
involves significant management judgements and estimates.
HEESRUERRCEREEERR ([APEEBE]) (BT
HBATERINBEARRIEANLCERR) P RERNEEREH
B N kgt e

Specific factors which management would consider include the
ageing of the balances, existence of disputes, past collection
history and other available information related to the forecast
economic conditions. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
ERBEZRENEARAZRREARKRR B FEAMD BEREK
REARESHEMBRIBACEGENEN TRREEBHEZ
DEHEREE S LIRS B R RREUE -

As set out in note 2.2 to the financial statements, an adjustment
was made to adjust the opening balances as at 1 January 2018
which was permitted under the relevant accounting standard.
M TSR M FE2. 2P 8 - DR BAER & LRI VFT A fER R -
NHEB T NF—HA—BZHNER-

Relevant disclosures are included in note 3 “Significant
Accounting Judgements and Estimates” and note 23 “Trade
and Bills Receivables” to the financial statements.

BRARBEH NN B RN T3z [EE G HIET K] K23
2B RBBER R EREE] -

R N\FFERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBRNMEERARERSER

We performed the following procedures to address this
matter:
BAIE AT UA TR 7 DA BR R 1t Rl 8

. Assessed the Group’s internal controls over the
credit control of trade receivables and recalculated
the provision matrix of ECLs to check mathematic
accuracy.;

- Wfh EEBEYUBEIHEEBREREEEG 2 AEES I
BHAEEREEBE CREERE UEEHBEFAEE
wEE

<

. Reviewed the credit terms and historical payment
patterns of different categories of the customers to
assess the reasonableness regarding the groupings of
customer segments with similar loss patterns;

. a2 PRENEFHNEEGRREBENERK T
HEHUEBEEEXAZRP Mz EEEAE:

. Examined the underlying data used by the provision
matrix by checking to the corresponding ageing,
historical repayment records and subsequent
settlements on a sampling basis; and

e FREBEBRESHEENKRER BTERZSEREELE
EERBEREMRANEREE: &

. Assessed the reasonableness of forward-looking
adjustments by analysing the deviation between
forward-looking factors and the Group’s historical
default rate.

- FEMOWMAEERRRE SREBEENX L HNFEE"
AT RN S R -
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Key audit matter

HREEREE

Deferred tax assets
B IHE E

During the year, the Group recognised additional deferred tax
assets of RMB161,600,000.
FR- BEEBECHABINELCHIESE ARK161,600,0007T

As set out in note 21 to the financial statements, the current
year recognition of deferred tax assets related to tax losses
of a subsidiary of the Group which holds a piece of land in
Mainland China.

WM B ImAM 2L E AFERRBNVELCHBEER &5
HET-—MMBARNRESESR ZWBRRFAREAM
— g 3 o

Based on the redevelopment plan announced by the
relevant government, management expected that significant
taxable income will arise which could utilise certain of the
subsidiary’s tax losses carried forward from the previous years.
Management estimated the likelihood of the realisation of these
deferred tax assets by evaluating the duration which allows tax
losses of different years to be used before they will expire.
BIERFEBNAMNERZNE EREEHASELEETERERTK
AN WRAERABEFEAENMNBEARTNE THEBE -TBE
FHBIE T RF RO IEEE R AR AT AR AR -
B ERZERERAEEN AL -

We focused on this area because of the inherent uncertainties
involved in forecasting future taxable profits.

BB T Z A ETZEHRRTEARRERT AT P & EE KT
TE 5 o

Relevant disclosures are included in note 3 “Significant
Accounting Judgements and Estimates” and note 21 “Deferred
Tax” to the financial statements.

BB BEBHNABHREMEI 2 [EESHE RG] K21
2 [EFETRIA ] -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBRNMEERARERSER

We performed the following procedures to address this
matter:
BATE AT A TAZ e BABR R E 9 28

. Obtained the published government redevelopment
plan and examined whether the land held by the
subsidiary of the Group was subject to redevelopment
as set out in the relevant document to check the future
taxable income to arise;

- HDEBRNAMHMEZSE LES ESEMNEQASE
BRI HEREEARBHEBXHETER IREBEL
B R 2R R AR A A

. Checked the available tax losses carried forward by
the subsidiary and inspected the respective expiry
dates of these tax losses by checking to the relevant
communication from the tax authorities;

. REMBRARGEHENATARERE TAEBRENBEH
BB REZEHEBENRREIESHE:

. Obtained management’'s estimation of the taxable
profits in future periods and the estimated tax losses
which could likely be utilised before they will expire;

o REETIREHRKERERTR R A G5 A R AT s
HA AT A V(A 5T IR TH B 18

. Assessed management estimation, and tested the
underlying data; and
o FMAEREME WARMBEEE &

. Involved our internal tax expert to evaluate, under the
prevailing tax rules, whether the subsidiary is entitled
to utilise its available tax losses when the estimated
future taxable income arises.

o HBHEHEMOANITHEBERIBBERITHIEAR BTG WE
NAEB B AR K ERT A ZE £ &R EA
e IR 18 -
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Key audit matter

HREEREE

Estimation of fair value of investment property

REYEZ XN FERE

The Group has one commercial property in Mainland China.
Such investment property was measured at fair value and its
carrying amount was RMB1,160,000,000 as at 31 December
2018.

EEERPEANME -—EERADE-R T \F+_A=+—
B ZEEWMEAQTEFEBEKRAEMERARKL160,000,000
IE o

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management to determine the fair value of the investment
property. To support management’'s determination of the fair
value, the Group engaged an external valuer to perform the
valuation on the investment property at the end of the reporting
period.
EREARETREMENRATFEFLDEZMARAE - RED
EEBWREATHE BESEHEFNIMGEEMAREAREERE
MEEITIEE -

Relevant disclosures are included in note 3 “Significant
Accounting Judgements and Estimates” and note 16
“Investment Property” to the financial statements.
BRBEBEHNMBREAMEI [EEgHE RG] RT16
ZEME] -

R N\FFERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBRNMEERARERSER

We performed the following procedures to address this
matter:
BATE AT A TZ e DABR R E 28

. Evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the external valuer engaged by the
group;

« W BEEEMBHBZESGEEMOEEREL - BIER
B

. Involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us
to assess the methodologies and assumptions adopted
in the valuation for estimating the fair value of the
investment property and performed benchmarking of
the market value of the investment property held by
the Group to other comparable properties; and

e HBEANHEEER BHBRMAFLEEREDERITE
KRBT ERRR T EXEEBRENREME
MEGEEREMAIE LR EETEELER &

. Assessed the sufficiency of disclosures about
investment properties.

. FHAEBREVERESNTREME-
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

112 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

R N\FFERE

RBOARERGEMBRRARKENEL

EENER RHERBRAVBRERREAFEAR
HFFS R R M R E A EARHERRABS A IBRE
THABRESFEANKEMBS -EFER BT
(ERERB)RE Bt 2 NBREHELBBEN-F
ErERAMENATOERMEMALTE FAEE
I EEe

ARRERGATORE BFEREREEE
RUSE 17 # B0 4 6 B B K S8 AR L « 883 L I 1
Pl R 88 2R 3 - 40 SR 4 R A 7 84 2 AL 18151
SE MR B LA M HEREDE RN
TR - AU A0 BB AT BAR PR A o

ERBEEBEFENETERNBRED BFERT
BEHE RS TRERREE -BFT:

o BRI RFFEHENRFHERMEBERS P ME
FREBRHERBANRAR KT RATERERF
NEHZERR UKRBREREENERE
FERESEERNEM -BRNKFFA LY RS
FRME BRER ERRAL SORERABE
#lz b B AREERAKFMEHNERER
PR st ) [ P 5 [ 5 RR 1T 28 B0 BE K 85 AR PRt O

A M B
R

o THREZZABMAIES URFEBENER
B BENYFY SRERNIFEHNERE
BRER-

. FHEEEMRASTEENASEEREL GG
A RAAEREERNNEE-
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

- HEERAREKLEEHERNREMELER
WIRBEBMGHEXZEE REESFEEEMHH
ERBENERNTHEENL MAkLY BHEEF
BRENBENBREAREE - NREERRFE
ERTHEN MABEEZEANRE T RFE
REBIGEMBRERTPOBAREEN BRE
ERRBEERTR RIESFALAFERER
WiZEMHRE BEENERSENBEXBEIR

& B IEPTELS m%vg oA REEMHHIF
MAEEH BEEETREESELE-

. EFASVBHRERNERISHSIN EBRAR
BEBEEN URGEAVBRERES AL KRB
HERXHREE.

B BEEEERIEKIDNUBEEHERED
i E BE NHGAMBREAERER-
ERRTREEEZ - BEEHE

EERERLZEQREBHIERAE BHLHE &
RERBRASER BRESERERAFEEN LA S
122 ) B A f] B OKBRFA o

ENMBEZZESRIER HBRESFCNAFH
ﬁi&%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ'lﬁ HRBTE G
WHA CEESBHIMOEEREMER AR (K

F) HE A eV B #6451
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hui Kin Fai, Stephen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2019

R N\FFERE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

meEs

Year ended 31 December 2018 #EZ =T —N\F+-A=+—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b 5 AREBT ARBFIT
REVENUE A 5 1,620,456 873,293
Cost of sales HE KA (1,358,041) (815,182)
Gross profit E5 262,415 58,111
Other income and gains i PN 5 81,579 140,553
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX (63,744) (107,330)
Administrative expenses THEA (437,020) (475,632)
Exchange gain/(loss), net R (FBiE) 38 16,241 (44,121)
Finance costs Bl & pR AR 8 (374,468) (426,286)
Fair value gain on an investment property  ®& Y% v A FEWZF 16 21,779 -
Fair value loss on a derivative EeRIEZ ATEEBE
financial instrument 33 (22,984) -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment #1% - i &= M & & 2 B E - (18,006)
Other expenses HihEMA 6 (93,432) (12,873)
Share of loss of a joint venture i R S RN/ TE 19 (2,724) (2,779)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBE AT I8 7 (612,358) (888,363)
Income tax credit FiSHiE R 11 113,423 14,608
LOSS FOR THE YEAR rEEER (498,935) (873,755)
Attributable to: AT AT E(REE:
Owners of the parent B RAEA A (498,813) (872,219)
Non-controlling interests e IR (122) (1,536)
(498,935) (873,755)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BARERERAEEAEGERER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT
Basic and diluted ERR#E RMB A R # RMB A R &
12 (0.49) 7% (0.86) 7t
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEBAR

Year ended 31 December 2018 #iZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEEFE (498,935) (873,755)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) H2EmW A (FiE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may & AE B fE] A] 58 2 #7 77 46 2 18 75 A1
be reclassified to profit or loss Hb2EMA 7 (EiE)
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MEINEEBEENEN Z5
operations (116,857) 153,862

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that may ~ WEEHHEAEEEFT O BEEERN

be reclassified to profit or loss Hib 2@ A (EE)FHE

in subsequent periods (116,857) 153,862
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FERNBRHEEAHMAEZERA (FEE)

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (116,857) 153,862
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR S RZHEEEASHE (615,792) (719,893)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: UTATEGEZEEEAE:

Owners of the parent (SY/NEIEFEWN (615,670) (718,357)

Non-controlling interests R E R (122) (1,536)

(615,792) (719,893)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR &

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iE=2 AR T ARBETFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 13 2,805,810 3,082,754
Investment property wEME 16 1,160,000 1,138,221
Long term prepayments and deposits REBNRBERES 17 111,320 123,710
Prepaid land lease payments AL AE 18 1,087,394 1,123,673
Investment in a joint venture R—EEERTZE’E 19 31,832 34,556
Deferred tax assets RIERIIEE = 21 161,600 -
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 20 = 800
Pledged deposits EERZE 25 80,000 482,723
Total non-current assets IRBEELE 5,437,956 5,986,437
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development BREAP Y 14 1,691,699 2,601,118
Completed properties held for sale SERFE M 15 749,869 -
Inventories FE 22 223,057 288,705
Trade and bills receivables 2 5 FE W IR R % JE R R IR 23 540,225 371,120
Prepayments, other receivables and TR - H fth FEUCGRIE R Bt & &
other assets 24 674,844 601,470
Pledged and restricted bank balances EEA R R AIRITE R 25 539,060 183,286
Cash and bank balances WRe RIRITHEH 25 66,907 36,392
Due from a related party JiE Wit B B 75 3RIR 41 84,676 84,568
Total current assets REBEEAE 4,570,337 4,166,659
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables Z O RNERRENEE 26 688,464 670,349
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t 8 $R1T R H b £ & 27 2,012,848 3,332,194
Contract liabilities BRAEE 29 896,765 -
Other payables and accruals E b ET RIB R ERT B A 30 762,458 1,695,458
Fixed rate bonds and notes EREHFERE 31 = 467,821
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTA 33 22,984 -
Due to a director JE 1~ & S 3RIE 41 118,944 106,994
Tax payable FER R 1A 107,583 60,800
Total current liabilities mEAaEeRE 4,610,046 6,333,616
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BN R

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T ARBF T
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEERE (39,709) (2,166,957)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EELERRDESR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,398,247 3,819,480
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAEE 21 574,798 577,019
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings =t BiE{T R EMEE 27 4,084,871 1,880,686
Fixed rate bonds and notes EREFKIEE 31 157,406 140,597
Government grants K 43 B 32 350,899 375,113
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEETE 5,167,974 2,973,415
Net assets BEFE 230,273 846,065
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the parent ®QF#EE AEGER
Issued capital BEITRA 34 88,856 88,856
Reserves ER] 35 129,997 745,667
218,853 834,523
Non-controlling interests e AR = 11,420 11,542
Total equity -y GG 230,273 846,065
CHEN CHANG CHEN ZHAO NIAN
R & BRIk &
Director Director
EE EZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
= /\*"")(,‘."E,.\Eb%%

Year ended 31 December 2018 &#iZ—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAAEBARR
Asset Statutory Exchange Non-
Issued Share  revaluation  Contributed Capital reserve Retained  fluctuation controlling Total
capital premium reserve’ surplus reserve fund profits reserve Total interests equity
AE E¥

BRARA  BOER  EERE  THRR  ARRE iRQEE  BWEN RBER B HERER  EEAR
RMBOOO ~ RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBO0O0 ~ RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBO0D  RMBO00  RMBI000
ARBTL ARETE ARETI ARMTT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR AR%TR ARETE

(note 34) (note (a))
(BizE34) (M5 ()

At 1 January 2017 WoZ-+5-F-A 8885 767097 1153715 224589 57607 165276 (691557)  (212.703) 1552880 15006 1567886

Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - (872219 - (872219 (153)  (873755)

Other comprehensive income for the year: REFEMEPEMA:

Exchange differences related to ENEERERNERZR
foreign operations - - - - - - - 153,862 153,862 - 153,862

Total comprehensive loss for the year FEE2AFEER - - - - - - (812219) 153862 (718,357 (1,536) (719,893

Dividends to a non-controlling shareholder PERTHEERRR RS - - - - - - - - - (1,928) (1,928)

At 31 December 2017 RZE-+£+zfA=1-A 88,856 767007 1153715t 224589 57607 165276 (1563776) (58841 834523 1502 846,065

At 1 January 2018 R=2-/\E-A-H 88856 767097 1153715 224,589 57607 165276 (1563776)  (58.841) 834523 1582 846,065

Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - (498813) - (498813) (122)  (498,935)

Other comprehensive loss for the year: TEREMRERE:

Exchange differences related to HNEEBERNERZE
foreign operations - - - - - - - (116,857 (116,857 - (116,857)
Total comprehensive loss for the year TEEREABAR - - - - - - (498813)  (116857)  (615,670) (122)  (615,792)
Transfer of asset revaluation reserve upon ERENELER:
sale of relevant properties EREEEAE - - (79,175) - - - 79,775 - - - -

At 31 December 2018 RZF-NE+zA=1-A 88,856 767007 1073940+ 224589 57607 165276 (1982814)  (L75698) 218853 1420 230273

# The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an # ERVXARSEZFEARATEIENREMER
owner-occupied property to an investment property carried at fair EXEEEMHFEE-
value.

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBEEOEGAEVBURARPABEARE
RMB129,997,000 (2017: RMB745,667,000) in the consolidated 129,997,0007T (=& — J:E : NR#745,667,0007T) HY
statement of financial position. RE

Note: B &

(@) In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of (a) WEFEARAME ([FE)REE AATRFE
China (the “PRC"), the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC AMOMEA AR ERREFEETE RN (KHA
are required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profit after AEENEMEEEZ)NIONEAEZELAER - BEAHE
tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve B0k %L*1I§%§E£ﬂﬁ§$ﬁ’]50% - AEER G
fund. When the balance of an entity’s reserve fund reaches 50% of its EE A E T AR i*"ﬁ%—fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiilﬂ%
registered capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory 18 S o EE é KefAM #HEEAESAR Lt
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase BEMEN GRS REREARSTMHER25% -

the registered capital. However, such balance of the statutory reserve
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital after such usage.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

MERENER

FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2018 #iZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-)N\#F —ZF—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b 5 AREBT ARBFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHMBHRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax B B AT S 18 (612,358) (888,363)
Adjustments for: BTHRIEFE:
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR ZERE 6 25,865 -
Loss on deregister of subsidiaries B ARNEHEER CEIE 6 14,008 -
Finance costs AR 8 374,468 426,286
Share of loss of a joint venture BE—H&EQREE 19 2,724 2,779
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 5 (26,812) (38,792)
Government grant income BT s BE A 5 (46,534) (26,914)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of REME - BEREEFER
property, plant and equipment and () RFER L
prepaid land lease payments 6 19,533 (5,879)
Depreciation e 13 140,406 143,045
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE A 4 3 78 @ 88
payments 18 25,407 26,456
Fair value gain on an investment property & &¥ % 2 AFEW A 7 (21,779) -
Fair value loss on a derivative PTEemMIAEZ A TFEERE
financial instrument 7 22,984 -
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 e ER O E 23 2,450 1,721
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of Ze kEAMmEWRKIEA
deposits and other receivables BE/ CRERR) 24 4,603 (12)
Provision against slow-moving and TR RET ERE
obsolete inventories 22 - 7,020
Impairment of items of property, M- -WENMEEEE RE
plant and equipment 13 - 18,006
(75,035) (334,647)
Decrease in inventories FERD 65,648 115,276
Decrease/(increase) in properties BRAWERLEMN)
under development 1,008,316 (306,941)
Increase in completed properties held for sale & 5k 13 & %7 2£ 12 41 (749,869) -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and 2 S REWERER R EKREE
bills receivables (#m) SRd (211,078) 243,051
Decrease in prepayments, other BT FRIE - H At FE U R IE R
receivables and other assets Hh & &= R A 40,705 54,423
Decrease in pledged and restricted BEHEARRZRGIRITERR D
bank balances 46,949 400,171
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B o RNERRENEE
bills payables #amn CRd) 18,115 (119,999)
(Decrease)/increase in contract EHEE EMENFERETER
liabilities, other payables and accruals CRAd) /#n (124,768) 498,416
Decrease in a provision B AE R — (29,268)
Cash generated from operations REEERS 18,983 520,482
Interest received B A 5 26,812 38,792
Corporate income tax paid ENEEMER (2,181) (1,612)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHEXRSREFE 43,614 557,662

R N\FFERE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HmERERER
Year ended 31 December 2018 &#iZ—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—L+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iiE=2 AR® T ARBETFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHRERE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from financial assets measured WEZE A FEF ABETER

at fair value through profit or loss SREE 500,000 -
Purchase of financial assets measured BERATESAERITEN

at fair value through profit or loss EREE (500,000) -
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE BELEEEER

equipment (25,009) (10,086)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEBMTHESIESR

prepaid land lease payments FriS30E — 63,251
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME WERZEIEE

property, plant and equipment FT1S 3018 5,420 109,440
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEARR 36 5,452 -
Decrease/(increase) in an amount due from & Uk BA B 75 2 B R (12 40)

a related party (108) 2,231
Additions of time deposits #TI8 E HATE K = (408,220)
Receipt of government grants U B BK 7S #66 Bb 22,320 32,320
Net cash flows from/(used in) BREZTBRE (FFA)

investing activities ReREFE 8,075 (211,064)
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHRERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings FGRITERRHEMEER 3,647,290 5,781,560
Repayment of bank loans and BERTERRHMEE

other borrowings (3,011,193) (6,284,883)
Proceeds from issue of bonds and notes BITEFREBMGHIE - 143,406
Repayment of bonds EEESH (197,660) (88,680)
Interest paid BEAHE (386,416) (471,472)
Increase in an amount due to a director g ENEERIE 11,950 101,431
Interest element of finance lease rental MEREHSNR N ERLS

payments (4,344) (11,200)
Capital element of finance lease rental MERERENRZERLS

payments (111,410) (81,720)
Net cash flows used in RMETEFMARSRETH

financing activities (51,783) (911,558)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2018 #iZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-)N\#F —ZF—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

ik=s ARBTR ARET T

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRRELEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS WA R (94) (564,960)
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEF REE 2 L EFME

changes, net 30,609 162,285
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUReRBESEED

of year 36,392 439,067
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREAEGRELEEY

AT END OF YEAR 66,907 36,392
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeERBELEEBYESBIM

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEH 25 66,907 36,392
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 9 January 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s registered office address is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
involved in the following principal activities:

. manufacture and sale of welded steel pipes and the
provision of related manufacturing services

. property development and investment
In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the

ultimate holding company of the Company is Bournam Profits
Limited (“Bournam”), which was incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
AR

Company name

DNEEW

Lessonstart Enterprises
Limited
MEEEEBRRAA

British Virgin Islands
REBELHS

Lucknow Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands

RERZES

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BERTEER
RS

US$300
300% 7T

US$10
103% 7T
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RAREEER
KIAMAKARMEZERER LA ([RAF])
RZZEZENE-ANBRBFRAEFHSE(F22E
REVE(—NAR—F B3I AEN KR E RIEFT)
ERESHETAMELRERRNBRAR AR
7] 5 9% = B 2 #b 4k & Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands °

ARAREMBEAR (AHIAKRE])TENRS
A TRBES :

e HEMHERRRERWNEREHMBBRE
AR 75

. MEERKRKE

EERE ARANERARREEIERDEA
Bournam Profits Limited ([Bournam |) * 5% 2 A

MR B R B B ML

ERHMEBLARZER
ARBEEMBRBZHBET

Percentage of
equity attributable

to the Company Principal activities

XA R G
REBD L FTEXER
Direct Indirect
HE 4%
% %
100 — Investment holding
BREER

- 100 Investment holding
REZER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Company name

NREE

Crown Central Holdings
Limited
FHEBEFRAA

Chu Kong Steel Pipe
Group Co., Ltd.
KIMEEEARAA

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe

Co., Ltd. (Note)
HERWIME
BRAA (EE)

Guangzhou Pearl River

Petrol-Fittings Co., Ltd.

BN A E T
BRRAF]

Guangzhou Pearl River
OCTG Co., Ltd.

BMBZHAAHEE
BRQA

R N\FFERE

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
R R
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
FiB

The PRC/
Mainland China
RE R A

The PRC/
Mainland China
R A

The PRC/
Mainland China
RE R A

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
ERTZBER
BRI

HK$1,000
1,000/ 7T

HK$100,000
100,000/ 7T

HK$1,937,500,000
1,937,500,0007% 7T

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/% 7T

HK$21,000,000
21,000,000/ 7T

RAREEES (8

ERHWEARZER (8)
ARBEEMBRBZFHBTOT : (H)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

AAT ML
REBDL
Direct Indirect
HiE =
% %
- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100
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Principal activities

TEEHK

Trading of steel
pipes
MEES

Investment holding
and trading of
steel pipes

REZBRLHEE S

Manufacture and
sale of welded
steel pipes

EERHE
BhREIRBEHE

Manufacture and
sale of petrol
fittings

HERHEEALEN

Manufacture and
sale of oil country
tubular goods

FERHE
AomEM



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Company name

NREE

Guangzhou Pearl River
Petroleum Steel Pipe
Coating Co., Ltd.

& N2 BR A A o 8 B B R
AR AT

Guangzhou Pearl River
Petroleum Steel Pipe
Co., Ltd.

BN BROR A E B R A A

Panyu Chu Kong Steel
Pipe (Lianyungang)
Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP
(Lianyungang)”)
EBWIME (EEH)
BRAA ([HBILHEHE
(BEEE)])

Guangzhou Panyu
Chu Kong Hualong
Petroleum Steel Pipe
Anti-Corrosion Co., Ltd.
(“Hualong Anti-Corrosion”)
BMNmESHK IEREAMEE
BB QR
([EFEmE])

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
R R
B

The PRC/
Mainland China
B A

The PRC/
Mainland China
R B A

The PRC/
Mainland China

T B BRI

The PRC/
Mainland China

T B BRI

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
ERTZBER
BRI

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000/ 7T

HK$50,000,000
50,000,000/% 7T

RMB1,100,000,000
AR
1,100,000,0007T

RMB20,600,000
AR #20,600,0007T
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RAREEES (8

ERHWEARZER (8)
ARBEEMBRBZFHBTOT : (H)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

AAT ML
REBDL
Direct Indirect
HiE =
% %
- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal activities

TEEHK

Steel pipe casing
and lining services
5 & B K
W EE 2 JE RS

Manufacture and
sale of welded
steel pipes

BliE MIHE R 4%
IREWME

Manufacture and
sale of welded
steel pipes

BliE MIHE R G
1R HE

Steel pipe casing
and lining service

BED ERAE
2ER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Company name

NREE

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.
(“PCKSP (Zhuhai)”)

EBWIME (K8)

AR AT

(TEBFIME (3K8)])

Lianyungang Kaidi Heavy
Equipment Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Kaidi”)

BEEAYFTEIMRERAA

(rsh#])

Lianyungang Pearl
River Petrol-Fittings
Co., Ltd.

EEEDWNALEN
BRAA

Guangdong Pearl Steel
Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (“Pearl Steel
Investment”)

BERKMREERBERAR

([ZRMRE )

R N\FFERE

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
R R
B

The PRC/
Mainland China
B A

The PRC/
Mainland China
R B A i

The PRC/
Mainland China
R R A

The PRC/
Mainland China
B B A

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
ERTZBER
BRI

HK$1,088,402,071
1,088,402,071/% 7T

RMB470,000,000
AR ¥470,000,0007T

HK$303,000,000
303,000,000/% 7T

RMB50,000,000
A K #50,000,0007T

RAREEESR(

&)

ERHWEARZER (8)
ARBEEMBRBZFHBTOT : (H)

Percentage of
equity attributabl
to the Company
DA ESL
REB DL
Direct Indi
B#E
%

WIRARARMEEZRERLT 127

e

rect
k=3
%

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

TEEHK

Manufacture and
sale of welded
steel pipes

Bl MIHE R 4%
IREWE

Manufacture
and sale of steel
pipe equipment
and metallurgy
equipment
BEMIHEME
Bk e

Manufacture and
sale of petrol
fittings

FENMHEEQLEN

Property
development and
investment

MERERE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAIREEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ARMEBARZER (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

ARBEEMBRBZFHBTOT : (H)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
AR R ERTEER DA ESL
IR B BRI REB DL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
B =
% %

Nanjing Rongyu Group The PRC/ RMB75,000,000 - 100 Market management
Co., Ltd (“Nanjing Rongyu Mainland China A E#75,000,0007T of steel products
Group”) B A M ERZTS

ERRAREEERAA g

(TR RAmER])

Nanjing City Qixia Hill Roll The PRC/Mainland RMB20,316,500 - 100 Manufacture and
Steeling Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing  China AR %20,316,5007T sale of
City Qixia Hill") AR A screw-thread
MR mEE LB ERA A steels
(MEAmRmEEWL]) BE R IHE B
41
Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ HK$30,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd. Mainland China 30,000,000/ 7T sale of welded
HIME (BR)ERAR R A steel pipes
HENHERE
REME
PCK Steel Middle East FZE Dubai AED1,000,000 - 100 Trading of steel
ME 1,000,000 #i7 #8 products
B MM Em
View Sharp International Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited aBA 10,000/% 7T HEER
SEBEEBRAR
Ningbo Sanhe Steel Pipe The PRC/ RMB20,000,000 — 51 Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.(“Ningbo Sanhe”) Mainland China A K ¥20,000,0007C sale of welded
BE=AMEARAR FE R A steel pipes
(l=g=461) BlE MIHE R E
REME
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Company name and business

AR
IR =308
Guangzhou Zhu Gang The PRC/
Property Management Mainland China
Co., Ltd.(“Zhu Gang RE R E A
Property Management”)
MR EERBR A A
(TRMYEER])
Zhuhai Zhugang Wharf The PRC/

Co., Ltd. (“Zhugang Wharf”) Mainland China
WEKRMBERMNEBRAR HE PEAM
([ERIMTEER L)

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEER
BRI

RMB5,000,000
AR #5,000,0007C

RMB3,000,000
A FR#3,000,0007C

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Note:

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., Ltd. EBH/IHMEBR QA
(“PCKSP”)

PCKSP has been accounted for a 100%-owned subsidiary of the
Group (2017: 100%). It is an investment holding company. It is
engaged in the manufacture and sale of welded steel pipes business
and holds a piece of land in Mainland China.

R N\FFERE

RAREEES (8

ERHWEARZER (8)
ARBEEMBRBZFHBTOT : (H)

Percentage of
equity attributable

to the Company Principal activities

ARATEMS
REB DL FTEHEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ 4%
% %

- 100 Property
management

MEEE

- 100 Port service
7B AR 7

ERBINEERRIBFEFAREAIBKRAE
BEEFENIERDZARARMNBARRE:
EERB IHEMHBARFBESEEINRS
RIT&K e

B -

BERHIMEBRAR ([FERWIHE])

ERKIHERERAAEEZ2EWNBERAR (22—t
F2E) R HREERQR -ZARKEREEE
BUEREEER WNPEAMmSE @ik

BIRBRARAEZRERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Note: (continued)

During the year, the Group entered into a disposal agreement with a
third party, Guangdong Yuecai Trust Co., Limited (“Yuecai Trust”) for
the disposal of a 20% equity interest for a consideration of RMB240
million, contingent to certain future events which are set out in the
respective agreement. Details can be referred to the Company’s
circular issued on 27 March 2018. The related transactions constituted
very substantial disposal transaction under the relevant Listing Rules
and have been approved by the shareholders on 19 April 2018. (the
“2018 Disposal Transaction”).

The 2018 Disposal Transaction was considered not completed as at
31 December 2018 because there were still conditions to be fulfilled
by the Group. One of the conditions to be fulfilled by the Group was
the successful change of the use of the land held by PCKSP from
“industrial” to “residential and commercial’. Nevertheless, as part
of the 2018 Disposal Transaction, certain transactions and actions
have taken place during the year which had an impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. These included:

On 2 February 2018, Yuecai Trust transferred an aggregate amount
of RMB240 million to PCKSP and PCKSP has filed statutory business
registration to allot its 20% shareholding to Yuecai Trust. Thereafter,
Yuecai Trust became PCKSP’s 20% legal shareholder. However,
according to the agreement, as the 2018 Disposal Transaction is
not completed, Yuecai Trust is not able to enjoy all the benefits to
which a shareholder is entitled. Accordingly, notwithstanding the fact
that Yuecai Trust is the 20% legal shareholder of PCKSP, the Group
continued to consolidate 100% assets and liabilities of PCKSP for the
current year. The RMB240 million was accounted for as a loan and
presented as a “Loan from a third party” on the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31 December 2018, pursuant to an underlying
loan agreement entered into between the parties. According to this
loan agreement, the loan is repayable in three years and bear interest
at 11.25% per annum for the first two years and 10.25% per annum
for the third year (See note 27 for details of the loan).

On the same date, 2 February 2018, Yuecai Trust further advanced a
loan to PCKSP in the amount of RMB1.44 billion for a period of three
years with interest rate of 11.25% per annum for the first two years
and 10.25% per annum for the third year (See note 27 for details of
the loan).

As part of the 2018 Disposal Transaction, the Group has agreed to
consider the conditional disposal of 40% of the equity interest in
PCKSP upon the restoration of the land executed by the government
after the change of land use. This was not a commitment and
therefore did not have any financial impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsequent to 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company have
entered into another agreement for the disposal of the remaining
interest in PCKSP to Yuecai Trust and to replace some of the terms
as set out in the 2018 Disposal Transaction. Please refer to note 45 to
the financial statements for details of the subsequent events.
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RAREEES (8

BARMERTRZEN (4)
M s (4)

FR AEBEE=FEREVERERAR ([EHE
Y —BHE B UK EARK240,000,0007T
i #E20% Ik 8T S5 FFTE 2 @RI R RS iE e
HFBEUZ2EARAR - N\F=ZA=-+tBHEH
K- RIEMABALETHRA BHIZEXIETEARAOEH
EXG YER-ZZT—N\FHUA+NABAESKREI &
(ZZE—NFHEXRS]) -

RIZE-NF+ZA=+—H0 —ZT-N\FHERXHH
BREARTHK BANAEETHRHEEFAEEER K
SEAERNES —EFEF BRI BEBITHE M
BELWzAZH I TREIRNREEREE] AW
R-_ZE-N\FHEXFGN Mo AFEELHELEET
RHROTEY BAKEZEEVBRREEZE-EF
B

RZFE-NFZAZH EBFERAEZBKIEESE
8k & £ AR #240,000,000c MEBE B TME D IRR
ETEHEED UBH200w R ESET BT 1
% BHEREKASAEESRIME20% B#E 2 A%
BRE-R - BREHHF BRZE-—NFLEXRIHK
BB ERELZZERTERZTENMENE B
b EEEMERABEFERINE200REZA
EREEARENEEGATEEER IHEFAN
EHEENBE- REEATUNBABERGZ R=
T-NF+_AZ+—BNREAVBRAERF AR
240,000,000 CE R ERABRL 2 AIREEF=1HK
B -REZEXR R ZEXEAR=FRNEE B8
WA 12 R 11.25% & 5 = SR F 7 £10.25% 1 & (A
BAEROFE B2 E27) -

RZZE-N\F-_A-BRA ERERE-—FTHESLK
ST E IRt A R#1,440,000,000 T EF - BHI=Z4F -
HWEFF R E11.25% & E = FFHEE10.25% (B
BEROFE B2 E27) -

ER-Z-\FHEXSZN 80 AEECRAEEL
WRABREERBN TR D BIREER  ZEEGRGD
EHF BT E40% B R < 15 3 IF — HAGE  Fit ¥
SEMBRRATSELEMNUBEE-

s

R-E-NF+_A=+—BZ® ARARNEFETL
S—niHE AR B EEHEERRTHE N F S E
@ YRR -Z-N\FHEXSZABNH DGR -EH
BBFFNFE  F2HP WK T45
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 ImBREE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB, International Accounting
Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee
Interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Committee that remain in effect, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for an investment property and a derivative financial
instrument which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

R N\FFERE

ZEVBRERDIRIEABR S BN RS EM
MBRMBREER BEREERESSIAE
THBARCBERGFENREHEREZESS
BEBERARGIZRERERR -HIIAESSL
RAERRE EREVMERITESRTARA
FEAE - ZEUBRRUARE(TARKZ
o BRRBIAEIN AEREEEREEREN
Tite

REEE
REMBRREEAEEEE_ZT-/N\F+_H
St -BLEFEZHBHRERR -MBRAREARF
EREAEEF 2 ER (BEREBLEER) X
SEREEBHS2EAERZEREHRAEZE R
ZRBEEN LERARELRERERIY
oHecE (NRERMAERNREENE RS
BREVRZEELY) IRXREAEEEAR
BHR ZEbHE-

EARFEEABMERAINREHRAZHEK
ERAEUENE RIFGAEEHZREHR
EERBRBRNE XEEEEMAEHEBEEELS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 IREEXE (@)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 IREEXE (@)

Going concern basis

The Group recorded a consolidated loss of RMB498,935,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: loss of RMB873,755,000).
As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded net current liabilities
of RMB39,709,000 (2017: RMB2,166,957,000), included therein
were the bank and other borrowings of RMB2,012,848,000 (2017:
RMB3,800,015,000) which were due for repayment or renewal
within the next twelve months after 31 December 2018.

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the Company have
considered the future liquidity and performance of the Group and
its available sources of finance in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have prepared a cash flow forecast
for the Group which covers a period of twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. Taking into account the possible disposal of
PCKSP which could provide additional funds for the Group, coupled
with the rebound of the market demand of the Group's steel pipes
and related products and the continued sale of the Group’s existing
real estate projects, the directors considered that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

However, the sale of PCKSP is subject to the fulfilment of certain
conditions, among which some of these conditions cannot be
controlled by the Group, such as the successful change of land use
on the land owned by PCKSP. The validity of the going concern
assumption on which the consolidated financial statements are
prepared is dependent on the successful sale of PCKSP and
favourable outcomes of the events as described above.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that
assets may need to be realised at amounts other than whose they
are currently recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In addition, the Group may have to provide for any further
liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

standards for the first time for the current year’s consolidated

financial statements.

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRIC 22

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 40

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle
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Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Amendments to IFRS 1 and
IAS 28

22 B BRESBERKE

AEBEERARNFEZGAMBRREREFERH T
Fa] RSB RTHER -

BRI s 2l 2/ TA

F95

BRI BmERD XHEFELHZHA
1558

BBV EHRERE IEXZGRBENAE
ZEgREFE22R

BIR S mEER UROGIARZ25HER
F2ASET AN HE

BRI ME LR EHERA & ER
FARIERT A FAFRE AR —0f
JE A B 7Y 75 3
ERIFEIR T A
BRI E LR  BEERY B ER

F15REET AR BIsHKEEFAA
WA
el BEREREYE
FA0FHEET A
—E—HEFES

B B 7 R HE RSB 1%
TENFHH K BIER &5+ 2RI 2855k
ZFRENE EETA

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
Other than as explained below, the adoption of the above
revised standards has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements.

(a) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces |IAS 39 Financial
Instruments.: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting.

The adoption of hedge accounting requirements of IFRS
9 has had no impact on the Group’s financial statements,
as the Group did not have any hedging relationship.
The Group has recognised the transition adjustments for
classification and measurement and impairment against
the applicable opening balances at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, the comparative information was not restated
and continues to be reported under IAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of
adopting IFRS 9 on the statement of financial position,
including the effect of replacing IAS 39’s incurred credit
loss calculations with IFRS 9's expected credit losses
(“ECLs").
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BT HEEHRINE (&)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(@) (continued) (a) (#&)

Classification and measurement (continued)

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under
IAS 39 and the balances reported under IFRS 9 as at 1
January 2018 is as follows:

IAS 39 Measurement

BB EHRAIS0RHE

PERFTE (#)

RZE—NF—A—HB BB %£8539
5% T BR (A SR & B R B 75 5k 5 £ A B 9%
SHNEHEOEROT

IFRS 9 Measurement

EBEHRERASEIRHE

Re-
Note  Category Amount  classification ECL Amount Category
WE %R &8 EFOE REGEEE &8 E5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFL ARETT ARETT ARETT

Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investment AHENERE AFS! 800 (800) - - NATER
To: Financial assets at fair value through ZRATESBRNEREE
profit or loss (i) (800) -
Financial assets at fair value through BRATETABGNEREAE
profit or loss NIATEF 800 - 800 FVPL?
From: Available-for-sale investment B AHEERE i) 800 -
Trade receivables EHRNER L&R? 335,591 - - 335591 AC*
Bills receivable ERERE L&R 35,529 - - 35529 AC
Financial assets included in prepayments, STABRFE At ERHER
other receivables and other assets HEtEENEGREE L&R 153,155 - - 153,155 AC
Financial assets included in long term FARBRAFERZEH
prepayments and deposits SHEE L&R 38,825 - - 38,825 AC
Pledged and restricted bank balances BEARRIBHIBITLES L&R 252,292 - - 252292 AC
Time deposit EHER L&R 413,717 - - 413717 AC
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBE%EYD L&R 36,392 - - 36,392 AC
Total assets EELE 1,266,301 - 1,266,301
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and bills payables LRRAETRERER AC 670,349 - - 670,349 AC
Financial liabilities included in other AR RE B
payables and accruals SRARE AC 452,883 - - 452,883 AC
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings i ERTREMEE AC 5,212,880 - - 5,212,880 AC
Fixed rate bonds and notes TREFRRE AC 608,418 - - 608,418 AC
Total liabilities BELE 6,944,530 - 6,944,530
1 AFS: Available-for-sale investments ! AFS Al ERE
2 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2 FVPL : BATEFABZHNEHEE
3 L&R: Loans and receivables 3 L&R : B 3 & R R IE
4 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised 4 AC  RE KA ENSREEXSRAR
cost

136 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

CY

(b)

(continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)
Notes:

(i) The Group has classified its equity investment in
an unlisted company previously classified as an
available-for-sale investment as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss upon adoption of IFRS 9 on
1 January 2018, as management planned to dispose of
this investment during the year ended 31 December 2018
since the investment no longer coincided with the Group’s
investment strategy.

Impairment
The adoption of IFRS 9 has had no material impact on
the impairment provisions of the Group’s financial assets.

IFRS 15 and its amendments replace IAS 11
Construction Contracts, |IAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions,
to all revenue arising from contracts with customers.
IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
gualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included
in notes 3 and 5 to the financial statements. As a result
of the application of IFRS 15, the Group has changed
the accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method,
the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the
date of initial application or only to contracts that are not
completed at this date. The Group has elected to apply
the standard to contracts that are not completed as at 1
January 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of IFRS
15 was not significant on the opening balance of
retained profits as at 1 January 2018. Besides, the
comparative information was not restated and continues
to be reported under IAS 11, IAS 18 and related
interpretations.

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 1 January 2018 as
a result of the adoption of IFRS 15:

22 8BRS REE (&)

(b)

REBCEREEFTHNEPRMBT ERS
KBTS R E R FA55E c IRIBZ A &
ERFERRBERERBEMNMBEANK
ERANREZBERATHRNAGH -AEED
BEREEZENRARE-_Z-—N\F—A—
BERERNAHL -

BRERERYBREENFEISHEN R
FEUR - \F-A-BOHOFREE
NI MERFE - BN LBRERAEET

WHEEREERE S ERE1S BEERES

ERFISFE LB REZ2 R -

NTIER—F-NF—A—RB SUHKRK
RIA B AR BRI 75 3R & R 1557
ERENTRE:

Increase/
(decrease)
i Cr )
Notes RMB’000
B 5 ARET T
Assets BE
Properties under development BRAYE (i) 45,870
Liabilities =K
Receipts in advance TE UL R IE () (920,087)
Contract liabilities EHBE (i) (ii) 965,957
45,870
Equity R _

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 31 December
2018 and for the year ended 31 December 2018 as a
result of the adoption of IFRS 15. The adoption of IFRS
15 has had no impact on other comprehensive income or
on the Group’s operating, investing and financing cash
flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BATEERAR MY RE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b)  (continued)

Consolidated statement of profit or loss as at 31
December 2018:

22 8BRS REE (&)

(o) (%)

R-ZE-NF+-_A=+—BHEHGEaER

*x:

Amounts prepared under

RBIATERREN SR

IFRS 15 Previous IFRS Increase
B B B 7 R 8 1 B
ERIE155 HBWEER & n
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5E ARBEFTT AR F T ARBEFT
Revenue WA (i) 1,620,456 1,602,227 18,229
Cost of sales 65 B AR (i) (1,358,041) (1,339,812) (18,229)
262,415 262,415 -
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 RZE-NF+ZA=+T—"HBNEEMB
December 2018: RS F
Amounts prepared under
BBEATLEAREN S
Increase/
IFRS 15 Previous IFRS (decrease)
B % B 75 e 8 1 BRR &,
HRFL55E B R R 2>)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARBFTT AR F T AR¥EFTT
Properties under B3GR ES
development (i) 1,691,699 1,674,370 17,329
Completed properties ERSEE
held for sale (i) 749,869 723,556 26,313
Total assets EERE 2,441,568 2,397,926 43,642
Receipts in advance TEU IR 0] - 853,123 (853,123)
Contract liahilities aHEE @iy (ii) 896,765 - 896,765
Total liabilities EREREEE 896,765 853,123 43,642
Total equity T 1,544,803 1,544,803 -

R N\FFERE

BIRBRARMESERERLT 139



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b)  (continued)

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January 2018 and
the reasons for the changes in the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018 and the statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
described below:

(i) Consideration received from customers in
advance
Before the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group
recognised consideration received from customers
in advance as other payables. Under IFRS 15, the
amount is classified as contract liabilities.

Therefore, upon adoption of IFRS 15, the Group
reclassified RMB920,087,000 from receipt in
advance recorded in other payables to contract
liabilities as at 1 January 2018 in relation to the
consideration received from customers in advance
as at 1 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under IFRS 15,
RMB853,123,000 was reclassified from receipt in
advance recorded in other payables to contract
liabilities in relation to the consideration received
from customers in advance for the sale of goods.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BT HEEHRINE (&)
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)  (continued) (o) (#&)

(i) WEHEWEAFBEZ 7

(ii) Significant financing component for sale of

properties

In addition to the reclassification aforementioned,
IFRS 15 requires the Group to recognise contract
liabilities for the interest on the sales proceeds with
a significant financing component based on the
incremental borrowing cost of the relevant project
company. The Group elected to apply the practical
expedient and did not recognise the effects of a
significant financing component with a customer
where the period between the payment and delivery
of properties is one year or less. As the financing
component is related to the construction of
properties, the interest is capitalised into properties
under development.

Therefore, upon adoption of IFRS 15, the Group
recognised RMB45,870,000 as interest capitalised
into properties under development and contract
liabilities as at 1 January 2018 in relation to the
significant financial component for long-term
advance from the sale of properties.

As at 31 December 2018, under IFRS 15,
RMB17,329,000 was recognised as properties under
development, while RMB44,542,000 as completed
properties held for sale and RMB61,871,000 as
contract liabilities, among which due to the sales
recognition occurred in the current year, contract
liabilities and completed properties held for sale
derived from a financial component with the same
amount of RMB18,229,000 were recognised as
revenue and cost of sales.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases!
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?®
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?*

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation?*

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material?

and IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

Settlement?

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates

and Joint Ventures?

Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,

2015-2017 Cycle IAS 12 and IAS 23!

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BHEMENKRERZE BB KR EE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to
focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BHEMENKRERZE BB KR EE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 16, replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets
the definition of investment property in IAS 40, or relates
to a class of property, plant and equipment to which
the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
IAS 17.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BHEMENKRERZE BB KR EE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under IAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard
using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach.

The Group will adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The
Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in IFRS
16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at
1 January 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In
addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
IAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
The right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised
in the statement of financial position immediately before
the date of initial application. The Group plans to use the
exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose
lease terms end within 12 months as of the date of initial
application. During 2018, the Group has performed a detailed
assessment on the impact of adoption of IFRS 16. The Group
has estimated that the adoption of IFRS 16 does not have
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

23 CHEMEERER BRI REE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an
entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without
the restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group'’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHHERME

POLICIES

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of a joint venture is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of the joint venture is included as part of the
Group’s investment in a joint venture.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment
in an associate or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in a joint venture is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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R MIRE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly
Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, investment properties and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETBEME (8
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued) FEeEMEERE (&)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting EEHREHREETEATRACHRZAER
period as to whether there is an indication that previously B rTBEERAERD 2R - WHRZS
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may B -RlgHitalkbeE - EERANBEEEE
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable BB A EREEHR  FEEUTHER
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment ZEBNIINEEREBEERR BEEHEBELT
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there AERERTFETEFZEERREMRES
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the BOBRTZEERRET 2 REE (KR EMA
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher WE/#H) ZEREBEBRELBNEEIM
than the carrying amount that would have been determined SPABRGRT O MREGEEIERZEERIN
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss EZBAT BEBEBRLQNBEZELEEZ
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of EHEGTTHE AR

such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties BER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETIHERT BEALTHERAREENEES
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (@ ZARFTETINEABNATRZEATH
family and that person: TR -
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () PEHskHEEEGARER:
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i WAEEEEAZEN 3
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) RAEESIAEEFGRAFTNFTEER
the Group or of a parent of the Group; B8 :
or B4
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (o) #ZARBTE TIEMEEREE
conditions applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZELHEASEEBER -SEIZKER
group; 7
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —HEBAS ERBMNKEQAHS
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow ERE(IBE—EBHNEAF MB
subsidiary of the other entity); RAIRARMBRABIMEE QNG HE
EAaE)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

24AFTEETTHEME (&)

BHER (&)

(b) ZHABRTETIMEFMGEENER: (&)

conditions applies: (continued)

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives and residual values used for this purpose are as
follows:

Land and buildings

T REF

Plant and machinery

B Kt 28

Office and other equipment
WMAERHMBAE

Motor vehicles

e

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction, which are stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property
for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development represent properties being
developed for sale and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises the prepaid land lease
payments or cost of land together with any other direct costs
attributable to the development of the properties and other
related expenses capitalised during the development period.
Net realisable value is determined by the directors based on
the prevailing market prices on an individual property basis
less estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. Once the development of these
properties is completed, these properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Revenue is only recognised upon completion of the
development. Sales deposits/instalments received and
receivable from purchasers in respect of the pre-sale of
properties under development prior to the completion of the
development are included in current liabilities.

If a property under development is intended to be redeveloped
into an owner-managed property, it is transferred to
construction in progress at the carrying amount.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all development
expenditure, applicable borrowing costs and other direct
costs attributable to such properties. Cost is determined by
an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings
attributable to unsold properties. Net realisable value is
determined by the directors based on the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

If an item of completed property held for sale becomes
owner-managed, it is transferred to property, plant and
equipment at the carrying amount.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Completed properties held for sale (continued)

For a transfer from an item of completed property held for
sale to investment property that will be carried at fair value
as its use has changed as evidenced by the commencement
of an operating lease, any difference between the fair value
of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount
shall be recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments represent the cost of land use
rights paid to the PRC government authorities. Prepaid land
lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
from 1 January 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both.

158 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

HE (&)

FART 4 4 7 < e 1) A B IR B S AT Y L 3t B R
R - EETHETRN TS PR AT iR
Pefe MIEE IR A B R TERR »

RERHMEREE(BE-E-N\F-A—
BERBERYBEREENFIRERZK
%)

BEAXEBRR B
EMEERNIHAR DB RERIZBEHKAS
BATVEFAEMEERS RIEATEFAER

R

ROTHERAR EMEEDBRAREREEN
BHREREFBRAREEESREENER
B -BIBEARERDAAEECEAG S
ERRETATHEAREX D WP EEL AR
B ZREUERFIN AR RAFEMNLE (fH
EREEYIIFRATFEFABR)RGKNAE
ERMEE- UBEAREXNDXAEEHCEARD
SEBRETENE HRERFABRBEAT A
BR(BZZ2-N\F—A—HEER)] &K
RIZEBEM B REERFISREENZ HERG

=

=

RETHMEERBERAIEAFEFAEMEE
EREDERE 2REERELMARERKRE
BAGTHAERFEMR([SPPI) MBS RE -

AEEEECHEENEBRAEHEERATH
BENELARERENT X -EBEARERS
MESDBBUDENEERE HESREE
EMEALITHTAEL -

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both
of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions
are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income
is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

160 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

RERHMEREE(BE-E-N\F-A—
FERBERYBEREENFIRERZK
®) (#)

BAERRE (4&)
BAFEFAREMEZERANBEE (EFT
A)

fidiim e A T ME MR AEBERIZAFEFAE
fheEmR A EET TA:

s NEEFAZRMBEENKRDAYREARE
FHESREENEBEAT AN R

REAFEFAECEZARANEFEREMS -
MEWAIMNEERHMREBERBEONBEaR
TRER WIREREHEKATENSREEMLR
MAAFE-EHBATFEZHREMLE2EE AR
BR-LIEHRE REMEEBRATREINR
AT EEFHEERTARS-

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

This category includes equity investments which the Group
had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are also recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and
gains and negative net changes in fair value presented as
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair
value changes do not include any dividends or interest earned
on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
before 1 January 2018)” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B REERAR AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

—  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

—  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low credit risk
simplification. At each reporting date, the Group evaluates
whether the debt investments are considered to have low
credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that
evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit ratings
of the debt investments. In addition, the Group considers
that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24AFTEETTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have yet not been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2019) (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

R N\FFERE

TRMEERE(R-E-LEF—-—A—-HRAR
BEBRETENEIRERZBE) (&)
BEBHEL SR 2B EE (/)

BERHEEBERBRERTHN mMEEAEER
RPHER o F B AR PR R E R & R5
BRAFEREEESBUMBERKRRSREN
MEZRGF - BERRABENEREETIKRARE
EMmo #FRRERERNER BRNEWE
328 [R] (A AR R 188 1A 2 1RO B ©

fiff 7 LA 12 1O AT - (i 5t R (B B 1R 10 & BB 3 N SR
L BARBRDABERREEEINEARMNE
£ AR AT R AR EBE T BBRHERERM
KR - W SE P E AR Y Bl - RN B BRR X B 2
RPMEMFASZARK-

THEESRRE
RAULESRKREN S ARERSHEHRF
HERFEBRERBRN AL —ARERE-

At EEECRE AIEKA (FABREM AR
SNRREBHEH) BBEFRATEZZE MK EMA
EAMCRNEERERZAEBE KEHEME2E
WaEB R WHNIERRIER -

BIRMAARMEEZRERAT 171



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, a derivative financial instrument, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
and short term notes are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy
as set out in “Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)"; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under IAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present

location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on the weighted
average basis

Work in progress and Cost of direct materials, direct

finished goods labour and an appropriate

proportion of overheads

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 TESTTHEBME (®)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred income tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

(a) when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

(b) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

176 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ﬁ 5Bt

SH RN RELEMEH - 20 B L IMNE
wmﬁﬁﬁ%m% BRI ASNMER - IR HE
b 2ER R EERNERER -

B EEER BETDREBENRE MRS KRS
FEELCEMORE (RFE)  AEBAEHE
SEMEBRBITNREREDN REHATEMR
BERKEHMESHEREFTE -

BERBRAGBERBENGENREERBED
BMERERMBHRE M S OREENTAEEL
EREE-

ERRREBUEZRIGERAEEHARE"
B RER SN -

() MEERBEBEABNEX ST VNS HEREE
SEESIEBBERELE MZXHWIIEBE
B BERRZSEN R 85w Aok R
| SEIE &

(b) RERHMBEBLARARAEARNZKREABN

EARNERUEEZERMS NWEREEZENS

(o] B F) A LA 1 - S B B 1 22 R AT B 3R
ETEWEEER

BT AT HURCE B 1 2 B2 R R B A AR IR R S B AR AR
APARBERNEEORER/ETCHBEE -
B RERUE ST IR B B /R 1T /= R A B AR Bt A
HHNAMEESEER AR EREER
RARGABHEBENEE  ETIBERERIN:

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

(a) when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

(b) in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to deferred
income account and deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no
or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government
loans is determined using the effective interest rate method,
as further explained in the accounting policy for “Financial
liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and
the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS
15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHHERBE (®)
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January BWARR(B=Z—N\FE—A—HAEER)
2018) (continued) (&)
Sale of goods HEHm
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in HEEMHNBRAREENEFECEBRER, (—
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, MAXNER)RER-

generally on delivery of the goods.

Sale of properties HEYE

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at the point HEMENRARBEEESEYAMERSKE T
in time when the purchasers obtained the physical possession ITYENETEMEEAAESBEEESRENMNK
or the legal title of the completed property and the Group FESRBEN AR P] RE MR Ol H B R RE R o

has a present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

Other income Eg A

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the MEWAZEZFEECAERMNE LR &
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly HASSR T A TEE ] {5 R F A= EE A (ﬁﬂ
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the HR) 2B ARRSRALERUBREZSMEE
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, ZEEFENLETARR -

when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial

asset.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January WARR(R=ZE—N\E—A—HAHER)
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic MBLEEFNZAIEERAREE  MBABEHR
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be BTINEERSEMETE  BIERKA -

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and (a) HEER EHBENERER KD HREE
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, TEFRERAAR EAERETHRH—
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial BEMEEAENEERY BERME D
involvement to the degree usually associated with B oM E R R

ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of manufacturing services, when the (o) RHBERD MNIRHEEERBR®ER
underlying services have been rendered;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective (c) MEWA REFFEENERTNEELGSH
interest method by applying the rate that exactly TEREAMEFAAFHMGEHEREKBMHER
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the CEHMARESREEREDFEMMNE
expected life of the financial instrument to the net "R &

carrying amount of the financial asset; and
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January

2018) (continued)

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received a
consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages
of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

Other benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all existing
and retired employees under these plans. Contributions to
these plans by the Group are expensed as incurred. The
Group has no further obligations for benefits for their qualified
employees under these plans.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

The Company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands uses the
Hong Kong dollar as its functional currency. The functional
currency of the PRC subsidiaries is RMB. As the Group
mainly operates in Mainland China, RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the Group. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and a joint venture are currencies other than the RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EESTHERMAS

AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
subsidiaries in Mainland China according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing and amount
of the payment of the dividend. Withholding taxes are only
provided for the profits of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
which the Group considers probable to be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease,
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar

EZRgsHHE KA (8

N TARERR
BRAKRKNEERRENRERRGEFT T HEER
EMEMIERR (ZEBRRETEERRGF
EEYTEMBRFENEELABENREELR
AiEFH B ERRER) BT -

REWHFZ 2 FlElGE
%ﬁ}%iEiﬁi@%ﬁ’\\iﬂ%ﬁ%zfﬁﬁﬁw A ER

properties, the Group considers information from a variety of EgZRitZEsEmasar aiE:
sources, including:
(a) current prices in an active market for properties of a (a) TRAME - -RRKHBE 2 MERNTERT IS 2

different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

RAEBR (KHBURREEEZE)

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, (b EREEBBLMISAREHREYER
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic B (KRAEARM BIRZEERETR %
conditions since the date of the transactions that g RNAREERR 2 EMES) &
occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable () WEFERKRRSREMIER REFHEMZ &

estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs to sell is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and
legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation
of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of
the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives
and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year
end date based on changes in circumstances.

R N\FFERE

EZRgsHHE KA (8

EEFN T RERER (4)
HEHEERE (BEEFI)

AEERBZREBRAGREETATRBE T
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REEZWEEREERETRENA ZEEERR
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FEREEXAREEREEZMARSE) 8
HERME - A FEREERATUAREEERT
RHHHRMEER S RRBIBHATBETISE
RBHEZEENEENARARELEFE -HHTT
EREEFES BEEEBVAGITEERRESE
EEVMNBRARRREARENEZAENMEEX
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WE - BERIEHARZHFHREGE
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AEEAEZEEEREAR BEEEERE UE
SIMBRMREEBE KAHEENEMARE
BHAMEHERNE EENBHERBR &
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily
involves significant management’s judgements regarding the
future performance of a particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of
other factors are also evaluated in considering whether there
is convincing evidence that it is probable that some portions
or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised,
such as the existence of taxable temporary differences, tax
planning strategies and the periods in which estimated tax
losses can be utilised. The carrying amounts of the deferred
tax assets and related financial models and budgets are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and to the extent
that there is insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient
taxable profits will be available within the utilisation periods
to allow the utilisation of the carryforward of tax losses, and
that the asset balance will be reduced and charged to profit or
loss.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the write-down requires involves
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will have an impact on the carrying
amounts of inventories and the write-down/write-back of
inventories in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.
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R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type,
and coverage by credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customers’ actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in
note 23 to the financial statements.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the steel pipes segment engages in the manufacture and
sale of welded steel pipes and the provision of related
manufacturing services; and

(b) the property development and investment segment
engages in development of properties for sale and
property investment for its rental income potential.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except that
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EEHHER (|
(continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—NE+-A=+—HLEFE
Property
development
Steel pipes and investment Total
L EE
HE BiERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARBTR ARET R

Segment revenue (note 5): DEBWA (KIES) -
Sales to external customers RINEE P S 1,071,126 549,330 1,620,456
Segment results: DERELE (450,924) 13,489 (437,435)
Reconciliation: HR:
Corporate and other unallocated NEREMAD X

expenses (77,717)
Finance costs BE R A (97,206)
Loss before tax BRELAIE B (612,358)
Segment assets: DEHEE: 2,130,145 3,907,034 6,037,179
Reconciliation: #R:
Elimination of intersegment 5 S0 e We 0B

receivables 1,808,722
Corporate and other DA R EM KD ELE E

unallocated assets 2,162,392
Total assets BEE 10,008,293
Segment liabilities: SBEE: 3,556,466 3,482,512 7,038,978
Reconciliation: Hhk -
Elimination of intersegment payables 1K 88 5> SP ] FE A 5108 1,808,722
Corporate and other REAKEMASEERE

unallocated liabilities 930,320
Total liabilities wafsE 9,778,020
Other segment information: HthpBER:
Share of loss of a joint venture BlE—HaEREBE (2,724) - (2,724)
Impairment losses recognised in the REREER R ERE

statement of profit or loss (7,053) - (7,053)
Depreciation and amortisation FrEREH (165,464) (349) (165,813)
Investment in a joint venture R—BEaERAIZEE 31,832 = 31,832
Capital expenditure* BARREL* 22,430 41 22,471
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MY 5
31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., EEPEER (@)

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—+tHF+-A=1+—HLFE

Property
development
Steel pipes  and investment Total
LR
HE B E HE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBF T ARBFT ARBFT
Segment revenue: DEWA
Sales to external customers RSP P E 873,293 - 873,293
Segment results: DERELE (696,862) (66,273) (763,135)
Reconciliation: HER:
Corporate and other unallocated NE R EAM AR B %
expenses (48,227)
Finance costs RE A (77,001)
Loss before tax PR A 1B (888,363)
Segment assets: DEUEE: 2,280,918 3,967,474 6,248,392
Reconciliation: Bl
Elimination of intersegment 5 S0 e W 0B
receivables 1,508,800
Corporate and other DA R EM KD EE E
unallocated assets 2,395,904
Total assets mEE 10,153,096
Segment liabilities: SHEE: 3,483,172 3,308,419 6,791,591
Reconciliation: HER:
Elimination of intersegment payables 85 9 B ] FE 1 5108 1,508,800
Corporate and other REkEMARDEAR
unallocated liabilities 1,006,640
Total liabilities wafE 9,307,031
Other segment information: HthpHER:
Share of loss of a joint venture ElE—HAERRER (2,779) - (2,779)
Impairment losses recognised in the RIBREERZREEBE
statement of profit or loss (31,265) - (31,265)
Impairment losses reversed in the REZRERZREEBE
statement of profit or loss 4,530 - 4,530
Depreciation and amortisation FrEREHE (169,093) (408) (169,501)
Investment in a joint venture R—BEERAZIRE 34,556 - 34,556
Capital expenditure* VNG 34,116 140 34,256
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BAREBEREYE BERE&EE-

equipment.
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BATEERAR MY RE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

4.

— =
=
—=

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about steel pipe products and services

and property development

The revenue from the major products and services is analysed

as follows:

4. EEDWER (#)

HEERRBRBURDEMBER

TEEMERBEOBAIHTMOT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBFT

Manufacture and sale of steel pipes: HERHEERE:
LSAW steel pipes B MEE 591,276 512,343
SSAW steel pipes BHEIRE 120,779 37,370
ERW steel pipes EREE 30,576 129,924

Steel pipe manufacturing services: e SE RS

LSAW steel pipes HEgBEE 195,682 47,165
SSAW steel pipes B IRE 72,786 24,190
ERW steel pipes BEEEE 897 1,286
Others* H > 59,130 121,015
1,071,126 873,293
Sales of properties HEW 549,330 -
1,620,456 873,293

* Others mainly include the manufacture and sale of steel fittings,
screw-thread steels and scrap materials, and the trading of

equipment and steel plates.
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RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., EEPEER (@)
(continued)
Geographical information

i B &R
(@ WAEHREFPHMESREDANT

(a) The revenue information based on the locations of the

customers is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AR®EFT

Sales to external customers: RINEBE P 88 &
Mainland China o B A, 1,353,922 467,733
America FM - 44,932
European Union BN B B2 2,026 536
Middle East R 81,421 7,396
Africa FEM - 114,951
Other Asian countries HE i MBER 166,404 160,652
Oceania KM 16,683 77,093
1,620,456 873,293

(b) Over 90% of the Group’s assets and capital expenditure
are located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers
No revenue generated from a single customer amounted to
10% or more of total revenue of the Group for the year.

Revenue from each major customer which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for 2017 is set out below:

Customer A Z2EA
Customer B ZFB

(b) AEBEMEEKE AR ZEI0% L7 F

A b

FEEFEHR

FAMERAE -FFRPONRAGREEBAEA

10% A F o

RZTF—EFRAEREBERAL0%HIA EZE

TEREPZBAHIIMT

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARBEF T

97,986
90,866
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

WA - E At A K W 5

WA - FEFEREEEmMATRE ARG EHZEE
OERIBER (BER]) REMEER XEFA
RERITHEE-

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold and
services rendered, net of value-added tax (“VAT”) and other
sales taxes, after allowances for returns and discounts during
the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains REBEWA - HBRARKZIITAT
is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBF T
Revenue from contracts with customers REEEFEHZWA
Manufacture and sale of seam welded steel BUERHERBIEZNE &

pipes and the provision of related IR AL AR R B A5 AR

manufacturing services 1,071,126 873,293
Sale of properties HEYE 549,330 -

1,620,456 873,293
Other income and gains Hib W A & W&
Bank interest income HRITHLE A 26,812 38,792
Subsidy income from the PRC government P B BAT RO A A (B 3E32) *

(note 32)* 46,534 26,914
Compensation HE 79 67,077
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEDE BEEEKEEBEA R

plant and equipment and prepaid land FEN A W=

lease payments - 5,879
Others Hth 8,154 1,891

81,579 140,553
*  The subsidy income represents subsidies granted by the * FRNRA T T BT BR T EBRIME (F

%) ERWIAE ERWINE (5F)
B 875 RO 8 (R 7 R BB R - SR T B
28 K B SAE (T B RO A

to such subsidies. 18 °

local finance bureaus to PCKSP (Lianyungang), PCKSP,
PCKSP (Zhuhai), and Kaidi as awards for their products.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5 WA-HAtW AR WE (&)
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZWA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) DEURAEH
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—N\E+-ZA=+—HLEE
Property
development and
Steel pipes investment Total
WE YERBERE HE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT AR®TT ARBETT

Sales of goods/properties HEmM/ ME 1,071,126 549,330 1,620,456
Geographical markets BT 5
Mainland China LETRpi 804,592 549,330 1,353,922
European Union BUM B 2 2,026 - 2,026
Middle East FR 81,421 - 81,421
Other Asian countries Hb MR 166,404 - 166,404
Oceania KM 16,683 - 16,683
Total revenue from contracts with RABEPEHZBEA

customers 1,071,126 549,330 1,620,456
Timing of revenue recognition PN +4=3
Goods/properties transferred at a point B @,/ WERE —EREET

in time with customers By 1,071,126 549,330 1,620,456
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRINTARAREHD EBREAF T AR
recognised in the current reporting period that were HERVEHNABERENBERBEENX
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of BHETHER &

the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2018
—B-N\F
RMB’000
ARBT
Revenue recognised that was included FARBEHNEHNEEBZEEIANRA:
in contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:
Sale of steel pipes i E 8 275,402
Sale of properties MEHE 507,700
783,102
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA -HtWARKE (%)
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEFEHZWA (&)
(i) Performance obligations (i) BHE
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is ERASBRNETZERBMANT

summarised below:

Sale of steel pipes HE 15 E

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods BHEETDRRXNEaRENRNREBE
and payment is generally due within one year from the invoice date, REZHHEFT —FAIE ERREFPEE
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally BRI R e

required.

Sale of properties v /ES A

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the physical BHEETREFEMEEE T IWESK
possession or when the legal title of the completed property is ERSE T IYEZEATEREEREN-

obtained by the purchasers.

6. OTHER EXPENSES 6. Ht&ERH
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥F ARBEFT
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR ZEE 36 25,865 -
Loss on deregister of subsidiaries MELRFHEER 2 EE 14,008 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BERLEES
plant and equipment 19,533 -
Compensation B8 23,386 576
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EKRFRE 23 2,450 1,721
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of iﬁﬁmlﬁ&ﬁmf%lm
prepayments and other receivables BE CRERR) 24 4,603 (12)
Write-down of inventories to net Mo EEE R #R)%E
realisable value - 7,020
Others H A, 3,587 3,568
93,432 12,873
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profit or loss.
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7. LOSS BEFORE TAX 7. REAIEE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REEMBRF BB B TR, (5T A)
(crediting):
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —T—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T ARBEFT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKAE 730,714 542,921
Cost of properties sold EEMENA 479,797 -
Depreciation e 13 140,406 143,045
Share of loss of a joint venture B —HEaE R AEE 2,724 2,779
Amortisation of prepaid land TET L b FE 2 8
lease payments 18 25,407 26,456
Minimum lease payments under KEMRESEEASIR
operating leases 10,458 9,613
Auditor’s remuneration T?%( Bl B 2,460 3,489
Exchange (gain)/loss, net (Wez) /B8 558 (16,241) 44,121
Fair value gain on an investment property %xéf%%AEFTEWE 16 (21,779) -
Fair value loss on a derivative MEemIEZATFEEBE
financial instrument 33 22,984 -
Employee benefit expenses EERAME (BEEEHH
(including directors’ remuneration (FF7E9) ) :
(note 9)):
Wages and salaries Iﬁ&%ﬁ% 140,257 156,789
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRAE R F I 15,095 21,219
Impairment of trade receivables* Z 5 FE W BR BORE * 23 2,450 1,721
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of & & & CH e WRIE
deposits and other receivables* BAE (BEERE) * 24 4,603 12)
Write-down of inventories to net HOR AT B = A &3 )FEx
realisable value* - 7,020
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BEREHRE
equipment 13 - 18,006
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 5 (26,812) (38,792)
Research and development costs Tift 32 B A 38,718 72,363
* Included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of FPAGREBmEAAN[HMER] -
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

8. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on bank and other borrowings

8. WERAX
BEKADHTIT :
2018 2017
—E-N\%F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

RITREMEEF S

AR¥T R ARBET T

(including bonds and notes) (BHEEHFEER) 462,155 470,153
Interest on finance leases BEHEEN S 4,344 11,754
Interest on discounted bills BERIIREEFE 9,868 8,717
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not ~ W IR AFEFABRZz SR AE

at fair value through profit or loss g kA EFMZ A5 476,367 490,624
Less: Interest capitalised Ve = N oI D= (101,899) (64,338)

374,468 426,286

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Details of directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),(b),(c) and
(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of

9. EEHM

the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

FREEHFMN2FBRELTRAN -BEAF
15 5125383(1)(a) * (b) () R (s R A (HEE
FEFZEER) RO F2WWEMNT

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Fees we 589 587
Other emoluments: EAh i

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMREWEN 3,861 3,706

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RARAE T FT 814 5% 65 65

3,926 3,771

4,515 4,358

R N\FFERE
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEHFM (m
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIYFHITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REN BENBYFERTES2ESOT:
during the year were as follows:
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARBETF T
Mr. Chen Ping B A 198 198
Mr. See Tak Wah MefEEE S A 193 191
Mr. Tian Xiao Ren HE g % & 198 198
589 587
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER BEENTEIFERTESTOHHAM
independent non-executive directors during the year e (ZFE—tF &)
(2017: Nil).
(b) Executive directors (b) BMITESE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e RER BAERMFE
ok BMEA H} B2 P
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR
Year ended 31 December 2018 HEZZE—N\#F
tTZA=t+—-HLEE
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Chen Chang BRE &4 = 1,892 = 1,892
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian BkF Lt - 990 31 1,021
Ms. Chen Zhao Hua BRkEL L = 979 34 1,013
- 3,861 65 3,926
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE=-Z—+#
+-A=+-BLEE
Executive directors: MITES
Mr. Chen Chang BRE LA - 1,842 - 1,842
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian BRkER L - 935 32 967
Ms. Chen Zhao Hua BkEZ L - 929 33 962
- 3,706 65 3,771
There was no arrangement under which a director RE R B & = N E kR B RE A
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the FNm B
year.
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. ABBREFHFEE

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
are analysed as follows:

AEBRFANAERSHEEDOWAOT

Number of employees

EE%E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Directors 5% 3
Non-director highest paid employees FEEHSFHESE 2 2
5 5

Details of the remuneration of the above directors are set
out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the above
non-director highest paid employees during the year are as

EPREEZ HEFFIEHII N L XXM - L3k
EEBSFEERFANFMNFEBET:

follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYET 1,513 1,420
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RORAE FIET B R 34 34
1,547 1,454

The number of these non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as
follows:

TIHMEENFEERSFHEREAZBNT

Number of employees

EE#A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
2 2

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to the directors or any of the five highest paid employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

R N\FFERE

RERN AEERERNZSEETATERRFE
BEA— RN EAMMEERRSIMAREB K
MMAREE R RE S REB A (B -

WIRARARMEZRERAT 199



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
Other than the directors and the five highest paid employees,
the number of members of senior management whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

EEBREFHES (&)

BREELhAAGEEHEBRIN BTIHFHERD
BREEEREAZRLT:

Number of employee

EE&A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$400,001 to HK$600,000 400,001% 7T £600,000/% 7T 1 1
1 1

11. INCOME TAX
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

The Company, which was incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
is not subject to income tax.

Lessonstart Enterprises Limited (“Lessonstart”) and Lucknow
Consultants Limited (“Lucknow”), which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, are not subject to income tax.

Crown Central Holdings Limited (“Crown Central”), Chu
Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Ltd. (“CKSPG”) and View Sharp
International Limited (“View Sharp”), which were incorporated
in Hong Kong, were subject to profits tax at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in
Hong Kong during the year.

200 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

11. Fr8#H

REBARKREBKE RBITEREESNRDERE
BATEASRBOEN HEBEEZAMEH-

ARFREEBS MR - BEMRBFTIEH -

FlEEEBEAR AR ([FM=EEZE])KRLucknow
Consultants Limited ( [Lucknow | ) R E B iR & &
B BARMTSH -

KPEEERRAR (e ]) HWITHEEREER
AF ([WIHESE]) ERBREAERQA (R
#]) (BERBEMRIL)RNEFNEETBELN
il 5t SR B0 M ZH 4216.5% B9 B¢ R BN R 1S 35

RS BRI A BB E L S REUVE(TE
RIS I BAE R BB RIS T -

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

11. INCOME TAX (continued) 11. Fr88 (@)

PCK Steel Middle East FZE (“PCK(UAE)”), which was
incorporated in Dubai, the United Arab Emirates on 20 May
2013, is exempted from corporate income tax for the years
from 2013 to 2028 according to the preferential corporate tax
policy in Jebel Ali Free Zone in the United Arab Emirates.

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP”), as a High
and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) qualified on 16
December 2008 and renewed in 2011, 2014 and 2017, is
entitled to a reduced tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2019. Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe (Zhuhai)
Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP (Zhuhai)”), as a HNTE qualified on 30
September 2015 and renewed in 2018, is entitled to a
reduced tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020.

Zhuhai Zhugang Wharf Co. Ltd. (“Zhugang Wharf”) and
Zhuhai Zhonghai Xin Building Materials Industry and Trade
Co., Ltd. (“Zhonghai Xin”) meet the requirements of tax
privileges for small enterprises and were entitled to a reduced
tax rate of 10%.

Pursuant to the PRC Income Tax Law and the respective
regulations, except for certain preferential tax treatments
available to PCKSP, PCKSP(Zhuhai), Pabo Detection and
Zhugang Whart, the companies of the Group which operate in
Mainland China were subject to Corporate Income Tax (“CIT")
at a rate of 25% on their respective taxable income for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the prevailing tax rates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

R N\FFERE

PCK Steel Middle East FZE ([PCK(UAE) ) ' =
Z-=FRAA-THRWAREeEREEFT
Mz REMAEHEEREAAEMNEGHE
5 1% (Jebel Ali Free Zone) 2 B E ¥ R -
PCKUAE) R ZZE—=FZ=_F - )\FEHREH
MIEEMEH -

EBHRIMEARQAA([FEBHIME] N =
EEN\F+ZATANBETASTREMEE (&
MM YR -T——F —FT—NEK
T FREEEEMER BT —+tF—A
—BE_E-NE+_A=+-BEEZTHI%
MEREHE - BRKIME (ZKF)ERAE ([F
BHIME (K8 )R=E—aAFLA=+H
BEFAaHBMCE YR_ZS—N\FELEES
BER B -_T—N\F—-—A—HEZ-ZZT_ZTF
T R=+—HEAERZTEIS%HRETE -

HABBEERGERAN ((HABH)) R4
BEEEsERM TEARAR ([TE8)AE
N SRR AE - A T 10% &) S B

REFPBEMESTOERBBER BERKIME
HEBRWTHME (RE) - HER8 RIRITERER
ETEBEVRBFEIN AKEE TR E AL
BZRRARBWHREAEZBHE-T N
FTA=ZT"ALFEZERRBVAZRLE
PR ([REMEHR]) -

REEBZEREANRITER RENEH
3 B FE BR Bt M ) AR TR IR IR AT I KAt E o
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

11. INCOME TAX (continued) 11. FREH (&)
The major components of the income tax expense for the year FANBHRASMNEZAXNBLET
are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-)N\E e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBEFT
Current — Mainland China BNER— A B A b
Charged for the year FALZM 50,398 574
Deferred (note 21) RE (PfF3E21) (163,821) (15,182)
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year FAMIE (KR) FXBE (113,423) (14,608)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before
tax at the statutory tax rates for the countries in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled
to the tax expense at the Group’s effective tax rates, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rates to the effective tax rates,
are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018

HARE

HBRBABENHENS (BRARFR

HARHOMBRRMENBERKOEERKFTE
HAKERERH R EOBR AR E
AR EEERERRNERNAT

BE-FE-N\Ft+-A=+t—-HLEFE

Mainland China Hong Kong and others Total
HER EREREMLEE @t
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREFR AR¥TT ARETR
Loss before tax BRRAEE (437,310) (175,048) (612,358)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREHENHE (109,327) 25.0 (4,788) 27 (114,115) 18.6
Tax effect of: RBeE:
Lower tax rate for HNTEs BHRNCEZRERE (401) 0.1 - - (401) 0.1
Lower tax rate enacted by local authority EMEERA RIERX (32) = - - (32) -
Expenses not deductible for tax TAMBA % 2,058 (0.5) - - 2,058 (0.3)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of HREHRANEREZ AR
previous periods (6) - - - (6) -
Loss attributable to a joint venture ElE-HAaerrfBR 409 (0.2) - - 409 1
Temporary difference EREER 41,027 (9.4) - - 41,027 6.7)
Tax losses brought forward from previous ~ AFFERRZ GBEFELEH Y
years recognised in current year, net of WEBE MBAFEAER
tax losses not recognised in current year HEER (47,151) 10.8 4,788 2.7 (42,363) (6.9)
Tax credit at the Group’s effective tax rate ~ BASEERH LB HARE (113,423) 25.9 - - (113,423) 185
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11.

12.

— =
=
—=

INCOME TAX (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2017

11.

FEH (@)
BE-_Z—tHF+=-A=+—HLFE

Mainland China Hong Kong and others Total
R R FEREMBE st
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARETT ARETL ARETT
Loss before tax BREAEE (738,103) (150,260) (888,363)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREFENTE (184,526) 25.0 (3,997) 2.7 (188,523) 21.2
Tax effect of: HEEE:
Lower tax rate for HNTEs BMRMEENHRERE 38,785 (5.2) - - 38,785 (4.4)
Lower tax rate for small enterprises DGR ENRER X
with low profit (171) - - - (171) -
Expenses not deductible for tax TEMBAS 4,107 (0.5) - - 4,107 (0.5)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BT HRMEERIE AR
previous periods 543 0.1) - - 543 0.1)
Loss attributable to a joint venture ElE-HAaerrmER 47 (0.2) - - 417 -
Tax losses not recognised ABEANTIEER 126,237 (17.1) 3,997 2.7) 130,234 (14.6)
Tax expense at the Group's effective tax rate KA EEERH R+ B HH AR (14,608) 2.0 - - (14,608) 1.6
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BRAEEREAERARLEERER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,011,142,000 (2017: 1,011,142,000) in issue during the
year.

The calculation of the diluted loss per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. Because the exercise price of the warrant instrument
was greater than the share price as at 31 December 2018 and
the diluted loss per share amount is increased when taking
the warrant instrument into account, the warrant instrument
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the
year and was ignored in the calculation of diluted loss per
share.

—N\EFERE

EREABEDRES AR LT BRAER AE
EFEFEEBERFAEBITERRMNETSH
1,011,142,0000% ( ==& —+ 4 :1,011,142,000
fR)ETE -

BEREEERIRES QA EBRAER ARG
FEBEFE - ARXRBREETAZITEERR
ZE-NFTZA=t+—BZRESREFTRR
ERETIANSRESERSBAMEM ¥R
BREEIAHAFESREAERARBEZE
R E SRS E R A 2B TR
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME - -BERRE
Office
Land and Plant and and other Motor Construction
buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
WAER
THREER EERES Hity R RE EEIR @zt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR%TR ARETR

31 December 2018 ZE-\F+tZfA=+-H
At 31 December 2017 and R-E—+F+-A=+-BK

1 January 2018 —Z-\$-A-H
Cost: A 894,775 2,799,273 46,365 51,109 863,656 4,655,178
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2t 7 E K& (130,381)  (1,378,272) (39,138) (24,633) - (1,572,424
Net carrying amount FEFE 764,394 1,421,001 7,227 26,476 863,656 3,082,754

At 1 January 2018, net of accumulated R-E-N\F—-A—8H"

depreciation and impairment NHREHFTERAE 764,394 1,421,001 7,221 26,476 863,656 3,082,754
Additions RE = 4,039 456 585 17,391 22,471
Disposals HE (2,249) (52,689) (2,220) (1,652) (21,949) (80,759)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HERBAR (HE36) (30,448) (20,319) (1,515) (128) (19,677) (72,087)
Deregister of subsidiaries FAHERNBAF (2,629) (4,837) (72) (302) = (7,840)
Depreciation provided during the year FRAFERRE (33,046) (101,953) (1,076) (4,331) = (140,406)
Transfers E3 - 4,875 - = (4,875) =
Exchange realignment S - 151 18 61 1,447 1,677
At 31 December 2018, net of accumulated R-Z—\F+-A=+—H"

depreciation and impairment MR EHNERRE 696,022 1,250,268 2,818 20,709 835,993 2,805,810
At 31 December 2018: RZE-N\E+ZA=1+—-8:

Cost A 850,000 2,322,130 27,323 42,961 835,993 4,078,407
Accumulated depreciation and impairment R E K& (153,978)  (1,071,862) (24,505) (22,252) - (1,272,597)
Net carrying amount REFE 696,022 1,250,268 2818 20,709 835,993 2,805,810
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ -BERSZE (@#@)

(continued)

Office
Land and Plant and and other Motor  Construction
buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
MRER
THRET BEREE itk nE ERIR @it

RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR

31 December 2017 ZE-tF+ZA=1-H
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"E+ZA=+-AH

and 1 January 2017: RZE—+5-A-R:
Cost % 822,406 2,806,251 49,738 55,232 1,020,256 4,753,883
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Rt 7 E R & (104,885)  (1,272,040) (39,880) (21,763) - (1,438,568)
Net carrying amount FHFE 717,521 1,534,211 9,858 33,469 1,020,256 3,315,315

At 1 January 2017, net of accumulated RZE-+F5-A-81"

depreciation and impairment MR 2BEHAERAE 717,521 1,534,211 9,858 33,469 1,020,256 3,315,315
Additions RE 528 1,365 257 - 32,106 34,256
Disposals L& (96,561) (4,416) (378) (2,206) - (103,561)
Depreciation provided during the year FRFHROTE (36,864) (99,080) (2,481) (4,620) - (143,045)
Impairment HE - (18,006) - - - (18,006)
Transfers #E 179,770 7,105 - - (186,875) -
Exchange realignment BN AR - (178) (29) (167) (1,831) (2,205)

At 31 December 2017, net of accumulated HR-Z—+F+-A=+—H"

depreciation and impairment NRE2BEFERAE 764,394 1,421,001 7,227 26,476 863,656 3,082,754
At 31 December 2017: RZE—+E+ZA=1—R:
Cost AR 894,775 2,799,273 46,365 51,109 863,656 4,655,178
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  2TE# & K& (130,381)  (1,378,272) (39,138) (24,633) - (1,572,424
Net carrying amount FEFE 764,394 1,421,001 7,227 26,476 863,656 3,082,754
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥ -BERRE (&)

Impairment tests for property, plant and equipment
When any indicators of impairment are identified, property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment based on
each CGU. The CGU is an individual plant or entity. The
carrying values of these individual plants or entities were
compared to the recoverable amounts of the CGUs, which were
based predominantly on value-in-use. Value-in-use calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period. Cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using the same
cash flow projections of the fifth year. Other key assumptions
applied in the impairment tests include the expected product
price, demand for the products, product cost, finance cost and
other related expenses, with the consideration of the possible
significant decrease in finance cost following the measures
adopted by management. Management determined that these
key assumptions were based on past performance and their
expectations on market development. Further, the Group
adopts a pre-tax rate of 18% (2017: 15%) that reflects specific
risks related to CGUs as the discount rate. The assumptions
above are used in analysing the recoverable amounts of CGUs
within operating segments.

Effect on value-in-use calculations

Increase in the revenue growth rate of 5%
Decrease in the revenue growth rate of 5%

As a result of the impairment assessment, no impairment was
recognised against the property, plant and equipment in the
steel pipes segment for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB18,006,000).

206 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

W AIE & K I H15%
Y A8 £ R 5%

M- BERHRE 2R ENR
HWEHRTMRETR ISRESREELE
NEME BELKBIEREFGE - REELE
NREABREREL ZEEEMFEAEENE
EESRSELEMHATRESEELER MR
CEABMZAINESEDEEREEREER
H-ERMEBEENREEEECHEZEFMRIE
HRABAReRERAAE - BHEFH R
EREDFAERLFHERANR S REFRAETHE
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{37 2 AT Y [E] 5 8

HEREBEEITEZRE
Fluctuation in
value-in-use Balance of
amount value-in-use
FEREESE FEREE
ZKE 2R
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARETT

7,296 3,212,985
(7,296) 3,198,393

BEREFHZER #B#E2_Z—N\F+=A
T+ BULHFE EREBVYERRMESB2Y
¥ BERIKBZREGE(ZZE—tF: AR
18,006,0007T) °
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥ -BERRE (&)

The Group’s land and buildings are held under medium term
leases and are situated in Mainland China.

Included in the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment was capitalised interest of RMB308,097,000 as at
31 December 2018 (2017: RMB308,097,000).

Included in the total costs of plant and machinery are certain
assets acquired in prior years for which government grants
of RMB5,950,000 (2017: RMB5,950,000) were received and
deducted from their costs in arriving at their carrying amounts.
The original costs of those assets before the deduction of the
grants amounted to RMB117,183,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB117,183,000).

Details of the Group’s property, plant and machinery pledged to
secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 27.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of
the Group located in Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Lianyungang and
Ningbo with a total net carrying amount of approximately
RMB206,616,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB222,860,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant
PRC authorities. As at the end of the reporting period, the
directors were still in the process of obtaining these certificates.

The net carrying amount of the Group’s fixed assets held
under finance leases included in the total amounts of
plant and machinery at 31 December 2018 was nil (2017:
RMB182,596,000).

As mentioned in note 45 “Events after the reporting period”,
land and buildings of RMB88,194,000 will be disposed in the
coming years during the asset reorganisation process (as
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 12 February
2018). Details of the above transaction were disclosed on the
Company’s announcement and circular dated 27 February
2019 and 26 March 2019, respectively.

R N\FFERE

AREE N T30 LB F AR B A - T5iR i+
IES R

RZE—N\F+_A=+—H W% BEILRE
Z BREEREEAEF B A A R #308,097,0007T
—ZE=—+F: AR¥308,097,0007T) °

RATFRRENE TEEDTABE R#EH
HBRARR RERERER  REBDRERARD
MR B2 5 & B B B BT 48 Bh A R #55,950,000
T (ZF—tF: AR¥5,950,0007T) cHRZF—N
F+ZA=+—HB ZEEERMBREHHORK
AiEE ARKE117,183,000 (ZE—+tF: AR
117,183,0007T) °

REBBREME BB MR AEREEBIRTT
B IR E27

R-ZE—N\F+—A=+—HB KANEBELLREN -
KE EEEREENETEFHARERBES
BEPIEEmMAREE ZSEFOREFES
ST #)A ANR%206,616,0000C (—ZE—HF: AR
222,860,0007T) - RS AR  EEMAENIEZE
BENHBTE-

RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H0 FAEEREREM
EFArETEEZRAFE Bt ASKBER
MWeE 2 HBBEN EAT(ZE—LF AR
#182,596,0007T ) °

WANPT S [FREBMEFE] iR REESHA
WAZA 2R A B A R #588,194,0007T 2 1
rEF (BUAAGBHAZTE-N\F-_A+=A
ZAMEE) - EMR HFEE D RIRA AR A
BIE-NE_AZ+EHZAMBEZ=ZZ—N%F
Z AT+ ANAZBEKEE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P e e
31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H
14. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 14 BRPYE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARBFIT
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—R—BZEHE 2,601,118 2,233,137
Additions NE 316,383 367,981
Transfer to completed properties held for sale HEEEKGEME (1,225,802) -
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ A=+—HBZ2EmHE 1,691,699 2,601,118
No impairment/reversal of impairment was recognised in the HEZT-NF+_A=T—"HBLEFE #HER

15.

statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s properties
under development with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB1,105,871,000 (2017: RMB1,355,945,000) were pledged
to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to the
Group (note 27).

All properties under development are situated in Mainland
China and were held under long term leases as at 31
December 2018 and 2017.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located
in Mainland China. All completed properties held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB373,919,000 (2017: Nil) were pledged to secure certain
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 27).

15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. REW =
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBF T

Commercial property in Mainland China A2 R

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 1,138,221 1,138,221
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NP EHAEZFRE 21,779 -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—RAZEEE 1,160,000 1,138,221

The Group’s investment property consist of one commercial
property in Mainland China, which is held under medium term
leases. The directors of the Company have determined that
the investment property is a commercial asset, based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of the property.

Based on the valuation by RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, at 31 December
2018, the fair value of the investment property was
RMB1,160,000,000 (31 December 2017: RMB1,138,221,000),
respectively. Each year, the Group’s property manager and
the chief financial officer decided, after approval from the audit
committee, to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group’s property manager and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed
for interim and annual financial reporting.

R N\FFERE

AREBMKREDEBRTE —BUXHE AL EA
WE RERHROBE - ERNVENEE - BFER
PASHNER ARAREZRREVEEERRD
REE-

BEBYEXEERGEMKMNITHERRE
BARIR-_ZE—NE+_A=+—B2GHE #&
EWmE 2 AN FEAAREL160,000,000T (=ZF
—tF+=-A=+—8: AR%1,138,221,000
TL) o AEBMA Y ELCE R EBESFREIN
EHEMz AR CRESEZZESHER £
FHAEAREEYE 2N BMEE TEKREBRE
MHEMH BE BUERETHEFFEKE R
SEMNYELERVBEEESFRPHRFENR
BaEETHER BEEMRGEERIRGEE
BREITH R
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RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

16. REWE (&)
NFEEHR
TERAAEEBEME Y A FHEHEER:

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment property:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using

REEB-N\F+ZA=Z+-HEAUTHAEFEZAVE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBT S BEARTA BEART
PR E % BEEGAE BEBAE
(B—-%) (B=#&) (B=8) At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥ TR AR% TR ARBTR
Recurring fair value BEMNTFEFE
measurement for:
Commercial property ElE/ES - - 1,160,000 1,160,000
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using
RIB—+F+-_A=+—RERNTHAEFE2ATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
IR BT 5 Eb Ny EvNN|
PrRE BxaAE B AE
(B—#) (B=H) (B=%) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBTT
Recurring fair value KEHEAFEFE
measurement for:
Commercial property Edik/ES - - 1,138,221 1,138,221

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 16. REYE (#)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEER (FH)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within AFEERE=FRNZAFEFAELER:

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—HZEAEE 1,138,221 1,138,221
Net gain from a fair value adjustment N EREZF W= 21,779 -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZRA=+—HZEEE 1,160,000 1,138,221
The valuations of investment property were arrived at using BREMENHEDRAERLEZT 2R E M
the direct comparison method by making reference to the &AL R S B EAE i E B

comparable sale prices in the relevant locality.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the HEEMEFEMENHERNTEEZHABED
key inputs to the valuation of investment property: MESHs 0T

Significant observable

Valuation technique input Range or weighted average
ik (B B i EXTEEBAE gHESMEFY
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
Commercial property Direct comparison method Market unit sale rate 7,153~7,752 7,200~7,500
(RMB/s.q.m.)
[EEX7ES BEELER MiHEAEE
(BFFRARE)
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RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

17. LONG TERM PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 17. RPEARERZS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Prepayments for property, plant and equipment VI R MR 2 A RIE 105,584 84,885
Deposits paid RN & 5,736 38,825
Share of net assets B EEFE 111,320 123,710

18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. Eff LA E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEHE 1,149,272 1,238,979
Disposal & (10,872) (63,251)
Amortisation provided during the year FAEHRE (25,407) (26,456)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—AZEEE 1,112,993 1,149,272
Current portion included in prepayments, deposits 5+ A& FIE « £ & & H th fiE 5k

and other receivables (note 24) 18 2 BNERER & (P 5E24) (25,599) (25,599)
Non-current portion FERNEAER & 1,087,394 1,123,673
Details of the Group’s leasehold lands that are pledged to AEFERBERE - A ERANEBERITERD
secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 27. FIEE M TE27
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BATEERAR MY RE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. R—REBEERARAZKRE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Share of net assets DIEEERE 40,528 39,363
Exchange realignment PE 3 58 & (8,696) (4,807)
Share of net assets DIGEEFE 31,832 34,556
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: KEBEERTZFHBIHNAT
Place of Percentage of
Particulars  registration Bt
of issued and Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held business interest power sharing activities
e BT R
£ IR 13 F 1B EEME EEER REHE FEAE R R FEEK
Al-Qahtani PCK Registered Kingdom of 50 50 50 Manufacture and
Pipe Company capital of Saudi Arabia sale of welded
SR50 million steel pipes
each
Al-Qahtani PCK EMEASE b B RHERENE
Pipe Company 50,000,000  fUh{AF &
DRHEDR
The above investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by FHRREERRZIREBRARAIMERE -

the Company.

Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company, which is considered a material Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company 13 &% E 2
joint venture of the Group, acts as the Group’s producer and BEREERNA EREXAEERD FRAETEH
distributor of steel pipes in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and FERDHIME W AEREAR

is accounted for using the equity method.
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RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 19. R—RBEEARZRE (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial N Z& %7~ Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company 2 817§
information of Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company adjusted for ERHE EREREHERAMNEEELFE
any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the I £8 B 75 Rk P 51 AR T (B 40 B

carrying amount in the financial statements:

2018 2017
—E-N\f Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Other receivables H th JE SR IR 5,085 4,529
Trade receivables = %Eﬂﬁl,ﬁﬁﬂ 2,138 -
Inventories BE 20,531 3,843
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHES 335 5,574
Total current assets REBEELE 28,089 13,946
Property, plant and equipment I ER 644,539 578,701
Total non-current assets SERBEERE 644,539 578,701
Amount due to PCKSP JE 1< 25 8 R OL 8 B 7UIA 11,900 11,337
Other payables H b fE S 5B 19,522 27,416
Trade payables B EMNERR 34,747 6,717
Current portion of long term loans REBER B S 42,720 23,377
Tax payable JERT 18 991 944
Total current liabilities mENAREAE 109,880 69,791

Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade  ERBemEE TBEEZEH

and other payables and provisions JE A BR 3 R L A E < SR IB R B 397,809 360,248
Non-current liabilities EREEE 397,809 360,248
Net assets BEEFE 164,939 162,608
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 19. R—EEERAAZRE (#)
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HAEEREGE ARz R
in the joint venture:
The loss from contribution of non-monetary assets ;* AJFE¥ L E ~ 18 (83,883) (83,883)
Net assets after reconciliation HEEREETE 81,056 78,725
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEEZHEEL D 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEBELHA S AT EEFE 40,528 39,363
Carrying amount of the investment WEREE 40,528 39,363
Administrative expenses THEA (5,447) (4,086)
Finance costs Bl & B AR = (1,472)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year  AEEEE R EEBEE (5,447) (5,558)
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20. I HHERE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFTT
Unlisted equity investment, FELEMRAEZE -
at cost less impairment AR R E - 800
The unlisted equity investment as at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+_A=+—H FKEHEARE
represented a carrying amount of RMB800,000 which was 800,0007T 7 3 | T B A48 & ¥ B AN F0 BR Rk (B 1)
stated at cost less impairment as the investment did not have R - EAAKREEERME LI ETERE  MX
a quoted market price in an active market, and the range of KEZEBATFEGBFzH@BAKR EERAE
reasonable fair value estimates of such investment was so AFEELEWAE AEBEREAFERSE
wide that the directors are of the opinion that its fair value ZHHEZRE RRAZKRETBRALAER
could not be measured reliably. The Group has disposed ZIRE R -

of the investment in the current year to a third party as this
investment no longer coincided with the Group’s investment
strategy.
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

21. DEFERRED TAX 21, IRERIE
Deferred tax assets EEHRIBEEE

Losses
available

for offsetting
against
future taxable
profits

] it K 88

IR PER
BERNZEE
RMB’000
AR¥T T

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H 63,976
Deferred tax credit to the consolidated FAFARGEERRNIELERIE
statement of profit or loss during the year 161,600

A

At 31 December 2018 IS

/7
[l

:f_}\f'g_f_iﬁ E+—E| 225,576

Losses
available

for offsetting
against

future taxable
profits
A
0% A 2 B3 48
RMB’000
ARBFTTT

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tHF—H—H 47,887
Deferred tax credit to the consolidated AFARGEERRAELERIE
statement of profit or loss during the year 16,089

At 31 December 2017 RNZZE—+tF+-_A=+—H 63,976
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R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

21. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 21, IEEFIE (®)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had tax losses arising
in Hong Kong of RMB537,040,000 (2017: RMB391,197,000),
which are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB2,264,921,000 (2017: RMB1,895,811,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

During the year, the Group recognised additional deferred
tax assets of RMB161,600,000 which related to partial of
the available tax losses carried forward by PCKSP. These
tax losses will expire in one to five years. The recognition of
the deferred tax assets was based on an estimated taxable
income and the tax losses which could be used for offsetting
against these estimated future taxable profits. The directors
estimated future taxable profits of PCKSP mainly representing
compensation income from the government in relation to

RZZE—NEF+_A=Z+—RB XEERA
BEETIEEIB ARS537,040,0000 (=&
—t4: AR®391,197,000T) ' ZEREE
BUERABERHELBASEN QRN RKE
ARBE N o REB IR B A E AT IEE R
ARM2,264,921,000t (ZE—+EF: AR
1,895,811,0007T) - B —EREFE RN H - LK
88 AR 2R B FR B F o

FRN AEBCHRETHDERURIMEEELN
HEENEEEERNBEINEEREEEARK
161,600,000 - Z EFMIBEEBHEBER —ZEAFRE
H-ELEHBEENERBIRGFTERTIWA R
A YRR S5 1 5 R SR SR B A TR B S 188 7E o
EEMFTEBRRIMENARRERN N EEA
HNEEZEBRIMERBN T A B EW
A-RBNEMZEZNER TEERAES
KIMERAAIEELBERTIMA LT AE L

a redevelopment of the land owned by PCKSP. Upon the ENIEBEREZSRRERTAT -
government’s announcement of this redevelopment plan,

management considered that it is probable for PCKSP to

generate taxable income and to utilise part of its available tax

losses for offsetting these future taxable profits.

EEB AR E

Deferred tax liabilities

Appreciation

Changes in of property,
fair value of plant and
investment equipment Temporary  Withholding
property and lands difference tax Total
nE BER
REMERZ RER
AVESE T E ERHER ANH @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTFT ARBTT ARBETT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZB-NE-A—-H 626,797 11,933 - 2,265 640,995
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  FRRGABER
the consolidated statement of me/ (GTA) 8
profit or loss during the year EERE (37,021) (277) 35,077 - (2,221)
At 31 December 2018 R-Z—N\F
+=-A=+-H 589,776 11,656 35,077 2,265 638,774
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

21. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 21, IEEFIE (®)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

EEHRESE (80

Appreciation

Changes in of property,
fair value of plant and
investment equipment Withholding
property and lands tax Total
REMEL B R
RFEEE T A A HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBF T ARBFIT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+&F—H—H 625,623 12,200 2,265 640,088
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FRNEEAEHER
the consolidated statement of ~ #1%,/ (5t A) KR Fi A
profit or loss during the year 1,174 (267) - 907
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE—tF+ZA=+—H
recognised in the EREHBRARERZ
consolidated statement ELETIEAREE
of financial position at
31 December 2017 626,797 11,933 2,265 640,995
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and HEVNEMmME ETELHBEBEERAGER

liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

HAEVBARKRTEE AEERYBREMS
HRIEB RERBE O

Net deferred tax assets recognised in &R G BT 15 AR 0 2= 7 R
the consolidated statement of financial position EERIEE EFHE
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in &R & BT 15 AR 0 2= 7 R
the consolidated statement of financial position EERIE B EFE

2018

—E-N\F

RMB’000

AR®T T

161,600

574,798

2017
—E—LF

RMB’000
ARBFIT

577,019
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R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

21. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 21, IEFERH IR (@)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% (or IR IR AR B PTAS B0 - W S AR B K B AR 2 8 b
a lower rate if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China BREMNBEIINEEESTRKE  BAHEHNL10% (3
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors) withholding tax fis 1 B A 0 B AN B 4% & B P B B A HE R R T S
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the TR ERBERE)ENT - ERAETRZZZEN
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. F-A—BER WERAR-_ZZTLE+-A
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies =+ —HERDOAEF B NEBEAEF
to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is therefore Wi 2 S B AR T NF—A—H
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those BEAZENSIRAREBATEN -

subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Since year 2011, no deferred tax has been recognised by BT ——FR A5EPMEREHNEOR 2
the Group for withholding taxes that would be payable on the ZEMBRT 2 AREL BT 2 B SR TE T
unremitted earnings of those subsidiaries that are subject RELEHIE AAEEERAZSWEATTK
to withholding taxes as management considered it is not AREER R R D IR ZF & A

probable that those subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future.

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78

2018 2017
—E-)N\#E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFTT
Raw materials JR# ¥ 99,946 67,228
Work in progress E& 59,497 71,465
Finished goods BUAK i 76,304 168,831
235,747 307,524

Less: Provision against slow-moving and BB RRETERE
obsolete inventories (12,690) (18,819)
223,057 288,705
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. ESERERFREWRERE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Trade receivables 5 EWERR 459,112 350,024
Impairment RE (16,883) (14,433)
Trade receivables, net B RNERFFE 442,229 335,591
Bills receivable JiE W 1 97,996 35,529

540,225 371,120

AEBEERFNEBESKRAETEAEE EIE
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance P—REEBFNERBRIN-EEH—HKAH30H
is normally required. The credit period is generally 30 to FIH -BHREBEFEEREERE- Zﬁ’*l?ﬁmiﬁi

BRRIEE L\?H%T}&JE%GKEE Bk EER

BE &K B H 4 ﬁ?ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁ)\%iﬁﬁ%@ﬁ"

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on

90 days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances EREMENREE FAEE B S EWAR A
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of RENHEFPEHR HUBEEREEETER-
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade AEBETHE FEWRRE R T E I &G E
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, EHRRREMRAEANRE -BHEBERR
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group TEFE e

does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 2. BESRUERRRERRERE (8
An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of REmEMR REZAHAEERCHKREERDY
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of B HRBRERRER DT

provisions, is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Within 60 days 60H A 234,319 64,914
61 to 90 days 61H =90H 3,882 5,046
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 10,005 36,544
181 to 365 days 181 H #365H 41,986 42,305
1to 2 years 1&E2%F 60,762 111,636
2 to 3 years 2E3F 91,275 58,143
Over 3 years HHiR3F - 17,003

442,229 335,591
The movements in the provision for impairment of trade ZoRBERRERBEZSHOT :

receivables are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

At 1 January n—HA—H 14,433 12,712
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 2,450 2,974
Impairment losses reversed [RECAENREN SE — (1,253)
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 16,883 14,433
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. ESERRFRREREE (&)

Impairment under IFRS 9 for the year ended 31
December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade
receivables are written off if past due for more than one year
and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018

BE-FZ-\F+ZA=+—-BLEFER
15 B BR B 7% 3R 5 22 R S0 SRRl B
MEREBDRBEBBERETREDSN  AG
BEREHAEEFR-BEXDNEANRAGFRUBER
ANZEEF D aBAR B B 8EE (Bl g
i EmER - FPERRFR ERESEM
EERBRIEANREHEE) ZAERBRFAEK
MEER BERENNRS ARSNGB
EFH BAHRERARLEGHERANEGER
AEER-—KME BZEEERWNAEG
—FHEBAXRNBHAITEBA T IAME -

ATFHI AR EBRAEEERHRNE 5 E
WEE S E AR AR

R-B-NF+=-A=+—H

Invoice date
BEQH
Less than
1 year 1to 2 years 2to3years Over 3years Total
PR—F —EMEF MEZF ZENE @t
Expected credit loss rate RHEEBEX 0.3% 1.1% 1.9% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) #8REE (ARETT) 291,194 61,466 93,066 13,386 459,112
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FHEEERE (ARETT) 1,002 704 1,791 13,386 16,883

Impairment under IAS 39 for the year ended 31
December 2017

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of RMB14,433,000 with a carrying amount before
provision of RMB14,433,000.
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. ESERRFRREREE (&)

An aged analysis of trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 that are not considered to be impaired under IAS 39 is

RIE—tF+-_A=1+—HB HRBR/RITENEH
g Rt R399 IR TR E M E 5 B AR BUR IR

as follows: DA :
2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
AR®EF T
Neither past due nor impaired A8 B R R ORVE 161,646

Past due but not impaired BHAE R RE

1 to 180 days 1HZ=180H 44,840
181 to 365 days 181H %=365H 66,681
Over 365 days #HI365H LA 62,424
335,591

The Group’s neither past due nor impaired trade receivables

REBRBMERRENE ZEBIRREEEY

mainly represent sales made to recognised and creditworthy ERUREEAEANHEENRESNTPET
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. HIEE ZERBEERTETRINEFLHA
These customers who trade on credit terms are subject to KBEERBREFERZ-

credit verification procedures.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good

BHERRENERRERSZBAAEERETR
HRELBENBIEFPEB -REBELR &

track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the ERR HZEEHRNE BREEERTARE
directors were of the opinion that no provision for impairment EEREE BZSEA/DEE /A BEKE
under IAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as R B L AR B B R g 5t 2R R S5 395K AT R R (A B
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and f& o

the balances were still considered fully recoverable.

R N\FFERE
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, FANHIE e R HEMEWRRIE

RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

Prepayments FE A~ FH 313,915 350,394
Deposits and other receivables & M H b B WA 283,349 153,155
Tax recoverable QR 150,834 166,572
Current portion of land lease payments (note 18) T & &R BN H (K FE18) 25,599 25,599

773,697 695,720
Impairment allowance BB S (98,853) (94,250)

674,844 601,470

Ba REMREFKERERBEEZIHIT

The movements in the provision for impairment of deposits
and other receivables are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

At 1 January n—HA—H 94,250 94,262
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) (note 6) TR, (B E ) FHEEIE
(MizE6) 4,603 (12)

At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 98,853 94,250

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers. An impairment analysis
is performed at each reporting date by considering the
probability of default. Expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect
the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. Except for certain receivables
for which the counterparty failed to make demanded
repayment and the Group has made 100% provision (“default
receivables”), the balances were settled within the credit
term with no historical default. The financial assets included
in the above balance were categorised in stage 1 as at 31
December 2018. Except for the default receivables, the Group
estimated that the expected credit loss rate for the other
receivables is minimal.
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25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 25 BeRBITEBKRCEARZIRHIE
AND RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES THE &R

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B =E AR®T T ARETT

Cash and bank balances e MIRITERR 66,907 36,392
Pledged and restricted bank balances B &R R SIER 1T 4 619,060 666,009
685,967 702,401
Less: W
Pledged deposits — non-current B S — IEENH
— Pledged for long-term bank loans —p RHIRITERE R 27(c) = (402,723)
— Pledged for letters of guarantee —BRER B EIT (80,000) (80,000)
(80,000) (482,723)
Pledged and restricted bank B R PR B R 1T A 8
balances — current — B0 E8
— Pledged for bank acceptance notes —BLERITAN RIBRE T (51,226) (123,633)
— Pledged for letters of guarantee — SR K E T - (18,365)
— Pledged for long-term bank loans — B ERABITERZDHEF 27(c) (426,600) (11,018)
— Restricted cash —ZRHRE (@) (61,234) (30,270)
(539,060) (183,286)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEEY (b) 66,907 36,392
Notes: B3
(a) Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property () BEFEEBRLN AEBMETYERRARTA
development companies of the Group are required to place at REETRITEPFAETSENBEWEMSR
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sales proceeds EERBRBREBMENRBTS ZTFRERRH
of properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of the ERMEEERERR Mﬂ&iﬁ@ ER-R
related properties. The deposits can only be used for purchases ZE-N\F+ZA=+—H ZRBFELAARE
of construction materials and payments of construction fees 61,234,0007T (—Z —t£F: AR %30,270,000
for the relevant property projects. As at 31 December 2018, JT) °

such guarantee deposits amounted to RMB61,234,000 (2017:
RMB30,270,000).

(b) As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents by RZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 FEEUARKE
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB58,133,000 (2017: AENRERREEEY A ARKS8,133,0007T
RMB29,467,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other (ZZ—+tF: AR¥29,467,0007T) - ARKEDT]
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange BERABAHMEY BERESERNMAINEE
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale FlEDI RAEE SERNETEMRT AEEAE
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is MEREETIIEESHRITBARBLRARA
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks b & H o

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRSRBITERF R AEENF BT EHE
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits ME-RITEBRREERERNGFEREELE
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of B3 BA 0 M R RO SR SR 1T o

default.
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26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the

end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

26.

EZRNRARENRE
RBEPHR RERZOHAENEIRITER

MENEBERESTOT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBEFTT
Trade payables BESEMERR

Within 90 days 90H A 48,033 51,306
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 253,033 318,893
181 to 365 days 181 H #2365H 157,306 16,775
1to 2 years 1&E2%F 129,086 79,394
2 to 3 years 2% 3F 31,056 56,664
Over 3 years HHiR3F 41,796 24,240
660,310 547,272
Bills payable EAEE 28,154 123,077
688,464 670,349

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ZoRMNERATHE B—RBR—FRIZfte

settled within a year.

All the bills payable have maturity dates within 365 days.

226 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

PTG N SRR 1974365 H A E H] -

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BATEERAR MY RE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 27. st ERTREMEE
BORROWINGS
2018 2017
-g-N& . S 2
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000

RBRRIZ (%) HER  ARBTR  ERFIEM%) IR ARETR

Current wE

Finance lease payables (note 28) FEMBEREE (FiE28) = = = 4.61-8.43 2018 100,476
Bank loans RITER

- secured -EER 4.355.22 2019 450,100 2.75-6.16 2018 825,833
- unsecured -RER 6.09-6.63 2019 103,861 4.35-6.09 2018 404,230
Other borrowings Effg &

- secured -BHA - - - 16 2018 324,824
- unsecured —~BER 5.60-19.44 2019 857,335 43524 2018 729,465
Government loans BRER

- secured -FHER 4.90 2019 70,400 4.75-4.90 2018 143,500
- unsecured -BER - - - 2.65-4.75 2018 194,000
Current portion of long term loans REETRDES

- secured -BHR 5.39-7.35 2019 531,152 4.75-7.35 2018 609,866
~ unsecured - EER - - - - - -
Subtotal it 2,012,848 3,332,194

Non-current ¥R

Finance lease payables (note 28) e R AT & 508 (M:28) = = - 5.68-843  2019-2020 52,678
Bank loans BITER

- secured -BHR 5.39-10.00 2020-2028 1,577,100 2.95-7.21 2019-2028 1,449,608
Government loans BIER

- secured -BHR 4,90 2020-2023 308,000 4.90 2019-2023 378,400
Other borrowings EffeE

- secured -EHER 10.00-16.00 2021 2,199,771 - - -
Subtotal gt 4,084,871 1,880,686

6,097,719 5,212,880
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 27. st ERITREMEE (80)
BORROWINGS (continued)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Analysed into: BTN A:
Bank loans repayable: AR THREENRITER:
Within one year —F KN 1,085,113 2,168,753
In the second year F_F 42,900 49,708
In the third to fifth years, F=FEZERF
inclusive (BHEEERTE) 414,100 345,300
Beyond five years BiEAF 1,120,100 1,050,600
2,662,213 3,614,361
Government loans repayable: AR THREENBRNTER:
Within one year —F RN 70,400 337,500
In the second year FF 88,000 70,400
In the third to fifth years, F-FEFRF
inclusive (BHEEREMEF) 220,000 264,000
Beyond five years BB F - 44,000
378,400 715,900
Other borrowings repayable: ARATEIR EE
H 845
Within one year —F N 857,335 829,942
In the second year F_F - 37,677
In the third to fifth years, E=ZFZFERF
inclusive* (BREEEMSE) 2,199,771 15,000
3,057,106 882,619
6,097,719 5,212,880
Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by: AEEETRITEFRBTIZEERER:
(a) the pledge of certain property, plant and equipment of (a) BERAXEBERBREHREDFELAA
the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately K %833,371,000t (=& —+&F: AR¥
RMB833,371,000 (2017: RMB1,477,453,000) as at the 1,477,453,000T) W& T % BE k&

end of the reporting period:; 1
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 27. st ERITREMEE (80)

BORROWINGS (continued)

(b) the pledge of certain leasehold lands of the Group with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB618,639,000
(2017: RMB1,003,365,000) as at the end of the reporting
period;

(c) the pledge of certain of the Group’s deposits amounting
to RMB426,600,000 (2017: RMB413,741,000) as at the
end of the reporting period;

(d) the pledge of certain of the Group’s properties under
development amounting to RMB1,105,871,000 (2017:
RMB1,355,945,000) as at the end of the reporting period;
and

(e) the pledge of certain of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale amounting RMB373,919,000 (2017: Nil) as
at the end of the reporting period.

Except for the bank loans of RMB407,632,000 (2017:
RMB324,824,000) and RMB296,490,000 (2017:
RMB8,908,000) as at 31 December 2018, which are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars,
respectively, all borrowings are in RMB.

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of other borrowings
repayable in three to five years was RMB2,199,771,000,
among which RMB1,680,000,000 was borrowed from Yuecai
Trust, for a period of three years with interest rate of 11.25%
per annum for the first two years and 10.25% per annum for
the third year. (See note 1 for more details)

R N\FFERE

by BHAEBRFEHREMFELN A A
R 618,639,000t (ZZET—tF: AR
1,003,365,0007C) M) & FTHE i

c) BERAEERNREHARAESBEAARE
426,600,000 (B —+F: AR
413,741,00070) K& T EH

d BERAEERREHARSBAEARE
1,105,871,000c (ZZE— L F: ARK
1,355,945,00070) K& TEEFRWE: Kk

e) B AEBERBZEHARESBEABARE
373,919,000t (ZZE—tF B )NETE
REFEME-

RZZE—NE+_A=Z+—H BEFTEX
AR 407,632,000 (ZE—+F: AR
324,824,0007T) & A K #296,490,0007T (=&
—+ 4 AR¥8,908,0007T) D BIAB T ET
FIMESN ZEEEHUAREYIE-

RZE—N\F+-_A=+—RH HtZBER=ZH
FEEZIEERARY2199,771,0000T £ A
R %1,680,000,0007T )y B EMf 5B A REI=
o B EIRE N K11.25% 51 B N F = F IR EF
#£10.25% B o (EZ B R ML)
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)
The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities:

Floating rate
— expiring within one year**

R RIS

——F AR

27. GFERTREMEER (@)

AEBEA T ARERRITEER:

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFT
86,415 515,500

*k

Among which, the Group had an aggregate loan of RMB1.68
billion borrowed from Yuecai Trust as at 31 December 2018.
As mentioned in Note 1 for the 2018 Disposal Transaction
of PCKSP, on 2 February 2018, Yuecai Trust transferred an
aggregate amount of RMB240 million to PCKSP and PCKSP has
filed statutory business registration to allot its 20% shareholding
to Yuecai Trust. Thereafter, Yuecai Trust became PCKSP's
20% legal shareholder. However, according to the agreement,
as the 2018 Disposal Transaction is not completed, Yuecai
Trust is not able to enjoy all the benefits that a shareholder is
entitled. Accordingly, notwithstanding the fact that Yuecai Trust
is the 20% legal shareholder of PCKSP, the Group continued
to consolidate 100% assets and liabilities of PCKSP for the
current year. The RMB240 million was accounted for as a loan
and presented as a “Loan from a third party” on the consolidated
statement of financial statements at 31 December 2018,
pursuant to an underlying loan agreement entered between the
parties. According to this loan agreement, the loan is repayable
in three years and bear interest at 11.25% per annum for the
first two years and 10.25% per annum for the third year. On the
same date, 2 February 2018, Yuecai Trust further advanced a
loan to PCKSP in the amount of RMB1.44 billion for a period of
three years bearing interest rate of 11.25% per annum for the
first two years and 10.25% per annum for the third year. (see
Note 1 for details of the 2018 Disposal Transaction of PCKSP)

Pursuant to the relevant contract, certain of the Group’s undrawn
banking facilities of RMB32,100,000 (2017: RMB200,000,000)
can only be used for property development projects and are
repayable based on the pre-sale progress of such properties.

*k
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28. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 28. EfmEHERE

The Group leases certain of its plant and machinery for
its steel pipe manufacturing business. These leases are
classified as finance leases.

On 21 April 2014, PCKSP entered into an equipment transfer
contract and a finance lease contract (collectively the “2014
finance lease arrangement”) with CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. (“El
RERMAEBMR LA (the “Lessor’). Pursuant to the 2014
finance lease arrangement, PCKSP sold the equipment to the
Lessor, and the Lessor leased back the equipment to PCKSP
for a period of 60 months. The aggregate consideration was
RMB200 million, and PCKSP paid a guarantee deposit of
RMB26 million and a service charge of RMB10 million to the
Lessor. According to the 2014 finance lease arrangement, if
no default occurs during the lease term, the ownership of the
equipment shall be automatically transferred to the Group
at a price of RMB100 upon expiration of the lease term.
As at 31 December 2018, PCKSP has repaid all remaining
lease payments and terminated the finance lease contract in
advance.

On 23 November 2015, PCKSP (Zhuhai) entered into an
equipment transfer contract and a finance lease contract
(collectively the “Zhuhai finance lease arrangement”) with
Henggin Jintou Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (“EZ&£&EHK
MEHEFMR A" (the “Lessor”). Pursuant to the Zhuhai
finance lease arrangement, PCKSP (Zhuhai) sold the
equipment to the Lessor, and the Lessor leased back the
equipment to PCKSP (Zhuhai) for a period of 36 months. The
aggregate consideration was RMB100 million, and PCKSP
(Zhuhai) paid a guarantee deposit of RMB6 million and a
service charge of RMB5.4 million to the Lessor. According to
the Zhuhai finance lease arrangement, if no default occurs
during the lease term, the ownership of the equipment
shall be automatically transferred to the Group at a price of
RMB100 upon expiration of the lease term. The lease expired
in November 2018 and the remaining balance was reclassified
to other payables and accruals as at 31 December 2018.

R N\FFERE

AEBBEES THE ;e OETHERESE
f%(’ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁni&ii%raﬂé%ﬁﬁo

R-ZTE—NMEMNA-+—B FEHIMEER
HReMEEBRIT ([HBEADZ—H R
BEHEER) k—H (BREBRESAR) (BB =
%*@imﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ??ﬁﬂ°$ETJ€:?*@¢E$§
HERH B IHEEIBHEETHAA M
AR ERR THRKLEE - RE60EA -
AR (E A AR200,000,0007T &S KT HE
B X HR#E & ARK%26,000,000t X RHEEAR
#10,000,0007T T HEA - BIF T —HFFE
FAERTH WREBHATEZEEEY AZEE
WEARNEHEMEREDEBREAERE 1E
EAARKEIOOT - R _F—N\F+_A=+—
H ZEBRIMECINME8THEN KRR
A (RRETESR) -

RZEBE-—RAF+—AZ+=0 HBRWIME (K
BEEESREEREHEAR A ([HME
AN — CRELESR) —7H (GgEM
EAR) (W HREMERELRH]) - BREKE
wﬁﬁfrﬂ ST BEREHIHEE (RE)mEEAL

Bt MEAASSEER TESHRIME (I
;) R HI36ME A - BB B A R %100,000,000
T MESKIME (3K8) EREHEAZNRE
A K #6,000,0007T & iR % & A K #5,400,000
T RBIRB R E E E L BE - WA 1E HA R A
ELZ’J BlzRmnEE RN HBEREEE S
EREAEE FERARBLOOT ZEERZ
Z-NFt+—AERMEFHSRERER = —\F
TZRA=T—BEHSHEEH M ERNRIE R ES
BR-

\EH>P|
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28. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued) 28. EN R EHEERE (&)

On 21 December 2015, PCKSP entered into an equipment
transfer contract and a finance lease contract (collectively
the “2015 finance lease arrangement”) with KW Leasing
Co., Ltd. ("&£ ABEBE@MEHREABMR QA" (the “Lessor”).
Pursuant to the 2015 finance lease arrangement, PCKSP
sold the equipment to the Lessor, and the Lessor leased
back the equipment to PCKSP for a period of 60 months. The
aggregate consideration was RMB60 million, and PCKSP paid
a guarantee deposit of RMB6 million and a service charge of
RMB3.5 million to the Lessor. According to the 2015 finance
lease arrangement, if no default occurs during the lease
term, the ownership of the equipment shall be automatically
transferred to the Group at a price of RMB100 upon expiration
of the lease term. As at 31 December 2018, PCKSP has
repaid all remaining lease payments and terminated the
finance lease contract in advance.

On 1 January 2016, PCKSP (Lianyungang) entered into an
equipment purchase contract and a finance lease contract
(collectively the “Lianyungang finance lease arrangement”)
with Yayin (Zhuhai) Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (“ZE4R
(FEF)MEMEBR QA" (the “Lessor”). Pursuant to
the Lianyungang finance lease arrangement, PCKSP
(Lianyungang) leased the equipment from the Lessor for
a period of 36 months. The aggregate consideration was
RMB16,453,000, and PCKSP (Lianyungang) paid a service
charge of RMB113,000 to the Lessor. According to the
Lianyungang finance lease arrangement, if no default occurs
during the lease term, the ownership of the equipment
shall be automatically transferred to the Group at a price of
RMB100 upon expiration of the lease term. The lease expired
in December 2018 and the remaining balance was reclassified
to other payables and accruals as at 31 December 2018.

The rent is calculated based on the leasing cost and the
lease rate which was decided based on the interest rate for
a one-to-five-year loan denominated in RMB quoted by the
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC").
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28. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued) 28. BEYMEMHERE (&)
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease RZE—N\F+_A=+—H BEMEEHH
payments under finance leases and their present values were BREM2EEEERBELBERERESHINGOT
as follows:

Present value  Present value

Minimum Minimum of minimum of minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEHEE REHE BREHEE HERE
RHE HE  HEZRE HEIBRE

2018 2017 2018 2017
=B-N\F ZFTtF ZB-NF ZFTtF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®BTT AR¥TRT ARBTT

Amounts payable: JEN &5
Within one year —FR - 106,857 - 100,476
In the second year EF - 39,861 = 37,678
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEERF
(BREEMSE) - 15,762 - 15,000
Total minimum finance RERMEAHERIALE
lease payments - 162,480 - 153,154
Future finance charges AR BER = (9,326)
Total net finance lease payables ENRERERBRTE = 153,154

Portion classified as current liabilites S EARBEEZ $H
(note 27) (f5E27) = (100,476)

Non-current portion (note 27) FEREHB (HFH27) = 52,678
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29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. aNEE
Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 1 RZE—N\F+ZA=+—BEkZ=ZZE—-NF—A
January 2018 are as follows: —HZEHNBEFBERT:
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
—E-N\F

t=8 —z-%

=t—8 —H—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Short-term advances received from customers EREFWEHE N

Sale of steel pipes SHE 8 E 288,955 708,412
Sale of properties HEME 607,810 257,545
Total contract liabilities EHBEREE 896,765 965,957
Contract liabilities include sales proceeds received from EHBEREMASEZEEHE RMERKE
buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of steel pipes FTRHEHEMGERE-RZE—-N\F SHEER
and properties. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2018 DPHEZHRAEE 2 HEB TR

was mainly due to the decrease in sales of the Group.

Changes in contract liabilities during the year are as follows: FAGHEEZZHOT

Re

2018

—B-N\#&

RMB’000

AR T

At beginning of the year REH 965,957

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract AAFVENEEZERAREA

liabilities at the beginning of the year (783,102)
Increases due to cash received, excluding amounts EWRSEHHIEM(TEEEA

recognised as revenue during the year EHRABRAZEE) 713,910

At end of the year RER 896,765
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30.

31.

— =
—=

T \FFERE

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

30. Htb BN R EREER

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 AR% T ARBF T

Deposits received 2iiEe 112,982 234,287
Receipts in advance TR FKRIA — 920,087
Other payables Hfh fE A 5RE (@) 379,577 452,883
Payroll payables JE AT S B 27,636 29,248
Accruals and other liabilities EAERREMERE 211,859 43,859
Other tax payables H b fE 18 30,404 15,094
762,458 1,695,458

Notes:

(a) Other payables are non-interest and have an average term of
two to three months.

FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES
US$72,000,000 5.6% bonds should be due 2018 but
rescheduled to 2019 (2013 Bonds)

On 30 April 2013, the Group issued bonds with a principal
amount of US$72,000,000 and the bonds should be repayable
in full by 30 April 2018 (the “2013 Bonds”). The bonds may be
redeemed at the option of the Group in whole, but not in part,
at any time, by giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’
notice to the holders of the bonds, at their principal amount,
together with the interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption. The bonds bear interest at a fixed coupon interest
rate of 5.6% per annum for five years payable semi-annually,
commencing on 30 October 2013. The bonds are unsecured.
In the current year, the remaining balance of the 2013 Bonds
were rescheduled to be repayable on 30 April 2019 and the
remaining balance was reclassified to other borrowings.

FaE

(a) EHMEMNKRBEATFELFHRRASMEZ=(EA -

3. EEEBFRERE

72,000,000 T RR =—Z— \F 2 H{E X H
ECE-NFIHPZFNR6%EE (=
E-=FF%)
RZZE—ZFMA=+H AEBEETASES
72,000,000 T2 BEH REFER T - N\FH
A=1+HRAZHEN(ZE—=FEF%]) - &
EEEERERERABHFBE AEL TR0
HETBBE0RMBANNUASHEREZEDA
HEFANE2BMIET D ERES - BFREE
ZER56%TE BT —=ZF+A=ZTAHIE
REARAFEESEFI N -EH5RAEEM R
FE —T-=FEFZIBEHERHE=Z
—NWEMA=1+HEMNLKFSERETHEEE

ffE &
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31. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (continued) 3. TEEEBHFREE (#)

HK$155,000,000 8% notes due 2020 (2017 Notes)

On 27 April 2017, the Company entered into a note purchase
agreement with an investment fund. The Group agreed to
issue, and the investment fund agreed to purchase from the
Group, HK$155,000,000 8% notes due in April 2020 (the
“2017 Notes”). Pursuant to the purchase agreement, specific
performance obligations are imposed on the controlling
shareholder of the Group. Any breach of the specific
performance obligations may constitute a breach under the
note purchase agreement, pursuant to which the investment
fund is entitled to redeem the 2017 Notes immediately in
accordance with the terms and conditions.

US$3,000,000 7% bonds due 2020 (2017 Bonds A)

On 28 April 2017, the Company issued a bond with a principal
amount of US dollar 3,000,000 to an individual investor (the
“2017 Bonds_A"). The bond will be repayable in full by April
2020. The bond bears interest at a fixed coupon interest
rate at 7% per annum for three years payable semi-annually,
commencing on 28 October 2017. The bond is unsecured.

HK$10,000,000 7% bonds due 2021 (2017 Bonds B)

On 24 August 2017, the Company issued a bond with a
principal amount of HK$10 million to an individual investor (the
“2017 Bonds_B"). The bond will be repayable in full by August
2021. The bond bears interest at a fixed coupon interest
rate at 7% per annum for four years payable semi-annually,
commencing on 24 February 2018. The bond is unsecured.
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155,000,000 T R = F=FF 2 2 F 7
RN fERF (ZF—CtHFEH)
RIB—tFHEAZ TR ARRAEKRELS
AVEFBERZ AEBERBHT REES
[F] & /A 78 & [ #% §155,000,00008 T — T = F
FOANHPzFNX8NEHS([ZE—LFE
F1) - BREBEGE AEEERRREBERE
BHEG TAERFEBOETAREBKES
BEBE THROTA MREAE BRI ZRE
REECHERALTNERN _Z—LFEF5-

3,000,000 TR-ZE_ZFEHZFFN=E
T%EH (ZZE—LFEHA)
RZZE—tFOA=+NB AAaIH—REA
WEHETA S EA3,000000E L2 ESH ([=
E—EFEHAD BEHFEER T _FTFMAA
BHEN EFRETFZEERT%E BT
—+tF+ AT \BRAH=FEAGEFL -
BEHFRBEEA -

10,000,000 TA—FE=-—FEHHB 2 FR =X
T%EHR(ZE—tFEHB)
RZE—tFNAZ+TA - AQER—BEA
& H TR 25 /510,000,0008 T2 EH ([ =
T—+LFEHB]) - EBHEBRZE=—F/\AAH
FHEN BFEEATFEERTNTE B
—\FZAZtTHBRABNFHBEGFFIT-
BEH AEEA -
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31. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (continued) . ERBHFRERE (&)
HK$10,000,000 6% bonds due 2020 (2017 Bonds C) 10,000,000 TR —ZE_ZF M2 FF =
6%nfEH (ZF—tFFEHC)
On 26 September 2017, the Company issued a bond with a RZZFE—tFNAZ+AB - ARAR—REA
principal amount of HK$10 million to an individual investor 5B H TS F 410,000,000 T2 EH ([ =
(the “2017 Bonds_C”). The bond will be repayable in full by Z—tHFEHCl) - EHEBR-_ZE_ZFNAA
September 2020. The bond bears interest at a fixed coupon BEEN BEHRRETFELX6NAE BT
interest rate at 6% per annum for three years payable —N\F=ZAZ+"BRAEB=FHAGYFZf-
semi-annually, commencing on 26 March 2018. The bond is BEHFAEER-
unsecured.
2018 2017
—E-N\E S s
Principal  Contractual Principal  Contractual
at original interest at original interest
currency rate (%) currency rate (%)
‘million per annum Maturity RMB’000 ‘million per annum Maturity RMB’000
FE%EAE AHERER RE¥ARE  ANERE
BE (%) HBMA AR®TR BB (%) IHE  ARETR
Current biok2)
2013 Bonds “Z-=FfEH - uss$72 5.6 2018 467,821
TETL —Z-N\E
Non-current k)
2013 Bonds —T-ZEEH USs$72 5.6 2018 - uss$72 5.6 2018 -
T2ETT —ZN\E 2% —T-)N\F
2017 Notes —TtFER HK$155 8.0 2020 124,790 HK$155 8.0 2020 112,057
1557% 7T —T-TF 1557 L ZTZTF
2017 Bonds_A L EEFA US$3 7.0 2020 18,442 US$3 7.0 2020 16,194
KEPH e 23 KE —ZT-ZTF
2017 Bonds_B - +EESB HK$10 7.0 2021 6,834 HK$10 7.0 2021 5,991
107% 7T —E--F 10%7T —T=-F
2017 Bonds_C “T—tFEHC HK$10 6.0 2020 7,340 HK$10 6.0 2020 6,355
107% 7T —ZI-TF 10T ZT-TF
157,406 140,597
157,406 608,418

ST N\FEERE BIAMAARMERRERAT 237



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

32. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 32. MG Rh
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBF T
At 1 January n—HA—H 375,113 369,707
Grants received during the year F ARG 22,320 32,320
Recognised as income during the year (note 5) FAERBBKA (HFE5) (46,534) (26,914)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 350,899 375,113
Government grants have been received as encouragement REEEEEBUTHAL - S B R MaIR kA
for technological innovation and improvements, the BERAERERERKREN R ZFMAME
construction of production plants and rewards for investment M RER RSk A F BB Ei R B R 2
encouragement. There are no unfulfilled conditions or HREEMARKL-
contingencies attached to these grants. Related assets
associated with the above grants have not yet been
completed.
33. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 33.fTEemIA
On 18 October 2018, the Company issued warrants in RZZE-—NF+A+N\B A2alhdamAE
registered form conferring the right upon the holder thereof, TR T B S A ARERA] A 3R B AR A BE IR 2 5k P
exercisable in whole or in part at any time during the DITERE RS © %313,320,0008 ;T A A A
subscription period to subscribe a maximum amount of TERHMRREE RERATITRKESR DS
HK$313,320,000 for ordinary shares of the Company. The REZEEE-ARFHMA T (RMHZ B L
subscription period is the period from the date of issue FEEH RAABREZBAMNEER)BIM - REE
of warrants until the day immediately preceding the third BT ABRES0.BITHBERREEFETLA
anniversary thereof or if that day is not a business day, IR REE AR AR IB (B o

the business day immediately preceding that day. The
subscription price is initially HK$0.84 per share in cash or
such adjusted price as may be applicable in accordance with
the terms of the warrant instrument.
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33. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 33. TSR T A (8)
(continued)
During the year, the movements in the warrants to subscribe FRN AIRBRARARNDOBREZTZHNOT :

for the Company’s shares were as follows:

Numbers of warrants

AREEHE
Balance as at Granted during Lapsed during Balance as at
Date of grant Exercise price per share 1/1/2018 the year the year 31/12/2018
R-E-N\F
R-ZE-N\E +ZA=t-8
g =g BRITEE —HB—B#&& FRRE FRERMU g3
HK$
BT
18/10/2018
—E-AETATNR 0.84 - 373,000,000 - 373,000,000
Notes: B EE
(1) The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before (1) BB )\F+A+N\ABRLRBREZZAA
the date on which the warrants were granted on 18 October RRAFRRG R U T B /R0.648 7T
2018 was HK$0.64.
(2) No warrants were exercised and cancelled during the year 2 REBEE_ZT-NF+_A=Z=+—HLEFE L&
ended 31 December 2018. RIR BT R
(3) The fair value of the warrants granted for the year ended 31 B HEZZFT-N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE BEEH
December 2018 was RMB22,984,000. The Group recognised REEENHRTERARE22984,0007T & £
a warrant expense of RMB22,984,000 for the year ended 31 ZE-N\F+ZA=+—BHLFE FAEEDE
December 2018. IR RE Sz A R %522,984,0007T ©
The fair value of warrants granted during the year, was FRERERBEZEHAFEDINER L AHER
estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model, ZIFRER W E R IR R G
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the fhate TREYATAER A A BUE

warrants were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

2018

—E2-NF

RMB’000

AR¥T

Dividend yield (%) & B = (%) 0.00%
Expected volatility (%) T8 HR R 18 (%) 41.61%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3 2 ) 2 (%) 1.711%
Time to expiry Bl 27 B 2.8 years
2.8%F
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33. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(continued)
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the warrants granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

33.

TTEERMIA #®

TEHRNE TV ERE LR B AT R R AR BE M RE
ERER T —E R -

AFERTERTES RAREBREENE ML

/

e

34. ISSUED CAPITAL 34. BERITRA
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Authorised: JERE
10,000,000,000 (2018: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,0000% ( =& — )\ &F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 10,000,000,000/% ) & % &
0.10& Lz Lk 878,335 878,335
Issued and fully paid: EETRHRE:
1,011,142,000 (2017: 1,011,142,000) 1,011,142,0000% ( =& — £ :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,011,142,000/% ) & % HEH (&
0.108 Tz ik 88,856 88,856
35. RESERVES 35. f#E

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEME QT
Disposal of Lianyungang Aike New Construction HEEZRUAHAEEMBERAT(EE
Materials Co., Ltd. (“Lianyungang Aike”) BE)
30 April
2018
—E-N\%
mMA=+H
Note RMB’000
B 5E AR¥T
Net assets disposed of: HENTSEEETME:
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 65,351
Prepaid land lease payments R e 10,872
Long term prepayments and other receivables = HA T8 5 5118 K H h FE W kA 199
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEH 12
Inventories FE 3,083
Trade receivables Z 5 MR 33,639
Prepayments and other receivables T84 R IB F H fh fE UL SR IE 470
Trade payables B 5 ENIRK (6,794)
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEHRITER (47,400)
Accruals and other payables FERFTE A R EH M 5RIE (7,975)
51,457
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR ZERE 6 (26,855)
Satisfied by: BATAREN:
Amount due to Lianyungang Aike* FEEEE N ] R 24,602
* The consideration of RMB24,602,000 was set off by an amount * KREARY24,602,000 T & B HFBHRLHE (&
due to Lianyungang Aike from PCKSP (Lianyungang). T EEZRA RIS -
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Disposal of Pabo Detection Technology Service Co.,

36. HEMB LT (&)
HERBERARMREERD T

Ltd.
31 July
2018
—B-N\&
+tA=+—H
RMB’000
AR¥T
Net assets disposed of: HENTSEEETME:
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 6,736
Cash and bank balances 0 E RIRITAER 101
Trade receivables Z 5 FE W BR K 1,837
Prepayments and other receivables TE S SR8 F H fh FE UL SRR 1,017
Trade payables B 5 ENIRK (2,472)
Accruals and other payables FERHE A & H M g 518 (518)
Government grants B 4 B (2,138)
4,563
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB ARz W= 990
Satisfied by: BATAREN:
Cash e 5,553

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: ANFBEOWT

Cash consideration ReRE

Cash and bank balances disposed of EHEZHS MRTTER

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of ERALE—HBARIZRE R
the disposal of a subsidiary ReZEBWIRANFE

FRALE-—FHNBRAZHEERASEEBY IR

2018
—E-N\E
RMB’000
AR®T T

5,553
(101)

5,452
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37.

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT V. ZEHRERERME
OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities MEIBHEEZEEEH
2018 —E-N\E
Bank and Finance Fixed rate
other lease bonds and
borrowings payables notes
BITR EfmE EEESH
Hihfg & HENE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBT R AR®T T
At 1 January 2018 RZT—N\F—HA—H 5,212,880 153,154 608,418
Changes from financing cash flows BREBRSREE 636,097 (111,410) (197,660)
Foreign exchange movement [ i & (37,169) = 32,559
Transfer L 285,911 (41,744) (285,911)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-A=+—H 6,097,719 = 157,406
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 38. MEER

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher
of the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised
less the cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL
allowance is measured by estimating the cash shortfalls,
which are based on the expected payments to reimburse
the holders for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the debtor. The
amount initially recognised represents the fair value at initial
recognition of the financial guarantees.

R N\FFERE

MBRERGONIZAEHREEBERRERNGBER
SRERECHERZRAFRASTE LB ELTAE
BHEEERREVEBGREERAANE
EREEBBRNEFFERANEEET B BB AK
BHNEASR IR ERTE - VREDRTRE
RENEAMGEREH R FE-
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38. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued) 38. B ER (@)
(@) At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees (a) RIEHR BB mMER REE 2 B ER
not provided for in the financial statements were as R
follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities  FIZERE BN EEWEDN
provided for certain purchasers of HETE R REHNER
the Group’s properties 128,180 174,090

As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided guarantees
in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for
certain purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant
to the terms of the guarantees, in the event of default
on mortgage payments by these purchasers before the
expiry of the guarantees, the Group is responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalties owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks, net of any auction
proceeds as described below.

Pursuant to the above arrangement, the related
properties were pledged to the banks as collateral
for the mortgage loans, in the event of default on
mortgage repayments by these purchasers, the banks
are entitled to take over the legal titles and will realise
the pledged properties through open auction. The
Group is responsible for repaying the banks when the
proceeds from the auction of the properties cannot cover
the outstanding mortgage principals together with the
accrued interest and penalties.

244 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H8 A5E}E
TRITAAEENEETES RERBER
METHRBBERFER REERNE
FoRERBERZA HETNRBER
FEH RNEBBERRTERENETHA
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38. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued)

@

(b)

(continued)

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of
grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon
the issuance of real estate ownership certificates to the
purchasers, which will generally be available within one
to two years after the purchasers take possession of the
relevant properties.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant
and the directors of the Company consider that in the
event of default on payments, the net realisable value
of the related properties can cover the repayment of
the outstanding mortgage principals together with the
accrued interest and penalties and therefore no provision
has been made in the financial statements for the
guarantees.

At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees
given to banks in connection with facilities granted to
joint venture not provided for in the financial statements
were as follows:

Guarantees given to banks in connection
with facilities granted to:
a joint venture

RETFTAHZ
B E A IRTTIR AR R -

—Ha%

38. MBER @)

(@)

(b)

(%)

AEBNERINETHEBRBERZA
RAZETREFHEMERES (BER
BETREREMERL —EMFEATIANER)
i 1 o

I

ERORNFELTER BARREERR
REFEONBRT FRAMENRRF
BrRAEEREENRBASEREH
B R E R B B RS R P W LR R AF
HE -

RBEYR PBRRPABEZRAETAE
BRRZBERBITRHEMBERDT

2018 2017
—E-N\#E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
538,905 217,781

As at 31 December 2018, the banking facilities
guaranteed by the Group to a joint venture were utilised
to the extent of approximately RMB333,464,000 (2017:
RMB200,524,000).

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the
guarantees is at initial recognition and the ECL allowance
is not significant.

R N\FFERE

R-E-—NF+_A=+—HB A&EEHH
—BAERAERZEBITRECSHHHA
R #333,464,000C (ZE — £ F: AR
200,524,0007T) °

EEZRA ERZATFERNBFERRE
HEEBEREBTEKN-
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39. REMEZRH
As lessee fERABEA
The Group leases certain of its factory and office premises AEERBEEHEXHEEERETIRENA
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties EME-KERMERERRAE—ZTNF 7
are negotiated for terms of one to eighteen years with an REREZER EMEGRRETENES -

option for renewal after that date, at which time all terms will
be renegotiated.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum RZE-—NF+ZA=1+—8 XEETA#H
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling MEHE /AR R &R & A58 I & W B PR 10
due as follows: N
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Within one year —F A 1,402 3,398
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFERAFT (BREEEWMT) 3,729 4,200
After five years fF & 4,211 5,193

9,342 12,791
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40. COMMITMENTS 40. &I
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B b SCHIFESORT Il M S & T B AR RSN N B
in note 39 above, the Group had the following capital BT E A A

commitments:

2018 2017
—2-N\E T +#
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for: BERTH B R B
Land and buildings T RAEF 283,340 289,235
Plant and machinery R 55 K ik 25 74,895 94,700
Construction and development cost BEERAENAE 222,897 187,338
581,132 571,273
Capital contributions payable for establishment EN—HEE&ERRIZKILZEE
of a joint venture 119,331 120,676
Authorised, but not contracted for: EEBRETL
Plant and machinery R = K i B8 2,500,000 2,500,000
3,200,463 3,191,949
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have e o= 7 N YA ST 17 3 e o B SN

any significant commitments.
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BB S X5
(a) Name and relationship of related parties (a) BBATEBREAR
The related party transactions in respect of purchases of BREE TR T A 5 TR K
spare parts above also constitute connected transactions EFHRABUAENEER IR FEBAER
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Z e

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The directors are of the view that the following EERAETIRRIRFNERNERT L
companies are related parties which entered into material EARX ST

transactions with the Group during the year:

Name of related party Relationship

S AR &

Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine Tool GZMT is a company of which Mr. Chen Chang is the ultimate equity
Works Co., Ltd. ("GZMT") owner.

BM T BRI EARBAR AR ([EMERK]) BMBERTARE T ERTKERBRIERB AZ AR -

Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company is a joint venture of the Group.

Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company BANEE 2 A% A a]e°

(b) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (b) BRZEVHHRERAEMIBOAIRENZ FHI
these financial statements, the Group had the following FAAREBEBEBE AT IATRS:

transactions with related parties during the year:

2018 2017

—E-N\F T —tF
Name of party Nature of transaction Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
AREER XHMHE b 5 ARBT T AR®EFT
GZMT Purchases of spare parts
J& PN 4% PR BTG (i) = 4,154
Notes: B3
(i)  The purchases were made at prices based on agreements () ZEEERINFIESENZEHEECHNE

signed between the parties. ETT
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 41. BB AR5 (&)
(c) Outstanding balances with a related party and a director: (c) HEMAMESTZAINEH:
2018 2017
—E-N\E  —TtF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Due from a related party JFE Uk B B U R IE
GZMT JE& M PR 84,676 84,568
Due to a director JETEE IR
Mr. Chen Chang BRE A& 118,944 106,994
The outstanding balances with related parties are BE ARSI S ERR 22 AT E
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of & 7E 3= FH o
repayment.
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d) NEBEXZEEABNTE:
Group:
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind o WMEkEDAE 5,799 5,646
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RARAE B 5T & 50 183 116
Total compensation paid to key management XNEEEEABEFH AR
personnel 5,982 5,762
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in BEEMenE—THBIRATERERZ
note 9 to the financial statements. B 5E9 °
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42 ST EN DS
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEHR SEemTANKRIMERNT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Financial assets cREE
2018 —E-N\F
Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
12 8 88 A
TR
cREE
RMB’000
AR®T T
Financial assets included in long term FFARBENFEREZCHNESREE
prepayments and deposits 5,736
Trade and bills receivables 25 RBIRR R EREE 540,225
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERTFRIE - H e Y kI8
other receivables and other assets HWEENEMEE 283,349
Pledged and restricted bank balances B 2 PR B4R 1T 45 619,060
Cash and bank balances B e MIRITHE % 66,907
1,515,277
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

42. ST AN D HE (&)

Financial assets (continued) SREE (#)
2017 —E—tF Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
BERR e
JE W IR CRVEE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT ARBEF T ARBEFT
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - 800 800
Financial assets included in long term FTARBEMNRIER
prepayments and deposits EeWamiEE 38,825 - 38,825
Trade and bills receivables 2 5 EWEER R
e 371,120 - 371,120
Financial assets included in prepayments, FFATERRIE
other receivables and other assets H b FE Y RIE K
HthWEENSRMEE 153,155 - 153,155
Pledged and restricted bank balances [REAECDS &
IRITAEBR 252,292 - 252,292
Time deposit EHTER 413,717 - 413,717
Cash and bank balances Re RRITES 36,392 - 36,392
1,265,501 800 1,266,301

R N\FFERE
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

42. ST AN D HE (&)

Financial liabilities cHAas
2018 —ET-N\F
Financial
liability at Financial
fair value liabilities at
through profit amortised
or loss cost Total
BRATE R A
FTABEMN FTEN
SRAE TRAE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T AR®BT R AR® T
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTA 22,984 = 22,984
Trade and bills payables g ZRNERR LN RIE - 688,464 688,464
Financial liabilities included in FT A E A FE S RUE R
other payables and accruals EErERNSREBE = 379,577 379,577
Interest-bearing bank and FFERRITREMEE
other borrowings - 6,097,719 6,097,719
Fixed rate bonds and notes FEBEHFIEE = 157,406 157,406
22,984 7,323,166 7,346,150
2017 —E—LF
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
RE KR
T2
EA =R
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Trade and bills payables S ENERRENZEE 670,349
Financial liabilities included in other payables FFAHMENFIERESERANSREBE
and accruals 452,883
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ATERITREMBEE 5,212,880
Fixed rate bonds and notes ELEHFLER 608,418
6,944,530
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. ST AZAFERAFESR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, the current portion of pledged deposits,
investment deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and
bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, short term notes and amounts
due from/to subsidiaries approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities included
in long term prepayments and deposits, the non-current
portion of pledged deposits, available-for-sale investments,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and fixed rate
bonds and notes have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for finance
lease payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
and fixed rate bonds and notes as at 31 December 2018
was assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amounts of
these financial instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017.

R N\FFERE

ERECHRRERASFEY CERERZ
BEE D REFR BHRIRREERERE
BHRMNERRENREE FFABMKE Hi
EUFEAREMEEZEBMEE St AEMERN
REREFERzoREE BHEERER
NHBARFEZAFE HAREEMRE T
ERRZETAREHARE-

EMEERBEZATFENRBRR ST (REH
BREERIMNENRGTRTAZARZIER
AR NITTERBRERBR G A FE:

SARBENRERESZEHEENAEE
EEBER 2Ry AAHBEERE TR
BITREMEEREEEHFRERZATFE:
DGR - EERBR RSB TEHREN TARK
RS RE - FRBEHARRESRTE - R
T N\F+ZA=Z+—B AEEREMRER
EXE HERTEREMEERTEEEHFRER
ZEABTETRBTIEATER - RZE—N\F
+ZA=+—BERZZE—+tF+ZA=+—81"
ZERBEAAAEZ SR TAZERESRER
FEVEERAER-
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 43. EMIAZAFERAFEER (8
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy NEEER
The Group did not have any financial asset measured at fair RZE—NFF+ZA=+—HB AEELETM
value as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). BEATEMAEZEREE(ZTE—+HF &) -
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TERHAPAEER=_FT-NF+=_A=+—HZ
hierarchy of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31 December CREBEZATEFAZER (ZE—1F &)

2018 (2017: Nil):

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using
RZBE-NE+ZRA=+-BKAUTBAEHEZATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs input

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
KBRS S BEATEHE EBEAXFUEE

R E® BAE BAE

(£—-%) (E=#®) (£=%4) Azt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBETT ARETT ARETT

Recurring fair value measurement for: & &® QA FEF £
Derivative financial instrument THESMIA - 22,984 - 22,984
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRN E—BRE_Q2EBREEHEBREER
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers CRMABBEZATHEAZEER TEEAZ MK
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial BE=AEL (ZZ—+F:M|)-
liabilities (2017: Nil).

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. BB EBEE BERBXR
AND POLICIES
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank AEEXTZNeRIAEPERITAEMEE T
and other borrowings, fixed rate bonds and notes, cash and BEHFIAEERE ReMRBAGER-Z ”ﬁnﬂiﬁ
short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial NEZENRAAEEMNLERE AEBEE
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The BEHMEMEERBE NEZRWEZRLE S
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such JENERSE HEERHEEES-

as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

254 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group does not have any written risk
management policies and guidelines. Generally, the Group
introduces prudent strategies on its risk management. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans
and government loans with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in order to
manage its interest rate risk. Interest-bearing loans,
cash and short term deposits are stated at amortised
cost and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate
interest income and expenses are credited/charged to
the statement of profit or loss as earned/incurred.

Management does not anticipate any significant impact
resulting from the changes in interest rates because most
of the Group’s loans as at the end of the reporting period
were at fixed interest rates which have no significant
impact on cash flow interest rate risk.

If there was a general increase/decrease in the interest
rate of bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rates by one percentage point, with all other variables
held constant, the consolidated operating results would
decreasel/increase by approximately RMB43.3 million
(2017: RMB22.5 million), and there would be no impact
on other components of the consolidated equity, except
for retained profits, of the Group.

R N\FFERE

44. AR EEEERBE (&)

HASENSRITAEENTZRAKREFERR
SNERR - EERBEABDESRB NEEE
FHEMEBREEBRREES -—RME A&
EfHERBREEFRSIABRENRE EFSHEH
WiHEEIRELRRSERBRE  BalmT:

(a) FZEE R
AREBAZOTSNELHERFEZEA
SEZRFHFNERFENRITEREBRTE
HER-

AEBEFTHESYERETERTBHANEER
AREE UERAEMNERR -FFEER B
EMEMERIZEBHEAAIIE TAERE
o ¥ BRI R F S WA R IRRREE
REEm R AR

BREERS NEEPILrEELTMNERY
2 AR/AEERRERRORTDERZ
B \%ﬁﬁéﬁ%f'l%@ﬁfﬁ
BEEXRE-

ERFHMEFENRITRAME SRS
me/ BEeE—HEE > MABEMES
T BIRAEEEEBRD NG A
R #®43,300,000c (ZZE—+tF: AR
22 5000007‘5) CHAEBESS R HM
AN 2 (ERB R MR o
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44, BIEEBREE B FERBR (#)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk (b) HhEE B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. AEEABRRSEERR ZZEBKE L
These exposures arise from sales by operating units in EEMEMMIEE S U EEEST
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. HEHE - AEEHEEFRL28% (ZT—+H5F:
Approximately 28% (2017: 47%) of the Group’s sales 47% ) VEITIHEMK E B M BB I
were denominated in currencies other than the functional SN BB ETE -

currencies of the operating units making the sale.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at TERBETRBEHRANEEKRRAIBERL
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible FFTEEMEERFIAEZBERTHNRETE
change in the United States (“US”) dollar exchange rate, SR EHMGURE -
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss
before tax.
Effect on loss before tax Y BRB AR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Increase in the US dollar rate of 3% 2 T [ I 1N3% (14,663) (13,670)

Decrease in the US dollar rate of 3% 3 TTIE E R 3% 14,663 13,670
(c) Credit risk (c) EERMR

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The rEEEEFEERAR AFERe MRS

Group’s cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited EEBMEEFRRPBEARERBRT

with state-owned banks in Mainland China.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and AR EMBERRKAE 5 K E b B UK
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated ENMRekBAcSENNEREERAEE
statement of financial position represent the Group’s FHEsMEENRAEERR AEEEH
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its thHBREAEERARNEMEE -

financial assets. The Group has no other financial assets
which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and ERASEEHERERTREERINE=
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for FHEIRS WHAELER AR AEE
collateral. There are no significant concentrations BIRWEREZDHRITRRR A%
of credit risk within the Group as the Group’s trade BrEsAEdrEERR-

receivables are widely dispersed among different

customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s FAASERESEREFAAZEER
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are B i) B4t 2L BRIR B AP 51 234K 5 -

disclosed in note 23.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

44. AR EEEERBE (&)

(d)y RBESER

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of sufficient
funding and flexibility by utilising a variety of bank and
other borrowings with debt maturities spreading over
a range of periods, thereby ensuring that the Group’s
outstanding borrowing obligation is not exposed to
excessive repayment risk in any one year. Due to the
capital intensive nature of the Group’s businesses, the
Group ensures that it maintains sufficient cash and credit
lines to meet its liquidity requirements.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from operations
to meet its debt obligations as they fall due, and its
ability to obtain external financing to meet its committed
future capital expenditure. With regard to its future
capital commitments and other financing requirements,
the Group has already obtained banking facilities
with several banks of up to an amount of RMB1,005
million as at 31 December 2018, of which an amount of
approximately RMB735 million has been utilised.

AEEMBEER MBEEBIHAZE TR
MEBRITEEMEES BRSEESEH
BENABERE CMERASEEARE
ENBEEBETAN - FIrEAZBEN
EERR ARNANEEEBNERT ST
AEBEBREFSERARELERBRBELAD
RERBEZER-

AEENRDESTERBAEBHSR
MR MA BN EBEMNEE ARG
IRELBENEBRBRAENEARAR I
N ERAEERBEREAENMAEMREER
B-R_BE-N\E+-_A=+—HB A%£H
BEEEZRBITIREEARL,005,000,000
THEREHEE EFEHAHNAREK
735,000,0007T °

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities REE AR RNREEERETAKRTIRMAR
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the HemAENIABERNT:

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+=ZA=+-—H

Less than Over

On demand 1 year 1 year Total

RER LPR—F —FBE Bt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR® T AR®T ARBT T

Trade and bills payables BORNERRENZE - 688,464 - 688,464

Other payables H{th & 5018 - 379,577 = 379,577
Interest-bearing bank HERITREMEE

and other borrowings - 2,741,043 4,817,704 7,558,747

Fixed rate bonds and notes  FE&EH KZE& - 13,445 195,275 208,720

- 3,822,529 5,012,979 8,835,508

R N\FFERE
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 AR EEEEREBE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) RBESER (4)

31 December 2017
—E—+F+=-A=+—H

Less than Over
On demand 1 year 1 year Total
RERK DR —5F —FUE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETRT ARETET ARETE

Trade and bills payables BORNERLENZE - 670,349 - 670,349
Other payables H{th & 5018 - 452,883 - 452,883
Interest-bearing bank FERITREMEE

and other borrowings - 3,501,679 2,609,260 6,110,939
Fixed rate bonds and notes TEEAERZEE - 494,397 185,565 679,962

- 5,119,308 2,794,825 7,914,133
(e) Capital management (e) EXERE

The primary objectives of the Group’'s capital AEBEAEENTEEEZRERAER
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to FECENRE N RBRERL X UXFHE
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy B ERREERAKL-

capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. B AR EE B ERBUR (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(e) Capital management (continued) (e) EXEE (#)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which REBFREEREBLRETEER ZLLE
is total debts divided by total assets, and is defined to REEBBAREE Y ERRBRENIEA
include payables incurred nor in the ordinary course of BEKBEREEANENRIE - BEHBE
business. Total debts include interest-bearing bank and AERTREMEERESBEFLRE R
other borrowings and fixed rate bonds and notes. The BEMRNEERBLLERWT:
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—L+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Interest-bearing bank and other AERITREMES

borrowings (note 27) (M3E27) 6,097,719 5,212,880
Fixed rate bonds and notes (note 31) FEEHRERE (M7E31) 157,406 608,418
Total debts BIET 6,255,125 5,821,298
Total assets BEE 10,008,293 10,153,096
Gearing ratio EEBELE 62.5% 57.3%
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45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 45. SREHIEREE

On 27 February 2019, the Group entered into another disposal
agreement with Yuecai Trust and certain other related
companies of Yuecai Trust for the disposal of the remaining
80% equity interest in PCKSP for a total consideration of
RMB2,448 million (hereafter referred to as the “2019 Disposal
Transaction”). The 2019 Disposal Transaction constituted
a very substantial disposal pursuant to the relevant Listing
Rules and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting. As at the date of this report,
the extraordinary general meeting has not been conducted
and accordingly the 2019 Disposal Transaction is not yet
approved. Details of the 2019 Disposal Transaction are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement and circular dated
27 February 2019 and 26 March 2019, respectively.

The 2019 Disposal Transaction should be read in conjunction
of the 2018 Disposal Transaction (refer to note 1), which
is subject to certain conditions to be fulfilled by the Group.
These conditions included, among others, the change of the
land use from “industrial” to “commercial and residential” of
the land owned by PCKSP, and the carve out of all the assets
and liabilities of PCKSP with the remaining land owned by
PCKSP as the only asset prior to the disposal.

As part of the 2019 Disposal Transaction, an additional loan
of RMB700 million will be granted to the Group.

In the event that the land could not be changed from
“industrial” to “commercial and residential” use within three
years after the date of the respective agreement, the buyer
may request the Group to repurchase all the equity interest
in PCKSP plus an amount equal to an annualised percentage
gain of 11% payable within 30 days after the issue of notice
from the buyer regarding the failure of the change of land use.

When all the required conditions have been met, the 2018 and
2019 Disposal Transactions will be regarded as completed,
management estimated that a gain of approximately RMB2.2
billion will arise based on the prevailing market information of
the underlying assets of PCKSP. Upon completion of these
disposals, the Group will cease to own any shareholdings in
PCKSP.
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. A DA Z M BRR T
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the ARARRMERARZMBRRARER DT

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2018 2017
“B-N\NF T t&
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMEBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR 2 ®RE 922,759 922,759
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 922,759 922,759
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets &1 38 - H {th fiE Yo 3018 &

Hn& = 822 8,436
Due from subsidiaries NN 1,233,567 1,459,521
Cash and bank balances BE MIBITESS 5,244 5,188
Total current assets MEEERE 1,239,633 1,473,145
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERITREME R 296,490 324,824
Other payables and accruals H b fER RIB R ERTE A 24,382 8,503
Due to subsidiaries NN EENGIE S 68,271 64,895
Fixed rate bonds and notes FEBEHFMEE = 467,821
Total current liabilities mEBBRERRE 389,143 866,043
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEEFE 850,490 607,102
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BERERRDAE 1,773,249 1,529,861
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERBAGE
Fixed rate bonds and notes EBEHFRER 541,177 140,597
Total non-current liabilities ERBAELRE 541,177 140,597
Net assets BEEFE 1,232,072 1,389,264
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEEITIRA 88,856 88,856
Reserves (note) i (M) 1,143,216 1,300,408
Total equity R ERE 1,232,072 1,389,264
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 46. 1 8 Z B AR R & ()
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: B 5T
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARAZREERENT :
Exchange
Share  Contributed Accumulated fluctuation
premium surplus losses reserve Total
B’ 195 E BB R2itErR EXRBHEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTET AR®BTRT ARETT ARBTET ARETT

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—HA—AH 824,219 1,712,731 (1,060,253) (12,673) 1,464,024
Total comprehensive loss ANFEELHEEEE
for the year - - (125,229) (38,387) (163,616)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+-A=+—8 824,219 1,712,731 (1,185,482) (51,060) 1,300,408
Total comprehensive AFEEEEEER
loss for the year - - (174,924) 17,732 (157,192)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—NF
+=B=+—-8 824,219 1,712,731 (1,360,406) (33,328) 1,143,216
47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47, BB | K
The financial statements were approved and authorised for PBRERENRZZE—NF=ZA=-ThBEEESTSE
issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019. e R A -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FEEHME

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities

of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on the basis

set out in the note below is as follows:

MBENBE

AEBRTXMEMENEEREBEED AN RFE
MEAMEEREELBBEHRELT

Results E
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-Ng T+t ZT-RF ZET—HF ZZT—@OmF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT ARETRT ARBTT AR®TR
Revenue WA 1,620,456 873,293 1,443,487 2,539,178 2,679,188
Cost of sales HERA (1,358,041) (815,182)  (1,361,900)  (2,131,965)  (2,367,575)
Gross Profit EH 262,415 58,111 81,587 407,213 311,613
Other income and gains Hp A Rz 81,579 140,553 37,564 29,221 125,840
Selling and distribution expenses 56 & 7 4% (63,744) (107,330) (144,423) (171,695) (139,232)
Administrative expenses THER (437,020) (475,632) (470,977) (439,991) (453,637)
Other expenses Hin B A (93,432) (12,873) (105,283) (17,469) (38,156)
Exchange gain/(loss), net bE 5 Wz (B518) 38 16,241 (44,121) (86,417) (53,558) 1,850
Finance costs AR (374,468) (426,286) (237,142) (237,111) (260,365)
Impairment of property, plant and #1% - B = R R & U K&
equipment and goodwill SR = (18,006) (516,250) - -
Fair value gains on BREMEZ A FER
investment properties 21,779 - - 627,882 99,587
Fair value loss on a derivative TEe®mIAY
financial instrument NEEEBE (22,984) - - - -
Share of a loss of a joint venture  [E{5 —f& & & A A& 18 (2,724) (2,779) (1,460) (582) (263)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBADEF (E18) (612,358) (888,363)  (1,442,801) 143,910 (352,763)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fr8fi (X)) /K% 113,423 14,608 (56,197) (118,399) (5,914)
Profit/(loss) for the year FNsF, (EE) (498,935) (873,755)  (1,498,998) 25,511 (358,677)
Other comprehensive income/ FREMEARA
(loss) for the year, net of tax (E18) (MErHE) (116,857) 153,862 (133,018) (94,725) (2,189)
Total comprehensive income/ FRE2ERA (EE)
(loss) for the year x| (615,792) (719,893)  (1,632,016) (69,214) (360,866)
Earnings/(loss) per share (RMB) &R Z&F,/ (FE)(ARE) RMBARY®¥ RMBARY RMBAR® RMBAR® RMBAR
— basic and diluted —EARREE (0.49) 7© (0.86) 7T (1.48) T 0.027¢ (0.36) T

R N\FFERE
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEMHEHRE
Assets and Liabilities EEHEE
31 December
+=RA=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
BN\ —T—+F ZE—R"F T—HF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT ARETRT ARE®TT AR®TT
Non-current assets FERBEE 5,437,956 5,986,437 7,140,362 7,872,635 7,429,301
Current assets MENEE 4,570,337 4,166,659 3,815,464 4,200,730 4,032,307
Current liabilities mEAE (4,610,046)  (6,333,616)  (6,539,519)  (4,594,486)  (4,778,993)
Non-current liabilities FRBAR (5,167,974)  (2,973,415)  (2,848,421)  (4,278,977)  (3,413,499)
Total Equity k] 230,273 846,065 1,567,886 3,199,902 3,269,116
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